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NCIR-§
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
BEREERE

INTERNATIONAL RESTAURANT

147 175

AN RN]

2020/21
W Qutside Hong Kong
FRAIMOE

2021/22

EARN'NGS PER SHARE (Basic earnings)

REVENUE
W = NETWORK
HK$'000 F 57T PR £ EE 49 4%
1,656,173 1,691,179 1,794,693 2,275,298 107 125
48.3%
sor |11 7 || ] o “H
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20
Dine-in W Takeaway and delivery!” Hong Kong
ER SNEEEURE PO BB
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Y2
FE A BREN sz
HK$'000 Ti&7T HK cents A1l
12.7% 11.3% 16.0% 8.9%
197,709 190,896 287,792 202,960 19.8 19.1
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20
Adjusted Profit® W Government subsidies and Listing expenses
feErkypill BT RE K RS2

1

Takeaway and delivery comprises takeaway orders made at the restaurants and delivery orders fulfilled through online delivery platforms. 1)

@

Adjusted profit for the year excludes the impact of one-off government subsidies and listing expenses.

28.8 17.5

2020/21 2021/22

HEEMEEIE B EE R T ETE - A REBE LT
F¥AERMIISTE -

BN NEEBRF—XBMM R ETRNEE -
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

HEREERE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLHEE
2022 2021 Change in
—=B_- ZEZ—% percentage
HK$’000 HK$'000 B LLEH
FERT FET %
Results E4
Revenue U 2 2,275,298 1,794,693 26.8%
Profit before taxation B B¢ AT 4 A 245,067 320,251 -28.5%
Profit for the year FE i A 202,960 287,792 -29.5%
Profit margin FE & 8.9% 16.0%
Adjustments for: BATFE :
Government subsidies XY 48 b (54,768) (154,585) —-64.6%
Listing expenses FHREX 17,261 7,231 138.7%
Adjusted profit for the year® FERKALRHO 165,453 140,438 17.8%
Adjusted profit margin R INE RS 7.3% 7.8%
At 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2022 2021 Change in
—=E-= —TZ—%  percentage
HK$’000 HK$'000 EBEDLEEH)
FExT THT %
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,055,739 851,563 24.0%
Current assets MENE E 1,513,008 553,419 173.4%
Non-current liabilities FEREBBE 443,050 333,438 32.9%
Current liabilities mENBE 572,330 526,070 8.8%
Capital and reserves BN EE 1,553,367 545,474 184.8%
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREERE

Year ended 31 March
BZE=ZRA=1+—HIEE

2022 2021
—E-= —EZ—F
HK cents HK cents
B AL AL
Per share data BEREE
Basic earnings EARAF 17.5 28.8
Diluted earnings BE RN 17.4 28.8
Final dividend RERAR B 11.4 —
Key financial ratios FEHKHR
Current ratio® mENLL R 2.6 1.1
Quick ratio® REP L EO 2.6 1.0
Return on assets? BERHREO 10.2% 23.1%
Return on equity® e E Sy 19.3% 62.4%

@ Adjusted profit for the year excludes the impact of one-off government subsidies and listing expenses.

2 Calculated based on our total current assets as at the end of the relevant years divided by our total current liabilities as at the end of
the corresponding years.

) Calculated based on our total current assets less inventories as at the end of the relevant years divided by our total current liabilities as
at the end of the corresponding years.

4) Calculated based on our profit for the relevant years divided by our average total assets as at the beginning and the end of the
corresponding years and multiplied by 100%.

5) Calculated based on our profit for the relevant years divided by our average total equity attributable to our equity shareholder as at the
beginning and the end of the corresponding years and multiplied by 100%.

FREEHE RN TR R —REBFHEE ETRAXOTE -
RIBEBFRARDEELERUNBEFRRD B EREAH -
REEBFRORDEELERFTERANEEFRORDAE
HERETE -

RERBEENSFNRAHEFYRFERNTHEEBERE
JA100%51 & ©

RIEE SO EFIBR A SR RR Y EFEY R FEREEFY
BREEBRIA100%EHE o

EFEBAERLATE & 2021/22 F5
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Mr. Lau Tat Man (Z& R % 4)
Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

S

The year ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022”) has been a momentous year for Tam Jai International Co. Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, “we”, “us” or “our”). Thanks to your trust, the ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Share(s)’) were successfully listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 October 2021 (the “Listing Date”) to become an independent, publicly-traded company, while keeping
our momentum in international development by entering into Mainland China and Japan markets, when the catering
industry as a whole weathered the storm of the ongoing pandemic.

| want to thank all of you for standing with us, and we have committed ourselves to serving you with the unique taste of
home wherever you are, and whatever you are going through. It is a promise we have been holding dear ever since 1996,
when TamJai Yunnan Mixian (B{fZEmK4R) (“TamJai”) first started its journey.

ﬁi:giiiiﬂE+—Etifﬁ(fzgiiﬂﬂﬁﬁgj)%%%ﬁlmﬁﬁﬁ (A28 ZREMBARSEAIAE
M TEM RPN ZRIFERREN —F - BRAFTNEE At ak(RED R -_F-_—F+AtA(LWA
)RR EE ﬁéé&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ(ﬂﬁi‘éﬁﬂ)iﬁ'Q&hﬁi%—%% - AREERMNOQE - RAETMREFERERS
B ERRESEARBHEMEXIEE 2R  EFPEANMKEALRTS -

AANBUBHARBEMAGHBRYL - HATORD  BRARTRBAM KEFME A /AFKREBHORBERK -
BB - NANAARFEFERRR ([FF]) B LAERUR - —BEETHAG
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFE®/E

RISING THROUGH RESILIENCE

The past 12 months have been a roller-coaster ride and the outbreak of COVID-19
has brought upon unprecedented challenges, but the Group once again
demonstrated its agility and resilience by riding out the COVID-19-related policy
changes.

In the first three quarters of FY2022, we have outperformed the market with a
speedy, strong bounce-back as the pandemic eased. Our restaurants were buzzing
with excited customers who were enjoying our mixian with new food combinations,
and our takeaway team was busy answering orders. We are honoured to enjoy the
support of a community of loyal customers, who keep coming back to us while we
consistently deliver in quality, varieties and service throughout the ups and downs of
the pandemic.

Even when the fifth wave of COVID-19 brought a fresh wave of challenges, our
Group was able to stay afloat. Our creative and takeaway-friendly recipes
(convenient, efficient and consistent quality with high varieties), make TamJai and
TamdJai SamGor Mixian GEfF =Z&1K4R) (“SamGor”) a good option during the spikes
of the COVID-19 waves as our customers can still enjoy our unique flavours and
quality food without Vvisiting or dining-in at our restaurants. Our frontline and
management staff members are incredibly resourceful and efficient in managing our
supply chain, restaurant operations and work rosters, enabling us to make quick
responses in unanticipated situations and stay competitive in different times. Our
innovative brand building and marketing initiatives have also helped us stay
connected with our customers.

1 O Tam Jai International Co. Limited = Annual Report 2021/22
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A LEAP TO INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

Outside of Hong Kong, we have also been able to expand into our targeted
markets against all odds. Our unique, authentic “TamdJai tastes”, recognised as the
new generation Hong Kong comfort food, were successfully brought to different
regions. The responses we have got from Shenzhen, Guangzhou and Tokyo were
instantaneous and overwhelming: hundreds of customers queued for hours outside
our Shinjuku restaurant in Japan, eager to be amongst the first to enjoy a steaming
noodle bowl packed with Hong Kong flavours and culture. In fact, our Tokyo
restaurants have gained extensive media coverage by both Hong Kong and
international media both before and after its opening because of its rapturous
reception.

There is clearly an international appetite for authentic Hong Kong food experience,
especially when people are moving overseas. We have made our first step right in
expanding into markets that are known for their love for noodles. This encourages
us to continue looking for new global avenues to bring home the perfect taste of
Hong Kong.

OUR COMMITMENT TO SERVING THE COMMUNITY

The presence of our restaurants brought a sense of normality to a city that is
weathering through the upheaval of an unprecedented health crisis. Our people have
responded to the pandemic with resilience, agility and world-class execution. When
the business environment and COVID-19-related policies were highly volatile, and a
substantial number of eateries struggled to figure out their opening hours and
menus, TamdJai and SamGor were still able to open the majority of their restaurants
and maintain their core menu so that millions of people could have access to a
hearty, delicious meal at an affordable price.

EEEERTS

HAHEGRER KNEFEEEUINBEETS  £5
B B B ERFT—HKNBEBRLERTE
AR E - TAAIERI - BN R IR e B S # R E
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFE®/E

As a responsible employer, we are mindful of the well-being of our employees and
their families. That makes us an early starter in introducing stringent health, safety
and hygiene measures in our central kitchen and at the restaurants, to protect our
staff and provide a hygienic environment to our customers.

EXPANSION PLANS AND DIVIDENDS

Apart from investing in people and the community, we will also continue to invest in
strengthening our logistics and other operational infrastructures. We will remain
prudent and disciplined in our international plan — in a year that was anything but
normal, we were able to expand our restaurant network to Mainland China and
Japan. In fact, we have been tracking numerous potential sites which do not yet
have a presence of the TamJai and SamGor brands. There is ample room for
international expansion, but that will be at a reasonable pace as we are responsible
to our stakeholders and investors.

We are committed to enhancing shareholder value by returning a significant portion
of our cash flow back to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”)
through dividends. The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the
Company recommends to pay a final dividend of HK11.4 cents per Share.

1 2 Tam Jai International Co. Limited = Annual Report 2021/22

ER—REACHWEET RMABLETHRERANG
Ao FHitt - HMPFCEPREERERESIATBRENRZ
B Z2kEEER MREETIYREFPREHAFHEN

B o

RERSFEARRE

BT HRERAM Rt ZIN - BT EERE IR
N E A B AR R o RIS T BB A B R
HEKER - AERAEFEHLBEEARNFE  HFKD
HERERERE=TEAMMER - FEL BB
FEIZEEF = mE R REENEEE - BRE
ROZEHER BERTRAFNEIMEERR  H&MH
A REHEBIER

BABORBBREHRIBLREREEARRRRER
(TRERD UREEREE ARAREF(EEDE
([EFEg ) ZR RN RAKRSFMI1.4E -



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

In closing, | would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to our staff
for their dedication and selfless effort during this tumultuous year. | would also like
to thank our customers, vendors, landlords and professional parties for their
continuous trust and unreserved support.

People say that gold is tested and refined by the furnace. | believe that we have
demonstrated the strength of our Group’s fundamentals and our DNA. Looking
forward, | am confident of the Group’s future growth momentum. | believe in our
ability to generate sustainable cash flow as we adapt our business to the changing
market environment and thrive. We reaffirm our commitment to our vision of bringing
Tamdai’s and SamGor’s unique flavours and food culture to everyone in Hong Kong
and around the world.

Lau Tat Man,
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Tam Jai International Co. Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENW R DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our business is expanding steadily in Hong Kong, and internationally under COVID-19. We managed to open restaurants in Shenzhen and
Guangzhou in the Greater Bay Area of Mainland China, and Tokyo in Japan in FY2022. As at 31 March 2022, we had a total of 175
restaurants across Hong Kong, Mainland China, Japan and Singapore.

Our business in Hong Kong has remained our key driver as the revenue of our Hong Kong restaurants had recovered to the pre-COVID-19
level during the first three quarters of FY2022. However, the entire catering industry in Hong Kong was reeling from the impact of the fifth
wave of the COVID-19 outbreak in the fourth quarter of FY2022. Our operation in Hong Kong was inevitably affected and a drop in revenue
was recorded during this period.

Our business in Singapore has already witnessed a substantial rebound since November 2021, where the government of Singapore started
easing into a “living with COVID-19” strategy by gradually lifting restrictions on social gathering and dining that it had imposed before August
2021.

E 3 3C1)
RIECOVID-1ORBRES WRBBREARLY T - —HRFENKDRAEREAERERI - BMARARORERERERE - 0=
TooFZA=+—B - BMREE  FERL - ARRIIRA RE175HEE -

BPEBEANERDARIEES N E_FT - —_MBRFEE-AFTETEERENKEC MEZECOVID-19Z FIHKF « A - BENBEE
REE_ZT - _HRFEFOFTEXIERKCOVID-19RBERLEMBARE - RPWBFBXZB T AIE 2T ER L - BFEESKaE TH -

B-Z_—F+—F ZPEFNENEBESABRE - IR BARBREERE - BREECOVID- 194777 | KA - ERFEE_FT——
FNAANERNERZ S RERRES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR DN

The Company is successfully listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in October 2021
RARRIE_ZE-—F+TARIREEBRERSMERR A EREE L

First-ever TamdJai SamGor restaurant in Japan opens at Shinjuku

BEF=FEFABERDERHEREERE

The Tamdai brand successfully entered the Mainland China market.
B o R B Th HE A R B b T 35
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We reached another milestone by entering the Mainland China market under the
Tamdai brand during FY2022. The initial revenue and customers responses of our
new restaurants had been favourable before the sudden downturn caused by the
pandemic in the fourth quarter of FY2022 that put the entire catering industry under
strain. Our overall new restaurant development plan was interrupted and our result
during the said period was negatively affected.

On 31 March 2022, we opened our first restaurant in Japan, which enjoyed great
popularity from the Japanese since operation.

During FY2022, our revenue saw a significant rise, which increased to HK$2,275.3
million, representing a 26.8% year-on-year increase as compared with the year
ended 31 March 2021 (“FY2021”), despite the aforementioned fifth wave of the
COVID-19 outbreak in Hong Kong since the beginning of 2022. The revenue hike
was attributed to the increase in the number of restaurants in operation in Hong
Kong and worldwide, and a steady growth in comparable restaurants revenue in
Hong Kong.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for FY2022 was HK$203.0 million (FY2021:
HK$287.8 million). Adjusted profit for FY2022 was HK$165.5 million, representing a
surge of HK$25.0 million or 17.8% as compared with FY2021. Basic earnings per
Share for FY2022 were HK17.5 cents (FY2021: HK28.8 cents). Our Group has
continued to achieve a healthy financial position and had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$1,365.2 million as at 31 March 2022.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R-ZZE-_HREFE  BHAAEFREEATBERLT
5 ZN S —EERE AT - _MBFEEFNEE
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Revenue increased by
to HK
million year-on-year,
mainly attributable to
the increased number
of restaurants in
operation and growth
in comparable
restaurants revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR DN

International restaurant network B [E & B84

Number of SamGor restaurants Number of TamJai restaurants

=HEEHE BETEEZE

as at 31 March as at 31 March

R=A=+—H R=BA=+—8
2022 2021 2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F —E=-= B —F
Hong Kong &5 81 72 81 72
Mainland China AR A - — 8 —
Singapore EADIIES 4 3 - —
Japan A7 1 - - —
Total HEES 86 75 89 72

As of 31 March 2022, we had a total of 175 restaurants across Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Singapore and Japan. The gross restaurant opening is 19 in Hong
Kong and 10 outside Hong Kong, with only one restaurant in Hong Kong being
closed in FY2022.

In Hong Kong, we have 81 Tamdai restaurants, and 81 SamGor restaurants. We will
continue to penetrate into areas not previously covered in the financial year ending
31 March 2023 (“FY2023”). Our expanding restaurant network is complementary to
the delivery service coverage throughout the city, as we are aware of the
importance of takeaway and delivery in the industry amid the ongoing pandemic.

1 8 Tam Jai International Co. Limited = Annual Report 2021/22
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

INTERNATIONAL RESTAURANT R-B-__HS=A=1+—-HEKREERHS
NETWORK AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Total
e it Japan
=S ﬁ +1 B 1 &
Mainland
& +8 Shina 8 L]
4 R E A it
Hong
\ +18 28 162
Singapore
AN +1 simg

In Mainland China, we have opened eight restaurants in total under the TamJai ZEFRBEAM @ AR - —_BMBFEALFR T \ME
brand for FY2022, including six in Shenzhen, and two in Guangzhou. We will BFf ®iEZEE » B3/ AR KB R E M - 7
continue our momentum of restaurants opening in the Greater Bay Area in FY2023, —Z-=HFE HMASREENERHREEND
Strategies are being put in place also to drive both dine-in and takeaway revenue. 38 : FIBR IR HIE R AES ER MINE B EH WS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D

In Singapore, restaurant growth was deferred due to city lockdown from May to
August in 2021 and the Singapore government had gradually relaxed the
COVID-19-related measures from September 2021 onwards. We have opened one
new restaurant in March 2022, and also confirmed some locations of new
restaurants in the pipeline for FY2023.

For Japan, we have recently opened our first restaurant in Shinjuku on 31 March
2022, and subsequently will open two more restaurants located in Kichijoji and
Ebisu respectively, in the first quarter of FY2023.

Prominent revenue performance

0

Comparable restaurants revenue growth

The Group has achieved a steady growth in comparable restaurants revenue
despite the extreme challenges posed by Hong Kong’s fifth wave of the
COVID-19 outbreak in the last quarter of FY2022.

During the first three quarters of FY2022, the revenue of our Hong Kong
comparable restaurants had already recovered to the pre-COVID-19 level,
because of wide recognition of our brand, exciting and engaging marketing
campaigns, great success of introduction of premium toppings, and the
continued support from our loyal customers. Together with the menu price
adjustment in February 2022, we accomplished an across-the-board increase
in the average spending per customer, and the average daily number of bowls
served per seat, which includes both dine-in, takeaway and delivery orders.

However, the fifth wave of COVID-19 hit Hong Kong badly in the last quarter
of FY2022. With more than a million cases recorded, many people were under
quarantine, together with the work from home policy, tightened social
distancing rules and the general social sentiment, the daily traffic in the city
was much reduced, as was the demand for food and beverages services,
which stripped the industry of revenue. Our comparable restaurants revenue
growth was consequently narrowed in the last quarter in FY2022.
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ii)

Prompt actions for mitigation during COVID-19

To mitigate the potential impact triggered by this fifth wave of the COVID-19
outbreak, immediate measures were implemented as we had deployed our
staff to boost our takeaway/food delivery capacity, by offering takeaway
promotions and maintaining a strong partnership with third-party delivery
platforms in the face of setbacks stemming from dampened consumer
sentiment and dine-in demand. We have also carefully managed the supply
chain and our workforce to avoid heavy interruptions to our services to
customers. It was a vigorous exercise involving both the management,
operation and frontline staff as we quickly adjusted our business model to
adapt to the challenges. Thanks to this, the decrease in dine-in revenue in the
last quarter of FY2022 had been partially mitigated by the increase in
proportion of takeaway/food delivery revenue. These swift actions had enabled
us to achieve business continuity with most of our restaurants.

The vigorous exercise brought us even more in tune with our competitive
advantages, which were our diverse menu and nimble staff management. Our
products are also well-recognised for being takeaway-friendly because of their
quick preparation, and their consistent food quality that hardly deteriorates
with food packaging and delivery time. We will further capitalise on these
competitive advantages by continuing the expansion of our online businesses
via customer relationship management system and third-party platforms. We
will also invest in improving the application of our technology and information
system to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of our business processes.

ii)
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iii)

Product innovations

Hong Kong remains the powerhouse for product innovation as we have
launched more than two dozen new products in FY2022 including toppings,
soup base, snacks and beverages. Our strategies in menu design including the
introduction of premium toppings and snacks such as cordyceps flower, sliced
sea whelk, and velvet antler mushroom and new products such as mixian with
duck blood in SamGor chili broth and pickled chicken on tossed mixian with
minced pork sauce, were a great success, which promise unbeatable varieties.
These all helped boost the average spending per customer and the average
daily number of bowls served per seat.

Meanwhile, our innovations go beyond territories. We have launched the Bak
Kut Bowl in August 2021, paying tribute to Singapore’s National Day by
adapting our Wula soup to Bak Kut Teh, a local popular Chinese spareribs
soup. Our entries to the new countries have not only increased our restaurant
number and revenue, but also expanded our horizon in innovations.

Striving for improvements

i)

Supply chain management

Despite global logistics interruptions, and the upward pressure on the cost of
food and beverages consumed in face of the ongoing pandemic and the
conflict in Ukraine, we were able to mitigate general cost inflation through our
supply chain management, and product substitution or upgrade where we
introduced new, premium products with better margin. We also integrated the
central kitchen of TamdJdai and SamGor to reduce the costs in facilities,
enhance efficiency, and achieve optimisation of food production. New supply
chain management systems were also set up to optimise cost control and to
enhance production planning process.
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ii)

iii)

Staff management

We have implemented Smart Rostering to help maintain the right level of staff
and productivity as business volume fluctuates in tandem with the COVID-19
situation. Frontline staff were shifted to different workstations in order to boost
our takeaway and delivery service in light of dine-in bans. We also made swift
decisions regarding restaurant operating hours, renovation projects and
restaurant opening schedule by re-assessing the market needs. These nimble
arrangements helped keep rising labour costs in check.

Besides, we also invest into our employees and protect them from contracting
COVID-19. Ongoing training has been provided to both back office and
frontline staff across the board. Special working arrangements and assistance
to help combat the pandemic were carried out, which include daily measuring
and recording of body temperature, flexible work hours, rostering frontline staff
to different work locations to support the restaurants affected by the
COVID-19 outbreak, and arranging Rapid Antigen Test for staff when
necessary.

Overseas opportunities

During FY2022, with the solid foundation we built in the Hong Kong market,
we further cemented our roots in the international market by investing in
Mainland China and Japan. We are keeping our momentum in the international
expansion under the shadow of COVID-19. It has proven that our business
model is still transportable under border restrictions. We will continue to look
for opportunities to invest in the international market at a reasonable pace. The
investments do not limit to restaurant operation, but also in the systems,
talents recruitment, infrastructures and brand building.

ii)

iii)
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The success of our brands

In Hong Kong, the TamdJai and SamGor brands have always been able to evoke a
sense of comforting familiarity. It is not a coincidence as our branding and
marketing team works tirelessly to stay connected with the heart and mind of Hong
Kong people. Our campaigns were well received by the public audience as well as
highly regarded by marketing professionals. The following examples well illustrated
our innovative humorous approach and our trendy senses:

To pay tribute to our wonderful service team, “Tamjai Jeh Jeh”, we have launched
the “Tamdai X Master 7 Mother’'s Day Special” Campaign to raise awareness of the
great character and services from our “Jeh Jeh”, meanwhile, reinforcing our
down-to-earth, local roots. To celebrate Tamdai’s 25th anniversary, we have
organised a series of promotional campaigns to express our gratitude to our
community and our people. The “TamdJai Girl Group” (RBFZEAIEE), for example,
was formed to roll out a new song dedicated to the occasion in collaboration with
singer Terence Lam. The song, titled “Level 25 Mild” (T H&HBWHEK), has
generated more than 1.3 million views since its launch.

The “TamdJai X Hong Kong Design Institute 2046 Uniform Design Competition”, on
the other hand, was organised to engage students from the Hong Kong Design
Institute to design TamdJai’s brand-new uniforms. The event wrapped up with a
catwalk show by Janet Ma, Jessica C, Shirley Sham and Hillary Lau.

Inspired by the theme of immigration, SamGor also partnered with lan Chan, from
the popular Cantopop boyband Mirror, who starred in a micro movie as a Hong
Kong returnee after a few years abroad and a spoonful of SamGor soup base
brought all his fond memories of Hong Kong, which is one of the most popular
trending topics in recent years across different generations. The campaign had
attracted over 3.2 million video views, more than 30,000+ engagements and 5,000+
organic shares across platforms, ranking #8 among overall Hong Kong searches.
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These successful campaigns swept a total of 12 public relations (“PR”) and
marketing awards, including the prestigious “Campaign of the Year (Gold)” at the
Marketing Interactive — PR Awards 2021.

Our PR and branding campaigns have made an impact in other markets, too. In
Shenzhen, our initial restaurant launch campaign generated over 7,000,000 social
media exposures on the most popular social media platforms Dazhong Dianping,
Xiaohongshu and Douyin in April 2021 alone. The Guangzhou BigDay Grand
opening in March 2022, on the other hand, had successfully invited 21 media and
online celebrities in Guangzhou to experience the Tamdai menu. The Japan
restaurant launch on 31 March 2022 was an enormous achievement. We were
invited and featured by over 20 Japanese media introducing our brand. There were
over 100 Key Opinion Leaders in Japan being invited to experience the SamGor
menu, educating the market about our unique flavours.

PROSPECTS

While the past year has been a bumpy ride, our Group has demonstrated resilience
and agility in face of unanticipated situations. As the pandemic enters its third year,
we are optimistic that social restrictions will be lifted gradually, and our growth
momentum should resume in Hong Kong, Mainland China, and the overseas
markets.

We expect Hong Kong to continue to be the main revenue and profit engine for the
Group, which has laid a deep and solid foundation in the city. Being in tune with
the fast-changing customer behaviour in tandem with the pandemic’s development,
we are investing in further enhancing our restaurant-level efficiency in serving
dine-in, takeaway and delivery orders. Additional pieces of operation equipment are
being purchased, and new technologies such as customer relationship management
system and voice-ordering system are being deployed.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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We are also implementing new supply chain management systems in Hong Kong
and other markets to optimise cost control and enhance production planning
process. These should cushion ourselves against logistics hiccoughs and changes in
COVID-19-related policies on movements and mobility.

For the Mainland China market, we still hold high hopes for its great potential. In
fact, the initial revenue and customers responses of our new restaurants in
Shenzhen and Guangzhou had been favorable until the sudden downturn due to the
pandemic. We believe that our business will pick up as soon as social activities
resume since there is a strong recognition of our brand and products.

Continuing the strong rebound since November 2021 in the Singapore market, we
should resume new restaurant opening activities, adapt our business model to the
pulse of its newly revived consumer market, and increase profitability.

For Japan, we have been encouraged by the rapturous reception of our first
restaurant in Tokyo. As market activities start picking up again in Japan, we are
planning to open two more restaurants in the first quarter of FY2023 to capture the
market momentum with the robust support of Toridoll Holdings Corporation
(“Toridoll Japan”), a controlling shareholder of the Company.

PERFORMANCE OF RESTAURANT OPERATIONS

To supplement the consolidated statement of profit or loss presented in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), we also use operating
profit and operating profit margin which are not required by, or presented in
accordance with, HKFRSs. These supplemental measures will be helpful for the
management, the investors and other interested parties to assess the profitability of
our business operation.
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The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the Group’s operating profit and
operating profit margin, which provide additional information of our restaurant-level

performance and are the non-HKFRS financial measures:

TRINEAEEEE

SRR

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1+—HLEFE

MEREENBERERNFS &
EF' BERMEREEIXENEINENRBRIEREME

Change in
2022 2021 percentage
===z —T_—F BOLLEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FERT T
Revenue g 2,275,298 1,794,693 26.8%
Restaurant and central kitchen operating costs: EBERPREELE R
— Cost of food and beverages consumed — FIEAR M ERRERK A (518,267) (411,464) 26.0%
— Staff costs™ — BIRAO (592,523) (475,419) 24.6%
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets, — ERAREERE -
rental and related expenses™ e kEERAZ (403,058) (351,081) 14.8%
— Consumables and packaging — EM ke (62,983) (48,818) 29.0%
— Utilities expenses — KERE (53,000) (36,135) 46.7%
— Handling charges — FEEHAH (58,286) (55,468) 5.1%
— Advertising and promotion — BEERHE (46,639) (21,682) 115.1%
— Cleaning expenses — BERRAX (16,919) (14,147) 19.6%
— Repairs and maintenance — BIERIRE (15,232) (12,067) 26.2%
— Other expenses! — Hapzo (31,721) (23,566) 34.6%
Operating profit KR HE 476,670 344,846 38.2%
Operating profit margin RERBE=E 20.9% 19.2%
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Note:

(1) Represent relevant costs attributable to our restaurants and central kitchens and exclude any costs
attributable to headquarters and offices. For details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
“Financial review — Staff costs”, “Financial review — Depreciation of right-of-use assets, rental and
related expenses” and “Financial review — Other expenses”.

Although some of these financial measures are reconcilable to the line items in our
consolidated statement of profit or loss as reported under HKFRSs, the use of the
non-HKFRS financial measures has limitations as an analytical tool, and
Shareholders and potential investors should not consider them in isolation from, or
as a substitute for or superior to analysis of, our results of operations or financial
conditions as reported under HKFRSs. Furthermore, these financial measures may
not be comparable to other similarly titled measures used by other companies.

Revenue

Our revenue increased by 26.8% from HK$1,794.7 million in FY2021 to HK$2,275.3
million in FY2022. The increase was due to the increase in the number of
restaurants in operation; and growth in comparable restaurants revenue as
evidenced by the increase in average daily revenue per restaurant, average daily
number of bowls served per seat and average spending per customer. In the first
three quarters of FY2022, our performance, driven by the results of our Hong Kong
restaurants, had recovered to the same level as or was better than the level before
the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, due to our extensive restaurant network
and our food being highly suitable for takeaway and delivery orders. In addition to
our continuous strong takeaway and delivery revenue, the relaxation of social
distancing measures in the first three quarters of FY2022 also drove the growth of
dine-in orders. However, the stringent social distancing measures and the work-
from-home arrangements implemented as a result of the fifth wave of the COVID-19
outbreak in the last quarter of FY2022, inevitably affected our revenue in this
period.
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Revenue by geographic location BB B E o Wk s
The table below sets forth the revenue by geographic location for the years 27l & H R4 E i IR 67 B 215 B U2k
indicated:
Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1+—HLEFE Change in
2022 2021 percentage
—E=-Z= T —F B EE
HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FH&T FAET
Hong Kong A 2,221,773 1,783,762 24.6%
Mainland China H B A b 27,776 - N/A A~ iE
Singapore s 25,698 10,931 135.1%
Japan A7 51 - N/A i
Total Rt 2,275,298 1,794,693 26.8%
—Dine-in - ¥R 51.7% 50.4%
—Takeaway and delivery! — IEEWMKEEFEO 48.3% 49.6%
Note: MiEE -
(1)  Comprises takeaway orders made at the restaurants and delivery orders fulfilled through online (1)  BEREETHIINEE M EREBE LINEFETHEIIE

delivery platforms.
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Comparable restaurants revenue by geographic location
The table below sets forth the revenue of our comparable restaurants®” by
geographic location for the years indicated:

RBUES SN THLRERE RS
TRINERARFREIRIELE 35 # A LB RO

ﬁ .

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLHFE

Change in

2022 2021 percentage

—2-C —E-—F BOLEH

HK$’000 HK$’'000 %

FET FHET
Hong Kong BA 1,698,133 1,549,911 9.6%
Note: M T

(1) Comparable restaurants are defined as restaurants in full operation throughout the years under (1)  AILEBREBEATANEEALRFE-ErmELENEE T

comparison, which exclude restaurants that are newly-opened, closed or renovated for a period
over 30 days during the years concerned. In FY2022, all of the comparable restaurants were
located in Hong Kong.

Non-HKFRS financial measures — Operating profit and operating profit
margin

The operating profit margin of our restaurant operations increased from 19.2% in
FY2021 to 20.9% in FY2022, mainly due to the (i) decrease in our staff costs as a
percentage of revenue attributable to the improvement of manpower efficiency; (ii)
decrease in depreciation of right-of-use assets, rental and related expenses as a
percentage of revenue, attributable to the improvement in our restaurant
performance; (i) decrease in handling charges as a percentage of revenue; partially
offset by (iv) increase in utilities expenses as a percentage of revenue as we
received less utility subsidies in FY2022; and (v) increase in advertising and
promotion expenses for the branding campaign and for the new market promotions
in Mainland China and Japan.
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Key performance indicators of our restaurants

The table below sets forth the overall key performance indicators of our restaurants

by geographic location for the years indicated:

ERIEANER

TRIER A REFRERNBEVES SN ERERIRE

IR -

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F

Average spending per customer (HK$)® BEEAEE(EBT)O
Hong Kong BE 59.7 58.3
Mainland China A A3 58.3 N/A =i
Singapore Hnig 83.0 83.0
Japan® BZAR® 96.0 N/A A~ iE
Overall =g 59.8 58.4
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Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Average daily number of bowls served per seat® BYSENEHBE®
Hong Kong BB 6.4 6.0
Mainland China AR A b 4.4 N/A i
Singapore 703 2.8 3.3
Japan® A 7@ 7.7 N/A 138 A
Overall e 6.3 6.0
Average daily revenue per restaurant (HK$)® A EEEWRZE (Bx)e
Hong Kong > 41,060 37,472
Mainland China HR B A, 19,666 N/A 38 A
Singapore o 23,089 25,842
Japan® HZA&R® 51,370 N/A i A
Overall e 40,175 37,369
Notes: P
(1) Calculated by dividing the revenue generated from our restaurants by the total number of customers (1)  REBAELEWRBARTETEEE - RMAELORR
served. We use the number of bowls of mixian sold as a proxy for the number of customers MERETRBOEZAZ -
served.

(2)  Calculated by dividing the total number of bowls served (including dine-in, takeaway and delivery  (2) ~ REHERB(BEER - IINEEREIFPIIE)GRUZEER

orders) by the total seating capacity calculated with reference to the number of seats in the RGN RS BT ER R AR - BRAGEZERE
respective floor area of our restaurants by total operation days divided by the total number of MREBEHTE -
restaurants.
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) Calculated by dividing the revenue generated from our restaurants by the total restaurant operation
days.
4) Represented the key performance indicators of our Shinjuku restaurant in Japan on 31 March 2022,

its first operation day.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue increased by 26.8% from HK$1,794.7 million in FY2021 to HK$2,275.3
million in FY2022. The increase was due to the increase in the number of
restaurants in operation; and growth in comparable restaurants revenue as
evidenced by both the increase in average daily revenue per restaurant, average
daily number of bowls served per seat and average spending per customer.

Cost of food and beverages consumed

Our cost of food and beverages consumed increased by 26.0% from HK$411.5
million in FY2021 to HK$518.3 million in FY2022, which was generally in line with
the increase in our revenue. Our cost of food and beverages consumed as a
percentage of revenue was 22.9% and 22.8% in FY2021 and FY2022, respectively.

Other net income

Our other net income decreased significantly from HK$167.8 million in FY2021 to
HK$57.7 million in FY2022, primarily attributable to (i) the decrease in government
subsidies mainly from the government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to us for the purpose of easing the impact caused by COVID-19; and (i) the
decrease in rental concessions from our landlords in Hong Kong in relation to
COVID-19.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

@) HEEMELAWGHRAERAEEAYGE -

4) HEErHBEERREEEEXE T _F=A=+—HHEE

BEIERR -

5 %5 151 /8
g 35
RFE KR —F - RFE 01,7947 H BB T

MN26.8% = =F = —MIRFEM2,275.3B EETT B
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HAi WA F 5
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Staff costs

Our overall staff costs (including restaurant, central kitchen and headquarters and
offices staff) increased by 29.2% from HK$559.4 million in FY2021 to HK$722.8
million in FY2022, which were primarily due to () the effect from the increase in
restaurant headcount due to the expansion of restaurant network; and (ii) the effect
from the increase in headquarters and offices headcount coping with the expansion

EIHAK

BMNBEEINA(RIEERE  FRERERBIHUAR
MEEET) R T - RFERS59.48 &5 LM
202%E T - "HIRFEMT28EEETL TEARN

(ERRPEEASHERASEM  Ri)REHERS
B - R R B AT S Mg MERRHERAS -

in Mainland China, Singapore and Japan markets. Our staff costs as a percentage M _—= _*ﬁﬁﬁﬁlif&_7 TZHMREE - BIKAMA
of revenue was 31.2% and 31.8% in FY2021 and FY2022, respectively. WM B DD 5 &31.2% 5% 31.8% °
The following table sets forth a breakdown of our staff costs by function for the TRFIEHPLETREEZIRBEALEI DA E TR AR :
years indicated:

Year ended 31 March

BE=ZA=1+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FHE&T FHET

Restaurant staff ZEET 568,759 78.7% 453,491 81.1%
Central kitchen staff RREREET 23,764 3.3% 21,928 3.9%
Headquarters and offices staff R PERE T 130,285 18.0% 84,023 15.0%
Total FEE 722,808 100% 559,442 100%

Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment

Our depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment increased by 38.7% from
HK$66.5 million in FY2021 to HK$92.2 million in FY2022, mainly attributable to the
increase in the number of our restaurants.
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Depreciation of right-of-use assets, rental and related expenses

Our depreciation of right-of-use assets, rental and related expenses increased by
16.2% from HK$359.9 million in FY2021 to HK$418.4 milion in FY2022, mainly
attributable to the increase in the number of our restaurants, partially offset by the
saving due to central kitchen integration in FY2021.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our depreciation of right-of-use
assets, rental and related expenses by function for the years indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EAREEFRE HEREMMAX

BPOEREEERE HeMEBERXH -T -8
BEFER359.98 BB T M6 2% E—F - —HHF
EH418.48 8B TEARNERKEEM  HER =
T —MBRFEPREFEAMSINRE B EHE -

TRINTRAIRFEEBESINEREEENE - H
T MAERRX A

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FHEx FET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets, KRBT ZIERE AR
rental and related expenses BENE Hak
attributable to: HERX
—Restaurant — £ 389,823 93.2% 332,857 92.5%
— Central kitchen — FREE 13,235 3.2% 18,224 5.1%
—Headquarters and offices — BEHRNPER 15,324 3.6% 8,826 2.4%
Total @st 418,382 100% 359,907 100%
Consumables and packaging EMkE%

Our consumables and packaging increased by 29.0% from HK$48.8 million in
FY2021 to HK$63.0 million in FY2022, primarily attributable to the increase in the
volume of our takeaway and delivery orders. Our consumables and packaging as a
percentage of revenue was 2.7% and 2.8% in FY2021 and FY2022, respectively.

BIWMEM R RE S - —WRFEN4IS88EEET
EM29.0%E T - —_HHFEMNI0OBRAEIL 2
MRINEEIKRE J)EaTﬁﬁﬁz%imo:s:—ﬁMkirg
RZZTZ_BBRFE M EERERENE S LS5
B2.7% 5% 2.8% °
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Utilities expenses

Our utilities expenses increased by 46.7% from HK$36.1 milion in FY2021 to
HK$53.0 million in FY2022, mainly attributable to the increase in the number of our
restaurants. Our utilities expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from 2.0%
in FY2021 to 2.3% in FY2022, mainly because the amount of utility subsidies
received by us decreased in FY2022.

Advertising and promotion

Our advertising and promotion expenses increased by 115.1% from HK$21.7 million
in FY2021 to HK$46.6 million in FY2022, primarily attributable to more branding and
promotion campaigns in Singapore and the new market entry PR campaigns and
promotions in Mainland China and Japan, as well as the general increase in the
marketing and branding expenditure in Hong Kong.

Listing expenses

Listing expenses represent professional fees incurred in relation to the Company’s
global offering as described in the Company’s prospectus dated 23 September
2021 (the “Prospectus”), which was completed on 7 October 2021 (the “Global
Offering”). We incurred and recognised in profit or loss listing expenses of HK$7.2
million and HK$17.3 million in FY2021 and FY2022, respectively.

Other expenses

Our other expenses increased by 46.4% from HK$34.9 milion in FY2021 to
HK$51.1 million in FY2022, primarily attributable to the increase in headquarters and
offices expenses, with the additional offices in new markets.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of our other expenses by function for

the years indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRIIRR R R F R IR B e 8 0 1) B Al FE ST AR AR -

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—EBEC-CF - 5
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
TERT TATT

Other expense attributable to: REATEENEMFS
— Restaurant™ — ZEEO 18,896 37.0% 14,236 40.8%
—Central kitchen® — FRERFO 12,825 25.1% 9,330 26.7%
—Headquarters and offices® — I MR RO 19,382 37.9% 11,338 32.5%
Total Mt 51,103 100% 34,904 100%
Notes: B EE -
1) Mainly consisted of insurance expenses and point-of-sale system maintenance costs. (1) TEAERBRHAYRESNINETE RGN AR -
2) Mainly consisted of logistics expenses. ) TEBEMREY -
(3) Mainly consisted of services fees to Toridoll Holding Limited (“Toridoll HK”) and Toridoll Japan, audit  (3) TEGRFARMNZIZEBRER AT ([ERMZEE ) &Toridoll B 2

fees and other miscellaneous expenses.

Finance costs

Our finance costs remained stable at HK$14.5 milion and HK$14.9 million in

FY2021 and FY2022, respectively.

SRS E Bt EREMMEEMS
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Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased from HK$32.5 milion in FY2021 to HK$42.1
million in FY2022, which was generally in line with the increase in our profit before
taxation adjusted for government subsidies, which is non-taxable in nature. Our
adjusted effective tax rate (being the income tax expense divided by the profit
before taxation adjusted for government subsidies) increased from 19.6% in FY2021
to 22.1% in FY2022. No provision for tax outside Hong Kong has been made as
our subsidiaries outside Hong Kong did not have any assessable profits in both
FY2021 and FY2022.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year was HK$287.8 million in FY2021
and HK$203.0 million in FY2022. Excluding the impact of listing expenses and
government subsidies, our adjusted profit for the year was HK$165.5 million and
showed a growth of 17.8% compared to HK$140.4 million in FY2021.

Our profit margin was 16.0% and 8.9% in FY2021 and FY2022, respectively, while
our adjusted profit margin was 7.8% and 7.3% in FY2021 and FY2022,
respectively.

Right-of-use assets

Our right-of-use assets increased from HK$563.8 million as at 31 March 2021 to
HK$700.8 million as at 31 March 2022 as we entered into more tenancy
agreements for our restaurants and offices.
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Inventories

Our inventories mainly consist of our food ingredients and beverages consumed in
our restaurant operations, including meat, meat balls, offal, vegetables, and mixian.
Our inventories increased from HK$13.6 million as at 31 March 2021 to HK$16.0
million as at 31 March 2022, mainly attributable to the expansion of our restaurant
network. Our inventory turnover days decreased from 11.8 days in FY2021 to 10.4
days in FY2022.

Trade and other receivables and deposits and prepayments

Our trade and other receivables and deposits and prepayments included (i) trading
balances with our customers with smart card settlement; (i) cash-in-transit pending
to be deposited into our bank accounts held by a secured logistics service
provider; (iii) utilities deposits; (iv) prepayments for purchases of fixed assets and
prepaid insurance; and (v) receivables of government subsidies for the purpose of
easing COVID-19 impact. Our trade and other receivables and deposits and
prepayments increased from HK$172.9 milion as at 31 March 2021 to HK$256.1
million as at 31 March 2022, mainly due to the expansion of our operations and the
increase of receivables of government subsidies.

Trade and other payables and accruals and deposits received

Our trade and other payables and accruals and deposits received included (i) the
purchase cost of food ingredients and beverages for restaurant operations; (ii)
accrued operating costs of our restaurants, offices and central kitchens; (iii) contract
liabilities generated from the loyalty programme and coupons distributed; and (iv)
deposits received from the logistics service provider. Our trade and other payables
and accruals and deposits received increased from HK$170.5 million as at 31
March 2021 to HK$199.4 million as at 31 March 2022, as a result of the expansion
of our operations.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Lease liabilities

Our lease liabilities increased from HK$581.4 milion as at 31 March 2021 to
HK$708.1 million as at 31 March 2022, which was mainly due to new tenancy
agreements for restaurants and offices entered into by us during FY2022.

Liquidity and financial resources

We principally fund our working capital from internally generated cash flows. As at
31 March 2022, our cash and cash equivalents were HK$1,365.2 million (31 March
2021: HK$460.9 million). The significant increase was due to the proceeds received
from the Global Offering. The majority of the bank deposits and cash were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 March 2022, we did not have any interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (31 March 2021: Nil). Accordingly, the gearing ratio is not available.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2022, we pledged HK$1.4 million cash deposits to a bank in
relation to the bank guarantees to landlords for our leases (31 March 2021:
HK$10.1 million). Save as disclosed above, we did not have any other pledge of
assets which were considered material to us.

Foreign currency exposures

The Group’s revenue and costs are mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi, Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen. The fluctuations of Renminbi,
Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen against Hong Kong dollars may affect the
Group’s results. The Group does not have any currency hedging policy and has not
entered into any hedging or other instrument to reduce currency risks. The Group
will continue to closely monitor the foreign currency exposure and take appropriate
measures to minimise the risk when necessary.
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Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2022, we had capital commitments of HK$8.4 million (31 March
2021: HK$9.5 million).

Contingent liabilities
As at the date of this annual report, we did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Significant investments held by the Group
There were no significant investments held by us as at 31 March 2022.

Material acquisitions and disposals by the Group
During FY2022, we had not made any material acquisition and disposal.

Future plans for material investments or additions of capital assets

We will continue to focus on our business strategies as set out in the Prospectus.
As at the date of this annual report, save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this
annual report, we have no plan for any other material investments or additions of
capital assets.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2022, we had 2,990 employees (31 March 2021: 2,688). The
employees (including full-time and part-time
employees) generally includes basic salary, discretionary bonus and incentives, and
equity settled share-based payments (eligible employees only). The basic salary is
generally based on the particular employee’s work experience, academic and
professional qualifications (if relevant) and the prevailing market salary levels. The
discretionary bonus and incentives are generally based on, among other things, the
financial performance of the Group. The equity settled share-based payments is to
motivate and retain eligible employees to optimise their performance efficiency for
the benefit of the long term growth of the Group.

remuneration package of our
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We also provided frontline restaurant staff with training in various aspects, such as
operational procedures, customer services, cleaning and sanitation, food safety and
work safety. Our operations management teams will monitor and supervise our new
staff in terms of quality of food and services, hygiene and manpower planning. We
also provided our managerial staff with various types of on-the-job training in
relation to, among other things, cost control, complaints handling, human resources,
environmental, social and governance and legal issues.

Net proceeds from the listing

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 October 2021 following the
completion of issue of 335,008,000 new Shares at an offer price of HK$3.33 per
Share. The net proceeds from the Global Offering, after deducting the underwriting
fees, commissions and other related expenses payable by the Company, amounted
to approximately HK$1,051.0 million (the “Net Proceeds”). As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 October 2021, the Over-allotment Option (as
defined in the Prospectus) was not exercised and lapsed on 28 October 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

The Company intends to use the Net Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the AR RSB RIEFZHEAERREREMAN AR - &
Prospectus. As at 31 March 2022, an analysis of the utilisation of Net Proceeds is Z_-ZT-—F=A=+—H ' FIEFEFBEABILY

as follows:

Proposed use of Net Proceeds

Approximate% of

ran T

Utilised Net
Proceeds as at

Unutilised Net
Proceeds as at

Expected timeline of

as set out in the Prospectus Net Proceeds Net Proceeds 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 full utilisation
R-ZB-=F R-B=-—F
=R=+-H =R=+-H
RENAE EERARE ief R B8 P A4
RRERFMEMSRATERTRARE BEBA% FERERE NERR NEFE TYEARENER
(HKS$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B&ETL) (BE&BT) (R&EL)
Expansion of the restaurant network 57.4% 603.3 .7 531.6 Before 31 March 2024
BREERE ZEZME=ZA=+—AA
Expanding the central kitchen in Hong Kong and establishing new 9.4% 98.8 - 98.8 Before 31 March 2024
central kitchens in Mainland China, Singapore and Australia
BREBODTRERE RIEREIAM 37005 KRN &5 60 RE ZEZME=ZA=+—AA
B
Refurbishment of the restaurants and enhancing the operating 10.5% 110.4 15.2 95.2 Before 31 March 2024
equipment
BREBRRALERE ZEZME=ZA=+—AA
Implementing a customer relationship management system, a voice 5.1% 53.6 6.7 46.9 Before 31 March 2024
ordering system, an enterprise resources planning system and
upgrading the information and technology infrastructure
HOTEPHEERAS Z5i225 CEERREAZS UK ZEZME=ZA=+—AA
RARMOE AR BEERRE
International brand building and new market entry promotion 7.8% 82.0 29.3 52.7 Before 31 March 2024
Bl iR R RET G A ZEZME=ZA=+—AA
General corporate purposes and working capital 9.8% 102.9 13.0 89.9 Before 31 March 2024
—REFREREEES ZEZME=ZA=+—AA
Total 100% 1,051.0 135.9 9151
@t

AFERERAT © 20212255 45



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Lau Tat Man
BERESE

EEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Tat Man (2|3 R), aged 54, was appointed as a Director on 1 October
2018 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 8 April 2021. Mr. Lau is
the chairman and chief executive officer of our Company and a director of all of our
subsidiaries.

Mr. Lau has over 32 years of experience in the food and beverage industry in Hong
Kong and the Asia Pacific region. Prior to joining our Group, he worked as a
managing director of Asia Pacific at Select Service Partner Asia Pacific Limited, a
subsidiary of the SSP Group PLC, a company listed on the London Stock
Exchange (stock code: SSPG). Also, he worked as a managing director of the quick
service restaurants group of Cafe’ de Coral Group Limited, a subsidiary of Café de
Coral Holdings Limited (“Café de Coral”), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 341).

Mr. Lau holds a master’s degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong and was placed on the dean’s list in 2010
to 2011.
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Ms. Chan Ping, Rita
BR¥EZ

Ms. Chan Ping, Rita (Pf3¥), aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director on
8 April 2021. Ms. Chan joined our Group in November 2018 as a chief financial
officer.

Ms. Chan has over 21 years of finance and accounting experience in the food and
beverage industry of both Hong Kong and the Mainland China market. Prior to
joining our Group, she served as a group financial controller of Tang Palace (China)
Holdings Limited, a food and beverage chain group in Mainland China listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1181), and then as a finance
director for food and beverage division of Miramar Hotel & Investment Co., Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 71).

Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce accounting and a master’s
degree in finance from the Curtin University of Technology (now known as Curtin
University) in Australia.

Ms. Chan is a fellow member of the Association of International Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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ExekaREERE

Mr. Lee Yuk Hang
FEELRE

Mr. Lee Yuk Hang (ZE18), aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on
8 April 2021. Mr. Lee joined our Group in July 2015 as a purchasing manager and
was promoted as senior group purchasing manager in April 2021.

Mr. Lee has over 21 years of procurement experience in the food and beverage
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he worked as a purchasing officer of Cafe’ De
Coral, and a purchasing manager of Yeh Lam Kwok Catering Holdings Limited in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration (purchasing and
supply management stream) from Lingnan College (now known as Lingnan
University) in Hong Kong and a diploma in food and nutritional sciences from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Sugiyama Takashi
ZlLERLEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sugiyama Takashi (#Z1UZ %), aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 8 April 2021.

Mr. Sugiyama joined Toridoll Japan in February 2019 and is currently a director of
Toridoll Japan. Mr. Sugiyama is also a director of certain subsidiaries of Toridoll
Japan, including Toridoll HK.

Mr. Sugiyama has over 20 years of management consultancy experience. Prior to
joining Toridoll Japan and our Group, he served as a director at Deloitte Tohmatsu
Consulting Co., Ltd (now known as ABeam Consulting Ltd), a director at Maval
Partners Inc. (now known as PwC Advisory LLC.), and a partner at Deloitte
Tohmatsu Consulting LLC., a company principally engaged in management
consultancy in Japan.

Mr. Sugiyama holds a bachelor’'s degree in economics from the Keio University,
Japan and an executive master of business administration degree jointly from the
University of California in Los Angeles John E. Anderson Graduate School of
Management in the United States and the National University of Singapore in
Singapore.
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ExekaREERE

Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi
HAEER L&

Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi (¥75%88), aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 8 April 2021.

Mr. Shinkuma has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry. He joined
Toridoll Japan in February 2014 and is currently the head of legal and compliance
of Toridoll Japan, Mr. Shinkuma is also a director of certain subsidiaries of Toridoll
Japan.

Prior to joining Toridoll Japan and our Group, he served as a lawyer at Nagashima
Ohno and Tsunematsu (& * XE ¢ BHUEEEHFT), and an attorney-at-law at T.
Kunihiro & Co. Attorneys-at-law (E 4 # 4 A £ E/FT) in Japan.

Mr. Shinkuma holds a bachelor’s degree in laws from the Kobe University in Japan
and a juris doctor degree from the University of Tokyo Graduate Schools for Law
and Politics in Japan. Also, he has the attorney-at-law qualification from the Japan
Federation of Bar Associations.
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ExgReREEE

Mr. Tomitani Takeshi (EAER¥), aged 39, was appointed as a non-executve BARSELEE 395 M_ZET-_—FNAT+HEZTAE
Director on 10 June 2022. FHEHITESE -

Mr. Tomitani has over 5 years of experience in the global management consulting EBALEEEHREERNITERABIBSFLH - %
industry. He joined Toridoll Japan in April 2021 and is currently the deputy division ==~ —4Pg AN AToridollHZA + B Ais& Toridoll B 7%
director of the international business division and the general manager of the global BB 3 75 30 Sl 48 B K 2 PR AR B ZRARATIE -

strategy department of Toridoll Japan.

Prior to joining Toridoll Japan and our Group, he served as a senior consultant at  #EANA Toridoll B &R & AR EE A » £ Roland Bergerz (T

Mr. Takeshi Tomitani Roland Berger, and then project leader at Boston Consulting Group. =R EER - B1g R K T8 A % B (Boston Consulting
EARAREXE Group)EEIEE £ & °

Mr. Tomitani holds two bachelor’ degrees in Economics and International Relations EA LA A ER BRI KX B2LESMEIRBERLN
from Michigan State University in the United States. M 2+ 21y o

AFERERAT @ 20212258 5



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EZekaREEE

Mr. Loo Kwok Wing
EEKEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Loo Kwok Wing (E %), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 14 September 2021.

Mr. Loo has over 31 years of experience in the finance industry. Prior to joining our
Group, from September 2013 to May 2017, he served as the head of equities at
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. (“China Minsheng Bank”), a Chinese bank in
Hong Kong, where he was primarily responsible for supervising the equity-related
affairs of the bank. During his tenure at China Minsheng Bank, he also served as
the head of securities and asset management of CMBC International Holdings
Limited, a subsidiary of China Minsheng Bank. From April 2018 to March 2021, he
served as a director of marketing, business development and finance at MSQ Asset
Management (HK) Limited, an asset management company in Hong Kong, where he
was primarily responsible for developing business strategies.

Mr. Loo holds a bachelor’'s degree in social sciences from The University of Hong
Kong in Hong Kong and is a Chartered Financial Analyst qualified by the CFA
Institute.
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Mr. Lee Kwok Ming
FEBAXE

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming (ZEIfH), aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 14 September 2021.

Mr. Lee has over 33 years of experience in financial management and corporate
finance. Prior to joining our Group, from June 2006 to March 2020, he served as
the chief financial officer of Stella International Holdings Limited, a footwear
developer and manufacturer listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1836), where he was primarily responsible for overseeing the financial matters
of the group.

Since June 2003, Mr. Lee has been serving as an independent non-executive
director and chairman of the audit committee of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co.,
Ltd., a Mainland China supermarket operator listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 980). Since June 2018, he has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of Want Want China Holdings Limited, a
Mainland China food and beverage manufacturer listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 151). Since July 2020, he has been serving as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration and nomination committees of Bossini International Holdings
Limited, an apparel brand owner, retailer and franchiser listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 592).

Mr. Lee holds a higher diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in Hong Kong and a
master’s of science degree in business administration from the University of Bath,
United Kingdom.

Mr. Lee is an associate member of The Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants (currently known as The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants) in the United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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EZekaREEE

Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung
BEELE

Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung (#Z#358), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 14 September 2021.

Mr. Yeung has over 27 years of experience in the consumer, retail, food and
beverage industries. Prior to joining our Group, he served in PT Sarimelati Kencana,
Birdland Taiwan KFC, Birdland (Hong Kong) Limited, Little Sheep Group Limited,
and International Housewares Retail Company Limited (“IH Retail”), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1373), where he was
primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and recommendations on the
operations and management of the respective groups. From March 2011 to
December 2019, he served as an industrial adviser at EQT Funds Management
Limited, a company principally engaged in global investment, where he was
primarily responsible for providing advice on portfolio companies relating to food and
consumer products. Since February 2014, he has been serving as a director of
Shanghai Shihao Foods Co., Ltd.* (E/BtHIFRERBRAF]) (formerly known as
Shanghai Shihao Catering Management Co., Ltd.* (F/BHHFEHEE R A7), a
company principally engaged in operating the Jixiang Wonton (& #££84%) brand in
the Mainland China, where he is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice
and recommendations on operations and management of the group. Since August
2013, he has been serving as a director of CFB Group, a company principally
engaged in operating the Dairy Queen and Papa John’s brands franchises and other
local brands in the Mainland China, where he is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and recommendations on operations and management of the group.
Since December 2018, Mr. Yeung has been serving as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit, nomination and remuneration
committees of IH Retalil.

Mr. Yeung holds a bachelor of science degree from the University of Oregon in the
U.S. and an executive master of business administration (master of management)
degree jointly from J.L. Kellogg Graduate School of Management of Northwestern
University in the United States and the School of Business and Management at
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Yeung Siu Cheong
BLERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Yeung Siu Cheong (#4> &), aged 54, is the business development director of
our Group. He joined our Group in January 2019.

Mr. Yeung has over 26 years of business development experience in the food and
beverage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Restaurants (Hong Kong) Limited, currently a franchisee of McDonald’s Corporation
(“McDonald’s”) in Hong Kong, The Dairy Farm Company Limited — Mannings, and
Shanghai McDonald’s Food Co., Ltd., currently a franchisee of McDonald’s
Corporation in the Mainland China.

he worked with McDonald’s

Mr. Yeung holds a bachelor’s degree in Chinese from Lingnan College (now known
as Lingnan University) in Hong Kong and a bachelor’s degree in laws from the
Peking University in the Mainland China.

Mr. Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing and a professional
housing manager in Hong Kong by the Housing Managers Registration Board. He is
also a chartered member of the Chartered Institute of Housing and a professional
member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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ExekaREERE

Mr. Lau Chi Kwan (2I/XE), aged 58, joined our Group in November 2018. He is ZIRE%4E > 58% W T — \F+—AIMAKRER -
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall operations of restaurants under the HEZBEEN—FJREEEMEELE -
SamGor brand.

Mr. Lau has over 32 years of hospitality experience in the food and beverage ZISEANRBITERARIFNEFTLER - IMAKREER
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he worked in JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, B MIBNEBIWESEEL « ELEMAR AR - B
Maxim’s Caterers Limited, group food and beverage department at Miramar Hotel XXk FHRARIEBEEEDEGR QA (ML
and Investment Company, Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the 71)&BE &Ik KK4% -

Stock Exchange (stock code: 71), and Café de Coral.

Mr. Lau Chi Kwan

BRERE Mr. Lau holds the basic food hygiene certificate for hygiene manager from the ZISEABEBENTALREEEERNEFLETEREARN
School of Continuing and Professional Education of City University of Hong Kong. RMETERBE -

Mr. Wu Ka Fai (#Z}€), aged 42, first joined our Group in October 2015 as an #HREEE @ 42 R-_ZT—AF+AMAAREFBTE
operations manager, and re-joined our Group as an operations director in July B KRR -_ZE—NFEABRIMAKREE @ EZIZE
2019. Currently, he is the general manager of Tam Jai Shenzhen. ERE R BAEFARIIABLIE -

Mr. Wu has over 23 years of experience in the food and beverage industry. Prior to  #L R BRI TER B B2 F4LE - IMAKREEB R -
joining our Group, he worked at McDonald’s and Uni-China Investment & ZE{EBNEEZLNEEREERBE AT -
Development Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wu holds an International Vocational Qualification (IVQ) advanced diploma in #E4#E EEGIHTITERSHHE « I EF AL

Mr. Wu Ka Fai teaching, training and assessing learning (Chinese) from The City and Guilds of i (X)) BEEESHE @ MEEEERBAZEN
HR\hE London Institute in the United Kingdom and a bachelor's degree in business L& IREE(] o

administration from The University of Management and Technology in the United

States.
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Mr. Chow Wing Hung
BxigLE

Mr. Chow Wing Hung (7 #), aged 57, joined our Group as general manager of
Jointed-Heart Limited in June 2020. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
overall operations of restaurants under the Tamjai brand.

Mr. Chow has over 29 years of experience in the food and beverage industry. Prior
joining our Group, he worked in Café De Coral, Select Service Partners (SSP), and
McDonald’s Restaurants of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chow owns a Master degree in Business Administration (MBA) from City
University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Science (Hons) degree from the London
South Bank University, UK.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sin Man Yan (%t X fiX), aged 40, joined the Company in April 2022 and has
been the company secretarial manager of the Company since then. She is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She holds a bachelor’s
degree in business management and a master’ degree in corporate governance.
She has more than 15 years of experience in the field of company secretarial
services. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Sin worked for several listed companies
in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in providing framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies
and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

From the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2022, the Company has applied the principles as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Unless otherwise stated,
references made in this Corporate Governance Report to the CG Code to the provisions contained in Appendix
14 to Listing Rules applicable to the Company during FY2022.

The Board is of the view that, for FY2022, the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions as set
out in the CG Code, except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 (old code provision A.2.1) which states
that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual, and the reason for such deviation was further explained under the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive” in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board will continue to regularly review and monitor its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code as appropriate and maintain a high standard of corporate governance practice of the
Company.

DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company since the Listing Date.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors of the Company, all the Directors of the Company confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during FY2022.

The Board has also established written guidelines to regulate all dealings by informed persons who are likely to
be in possession of inside information in relation to the Company’s securities and unpublished information as
referred to code provision C.1.3 (old code provision A.6.4) of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEREREBE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EExg

Board composition EEg4AR

Up to the date of this report (i.e. 13 May 2022), the Board comprises 9 members, including 3 executive HEHEAREBH(-_ZT-—"FHA+T=H) EEFEH
Director(s), 3 non-executive Director(s) and 3 independent non-executive Director(s). Members of the Board are NEMEMHK @ BIEZZHRITES ZRIRTEER

listed below: ZRBUFRNTERE -EFGHEINTRNOT
Member(s) of the Board Position(s) Date of appointment as Director
EEENE8 Bz ZETRESHEHN
Executive Director{(s)

BITEE

Mr. Lau Tat Man Executive Director, chief executive officer and chairman of our Board 1 October 2018
BERESE WITES TRAEMRESFSTRE —ET-N\E+HA—H
Ms. Chan Ping, Rita Executive Director and chief financial officer 8 April 2021

PRS2+ WITESREEVBE —E-_—FMANAB
Mr. Lee Yuk Hang Executive Director and senior group purchasing manager 8 April 2021
FHELE HITEERSMNEERBLRE —ET-—FmMANA
Non-executive Director(s)

HHITEE

Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro (Note) Non-executive Director 1 April 2019

H AR 18 5 A (BT ) HEHITEF —E-NFHA—H
Mr. Sugiyama Takashi Non-executive Director 8 April 2021

NES i HEHITEF —ET-—%mMANA
Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi Non-executive Director 8 April 2021

FRRIR ST A& HEHITEF —ET-—%mMANA
Independent Non-executive Director{(s)

BUFHTEF

Mr. Loo Kwok Wing Independent non-executive Director 14 September 2021

B R EE BYIFEHITESF T —FAA+MA
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming Independent non-executive Director 14 September 2021
FEBAEE BYIFEHITESF T —FAA+MA
Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung Independent non-executive Director 14 September 2021
5158 BYIFEHITESF —E-FAA+IEA

Note: Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 10 June 2022, and on the same day Mr. Tomitani Takeshi ~ Mfisf: AR ABEEAR T - —F XA+ AREEIERTEE  BA
was appointed as a non-executive Director. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2022 for further information. EARLAEREZTARINTES - FLHARFAHAE-T
ZZFRNATENRAEUTEBESFE -

AFERERAT © 20212255 ]
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Attendance records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and the general

meetings of the Company held from the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2022 are set out below:

EEHFERE
EEEHE IWABRE_S__F=A=+—HEME
TNEZEEH EFZBQERNARFBREREN
FCERTIEINT -

Number of Attendance in Person/Number of Meeting(s)

BEHENRE S8R H

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

BExg EREES FMEES REZES

Lau Tat Man FER 2/2 — 1/1 11
Chan Ping, Rita BeR 55t 2/2 — — —
Lee Yuk Hang Z51E 2/2 — — —
Tanaka Kimihrio SRR /N ] 2/2 - — —
Sugiyama Takashi ZiESL 2/2 — — —
Shinkuma Satoshi 1 AREA 2/2 — - -
Loo Kwok Wing & Bl & 2/2 1/1 1/1 11
Lee Kwok Ming = 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Yeung Yiu Keung 15 2 58 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Responsibilities of the Directors and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible

for directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides direction to management by laying

down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interest and serving on Board committees, all non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of
the Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate
actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board is responsible for decision-making in all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. The Board has delegated its powers relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company to Mr. Lau Tat Man, the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”).

The Directors shall carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Each Director should also have a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business and is fully
aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEREREBE

FIEES  BRINTESNBIINTEERESS
RUZITENEEEHLR NINREXERE SEF
SENARAENEE - BEEB2EEFTEER 0 XK
ERSREENZERNEBERNEFTEETZESR
% 2RFMITER (BRBUINTESR) BARFN
BEMESELZERR -

BUFNTEFRERRARASBREZERS AR
ERERAREY REERLAYIBILHEIE T -

o]

FIBEESHA D M MKERRBEARRER - AIRE
EBERATRLSFKELEXRERZBZRUBITERAR
AINBE - ERAARREE

o

EXARARRRBERSAETEMBBNFE -

EZgREREMBEESRE  ERSNBEEE K
BENEE  AEEENERERE EARS(LHEAEE
BRNGEERE) HBER ZEEFURARFH
MEREEFH EFSCHEARRTEZTSRR
EERBAARR AR LEEREENEEREANREIT
B ((THRARJIZRELRE -

EREFAFFKERWETERERLER - AERE
AR ERARAREBROMEETRE

BEEFNEZETHARANEENERL T2 NEE
ARG R B@A ~ LA AR REMBEEBRUAK
ARABRGREABRTHEL -

AFERERAT © 20212258 3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEREREE

The Board has clearly set out the circumstances under which the management should report to and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the above said circumstances and ensures they remain appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any
legal actions taken against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis. Details of the insurance is discussed in the paragraph headed
“Permitted Indemnity” of the Report of the Directors.

Independent non-executive Directors

Since the Listing Date, the Board has at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors (representing one-third of
the number of members of the Board) with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence for the period from the Listing Date up to and including 31 March 2022 pursuant to rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all of them to be independent.

There are no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships between Board members.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All the Directors in office during FY2022, namely Mr. Lau Tat Man, Ms. Chan Ping, Rita, Mr. Lee Yuk Hang, Mr.
Tanaka Kimihiro, Mr. Sugiyama Takashi, Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi, Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Mr. Loo Kwok Wing and
Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung, have complied with code provision C.1.4 (old code provision A.6.5) of the CG Code and
participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, which
ensures that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
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All Directors in office during FY2022 have been provided with necessary induction training and materials to
ensure that they have proper understanding of the operation and business of the Company and their
responsibilities under the relevant laws, regulations and rules. The Company will continue to provide updates to
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 (old code provision A.2.1) of the CG Code, the role of chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Mr. Lau Tat Man is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. In view of the fact that Mr. Lau has been
assuming the responsibilities in the overall management and supervision of the daily operations of the Group
since October 2018, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Lau taking up
both roles for effective management and operations. Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from
such code provision is appropriate. Notwithstanding such deviation, the Directors are of the view that the Board
is able to work efficiently and perform its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues discussed in a timely
manner.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the old code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term subject to re-election, whereas the old code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that all
directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment and that every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a
specific term and is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years pursuant to terms and
conditions of their respective appointment letter, the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”) and the Listing Rules.

Under article 110 of the Articles of Association, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to
election by Shareholders at the next following annual general meeting after appointment. Pursuant to article 111
of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but less than one-third shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

In light of the foregoing requirements, Mr. Lau Tat Man, Mr. Lee Yuk Hang and Mr. Sugiyama Takashi shall retire
by rotation and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”). Mr. Tomitani Takeshi, who was appointed as a new non-executive Director on
10 June 2022, shall hold office until the forthcoming AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with specific written terms of reference explaining their roles, authorities and duties.
The terms of references of the Board committees are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of 4 members, namely Mr. Lau Tat Man, an executive Director, and
Mr. Loo Kwok Wing, Mr. Lee Kwok Ming and Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung, all being independent non-executive
Directors, with Mr. Loo Kwok Wing as the chairman.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include but are not limited to:

(i) making recommendations to the Board regarding the policy and structure for the remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policies; (i) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iv) considering and approving the grant of share
awards and/or share options to eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and/or share option
schemes of the Company.

During FY2022, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to discharge its duties including to discuss and
review the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management of the Company, to assess performance
of the executive Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management. The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members during
FY2022 is set out in the paragraph “Attendance records of Directors — Board of Directors” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of 4 members, namely Mr. Lau Tat Man, an executive Director, and
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Mr. Loo Kwok Wing and Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung, all being independent non-executive
Directors, with Mr. Lau Tat Man as the chairman.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include but are not limited to:

(i) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board.
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During FY2022, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to discharge its duties including to review and
discuss the nomination policy, procedures and criteria for nomination of the Directors, review and discuss the
Board diversity policy and to discuss all measurable objectives set for implementation thereof and the progress
made, and assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The attendance record of the
Nomination Committee members during FY2022 is set out in the paragraph “Attendance records of Directors —
Board of Directors” of this report.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of appointing
and re-appointing a Director.

Selection Criteria

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee would consider a variety of
factors including but not limited to:

° character and integrity;

° professional qualification, relevant skill, experience and knowledge;

° contribution to board diversity;

° commitment in available time and interest; and

° independence with reference to the requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in case of the
appointment or re-appointment of independent non-executive Director.

The above factors are not exhaustive and conclusive. The Nomination Committee has the final discretion to the
selection criteria.
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Nomination Procedure
The procedure of nominating a proposed candidate is as follows:

° nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by Nomination Committee;
° evaluation on the candidate based on the relevant selection criteria;

° performing due diligence in respect of the candidate and making recommendation for the Board’s
consideration and approval;

o assessing independence of the candidate if applicable;

o in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, reviewing the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the Board and/or the Shareholders for consideration in
connection with his/her re-election at general meetings; and

o convening a meeting of the Board to consider the appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a
Director

The Nomination Committee shall review the nomination policy and assess its effectiveness on a regular basis or
as required.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the objective and approach to achieve Board
diversity. The Group recognises the benefits of having a diversified Board and sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of the Group’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of the Board through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education background,
gender, age and ethnicity.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy and its implementation from time to time and at
least once annually to ensure its implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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Measurable objectives of board diversity

E=ZgZntWABERR

Measurable objectives Progress for achieving objectives
CIE:3-4=k: EREENER

Report annually on the outcome of the composition and structure of the Board Remain committed
SERBEESNERRLBERRE JER

Our Directors have a balanced mix of experiences, including overall management, brand improvement, business
development, legal, finance, auditing and accounting experiences. As at the date of this annual report (i.e.
13 May 2022), the ages of our Directors range from 44 years old to 64 years old. While our Group recognises
that the gender diversity at the Board level can be improved given its current composition of eight males and
one female as at the date of this annual report, the Group will continue to apply the principle of appointments
based on merits with reference to the Board diversity policy as a whole and the Group will continue to take
steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises of 3 members, namely Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Mr. Loo Kwok Wing and Mr. Yeung
Yiu Keung, all of them are independent non-executive Directors, with Mr. Lee Kwok Ming as the chairman.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include but are not limited to:
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(i) to review the financial statements and reports of the Company and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the external auditor before submission to the Board; (ii) to review and monitor the relationship with the
external auditor of the Company by reference to the work performed by the external auditor, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor; (iii) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial controls, internal
control system, risk management system and the associated procedures; (iv) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board; and (v) to
perform other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board.

During FY2022, the Audit Committee held one meeting to discharge its duties including to review the interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2021, the significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems and internal
audit function, the appointment of external auditor and relevant scope of works, connected transactions and
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties. The Audit Committee has been
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The attendance record of the Audit Committee
members during FY2022 is set out in the paragraph “Attendance records of Directors — Board of Directors” of
this report.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1 (old
code provision D.3.1) of the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the Company’s compliance with the code of
conducts, the CG Code, the compliance manual and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. The Board
has performed the above duties for FY2022.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The table below sets out details of fees paid/payable for audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG, the
auditor of the Company, for FY2022:

Services provided to the Company

B B % BN
TRINERARAZBMEFSEN T _MRFER
HEZB R IFRBRBE NN BAFS

Fees paid and payables

RN E =2 0 F S ERARENSER
HK$’000
FET
Audit services ZE R 2,330
Audit-related services!” ZEE RSO 1,678
Tax services 1% R 7% 268
Non-audit services® IEZ B RTE 533
Total BET 4,809
Note (1): The remuneration for audit-related services includes service fees in connection with initial public offering as the reporting  KiFE(1): HEMEBRENETHEIEEAB RS EE X ARKE
accountants. ARG ER -
©2): The remuneration for non-audit services includes internal control review service fees in connection with initial public offering of @) FRFEBRBEOTHEEEEE A AREENANBETEN
HK$253,000 and internal control consultation service fees of HK$280,000. BR 75 % F 253,000 7T K ) B & 1% 7 38 # F§ 280,000/ 7T ©
@3): In addition, audit services and tax services were provided by other auditors to subsidiaries outside Hong Kong for the year ended Q) I REBEZZT-__F=A=+—HILLFE HEZEH

31 March 2022 and the related fees amounted to HK$116,000 and HK$19,000, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts and financial statements of the
Company for FY2022 with a view of ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting standards
are complied with.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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A statement by the external auditors, KPMG, about their reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the independent auditors’ report on page 107 to page 116 and acknowledged by the
Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY
In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company secretary of the Company confirmed that for
FY2022, she took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

Under Article 62 of the Articles of Association, the Directors may whenever they think fit, and shall on requisition
in accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), convene an extraordinary general meeting. Pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the requisition of any one or more Shareholders
representing not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings of the Company. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Company stating the general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting. Pursuant to Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Directors must call a general meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become subject to the
requirement and the meeting so called must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the
notice convening the meeting. If the Directors do not do so, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, but the meeting must be called for a date not more than 3 months after the date on which
the Directors become subject to the requirement to call a meeting. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors duly to call the meeting shall be reimbursed by the
Company.
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Putting Forward Enquires to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, Shareholders may send their enquiries to the
Company in writing to the following address.

8th Floor of D2 Place ONE, No.9 Cheung Yee Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For attention to the Company Secretary)

For avoidance of doubt, the Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries, and
Shareholders must deposit and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiries
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order
to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS RELATIONS
Constitutional documents

Since the Listing Date, the Company has not made any changes to the Articles of Association. The Articles of
Association are available at the websites of the Company (https://tamjai-int.com/en) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Dividend policy

The Board has the discretion to declare dividend to the Shareholders from time to time, subject to the Articles of
Association and all applicable laws and regulations. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any declaration of
final dividend for the year will be subject to the passing of an ordinary resolution by the Shareholders at a
general meeting, while the Directors may from time to time resolve to pay to the Shareholders interim dividends
as appear to the Directors to be justified.

On 14 September 2021, the Board has resolved to adopt a dividend policy to set out the conditions of
declaration and payment of dividend to the Company’s shareholders by the Board.

Annual Report 2021/22

MEESFHEN
RAARABEFTSIELEAER - BRERA A 53U
ERHAAARRARFEEESR -

EBENERDEREHIID2 Place ONE 81
(FERWHEAERAIWE)

RELHE ARABNTRABOARELEN B
RAR R EREEREEREBNETERR
RSB - REWRERTE) - WREESH
24 BEFRRANER  UELK - RRAKAR
BOREIE T RS -

BRERBARKEERRZ

EREXH

BEMBH RARWENEEMAELEMNE - =
FEAR B AT A R A BI48 U5 (https:/tamjai-intl.com/cn) K B
22 BT #8 U (www.hkexnews.hk) & (] °

B BB

EXerMNBETRABCREIRKRSE - HAETERAA
KRB ERERNER - REERMAA - EIREFFE
AR EARBRREBMRAE LBBEBRER  ME
EATERBARRKNEERR/EENF RS -

RIZB-—FAA+TER  BESRTRAREBK
REEZERARRREE KN ASBE B ERAE -



We currently aim to pay a total dividend in respect of each financial year of not less than 30% of our profit
attributable to our owners. When recommending the payment of any dividend, the Board would normally
consider various factors, including but not limited to:
results of operations;
ii. financial performance;
ii.  profitability;
iv.  business development;
V. prospects;
vi.  capital requirements; and
vii.  economic outlook.
The dividend policy may be reviewed from time to time and the payment of any future dividend will be subject to
the Board’s discretion taking into account the interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole and will
be subject to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
E-communication
To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website https://tamjai-intl.com/en, where

up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance practices,
biographical information of the Board and other information are available for public access.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has formulated and adopted the risk management policy in providing direction in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. The main features of the risk management processes comprise 5 core
stages: (a) risk identification, (b) risk assessment and prioritisation, (c) risk response, (d) risk monitoring and (e)
risk reporting.

The appropriate risk mitigation plans are determined based on the following risk responses:

— Acceptance: Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable based on Group’s risk appetite and therefore
no action is considered necessary.

— Reduction: Risks cannot be considered immaterial and actions such as controls have to be taken to reduce
the impact and vulnerability to an acceptable level.

— Avoidance: Risks are so significant that there is no measure both internally and externally to reduce the risk
to an acceptable level, or involve unreasonably high cost to reduce the risk to an acceptable level.
Therefore, activities giving rise to the risks should be avoided.

Internal audit function and review of risk management and internal control

The Group has an internal audit function, which consists of professional staff with relevant expertise. The internal
audit function is independent from the Group’s daily operation and carries out review of the risk management
and internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness. Review
of risk management and internal control systems are conducted half-annually, and the results are reported to the
Board through the Audit Committee. During FY2022, the Board through its review and review made by the
internal audit function, concluded that no material risk management and internal control aspects of any
significant discrepancies were discovered during the review and was satisfied that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate.
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Compliance with risk management and internal control code provisions

The Company has established a dynamic risk management process, including risk identification, risk assessment,
risk monitoring, risk response, risk supervision and improvement as well as risk reporting, to identify and evaluate
the major risks of the Company.

The Company adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated with its businesses and
operations and has an internal control system which enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Disclosure of inside information

The Company has put in place an internal policy for the handling and disclosure of inside information in
compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”). The
internal policy sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside information
in a timely manner and provides the Directors, senior management and relevant employees a general guide in
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, procurement and trading of food and processed
food. The principal activities of the Group are principally engaged in the operation of restaurants under TamJai
and SamGor brands.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for FY2022 are set out in the financial statements on page 117 to page 214 of this
annual report.

DIVIDENDS
Interim dividend in respect of the previous financial year of HK$0.28 (2021: HK$0.12) per Share was paid during
FY2022.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.114 per Share for FY2022 (2021: Nil).

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during FY2022, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators and a discussion on the Group’s future business development are
contained in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis on page 8 to page 45 of this
annual report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Endeavouring to maintain a sound and solid relationship with the stakeholders of the Group, which is essential to
our long-term sustainable development and success in the market, we have been engaging a wide variety of
stakeholders along our value chain. We believe that the engagement of the core stakeholders aids us to better
anticipate the emerging trends, grasp potential opportunities under the development of the “green economy”,
improve our operational practices while lowering our environmental footprints, and provide products and services
that cater to our customers’ needs.

To efficiently identify, assess and prioritise the issues that are material and relevant to its different stakeholder
groups, we engage our stakeholders through surveys and questionnaires. With our good corporate citizenship,
reputation, and strong capability in coordination, we have communicated and collaborated with our stakeholders
effectively. From the response of the stakeholders received through a broad range of open communication
channels, we have gained a deeper understanding of our stakeholders’ concerns and expectations, which has
facilitated us to better position ourselves in the competitive market, and made rapid and appropriate adjustments
to our business strategies. We have maintained our ongoing effective dialogue with our core stakeholders
through the channels highlighted below.

Communication with key stakeholders

Stakeholders
EE

Expectations and Concerns
FENEE
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Communication Channels

Government and regulatory authorities — Laws and regulations compliance —
BT K B e R — ERIERER
—  Sustainable development —
— HREZR —
—  Occupational health and safety -
- BERERZZ2

Supervision on the compliance with local laws and
regulations
HEMERIMERNARBRETEE

Routine reports and tax payments
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ESgRsE
Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns Communication Channels
B0E HERET BIERE
Shareholders —  Return on investments —  Corporate website
IR — RE@DR — AR
—  Corporate governance —  Regular reports
- {EEnR —  EHWmE
—  Business strategy and development plans — Announcements
— EBRBLEERTE - &
— Annual general meetings
- BRERBFARE
Employees —  Employees’ remuneration and benefits —  Bulletin board
(== — EEFMEEN - RER
—  Career development — Internal emails
- BEEE —  ANEEH
—  Training opportunities —  Employee hotline
— ke - REAER
—  Occupational Health and Safety —  Management videos
- BEEEREZD — EIEERE
— Training and workshops
— Bk E
Customers — Product and service quality assurance —  Customer satisfaction surveys
zP - EmkBBEERSE - BEFPMEEHRAE
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Product innovation
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—  Customer membership programmes
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—  General customer service communications
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—  Social media platforms
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Stakeholders
FoE

Expectations and Concerns

HEREE
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Communication Channels

BERE

General public

Suppliers
e

Landlords

Xx

— Involvement in communities

- HEz2®H

— Laws and regulations compliance
— JRBERERER

—  Transparency and reliability

— FHERAEH

—  Fair and open procurement

- RFRAFKRE

—  Win-win upstream and downstream cooperation
— BRELTHEE

— Brand image
- mEER
—  Business plan and performance

- EBRERKR

—  Corporate website

—  RAEIEuh

—  Social media platforms
- HXREETE

—  Mass media

- REREB

—  Frontline staff

— FI/FEBET

—  Direct communication
— HEEB

—  Telephone/video conferences, face-to-face meetings, and
on-site visits

— BH/AKEE HHENEZREMHME

—  Assessment of supplier

—  HHEEmETE

—  Tender and regular meetings

- HBEkTHEH

—  Corporate website

—  REHGuh

—  Mass media

- RTEEB

—  Frontline Staff

— HI&ZR|ETI

—  Direct communication
— EBEEBEB
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following list is a summary of certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group:

° We are susceptible to outbreak, epidemic and/or pandemic of infectious or contagious diseases, diseases
of animals, food-borne illnesses as well as negative publicity relating to such incidents.

° Our business is dependent on the macroeconomic conditions of the markets in which we operate and any
reductions in discretionary consumer spending as a result of economic downturn may adversely affect our
business.

° Our expansion plan may lead to increased risks and uncertainties which may materially and adversely affect

our business, financial condition and results of operations.

° The new markets which we have recently expanded into or plan to expand into are different from the Hong
Kong market and our expansion into these new markets presents risks and uncertainties.

° The ongoing COVID-19 outbreak and the conflicts in Ukraine may adversely affect our supply chain
management, such as increase in operating costs and disruption of operations.

° Our operational sustainability is dependent on our abilities to recruit and retain frontline staff.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last four financial years is set out
on page 215 to page 216 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, calculated under Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance was HK$294,772,000 (2021:
HK$196,162,000).

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company during the year are set out in notes 19
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, during FY2022, the Group has complied in all material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During FY2022, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

l. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
On 25 March 2021, the Company adopted the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to (i) motivate the eligible participants to
optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or otherwise
maintain relationships with the eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long
term growth of the Group. Those eligible to participate in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme include any
senior management employee, including without limitation any director, executive, officer and manager-
grade employee, whether full time or part time, employed by a member of the Group from time to time;
and any consultant employed by the Group, who the Board considered at the relevant time prior to the
Listing Date, in its absolute discretion as a grantee. Subject to the following vesting dates, any options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may be exercisable at any time prior to the expiry of 10
years from the acceptance date of the grant: () 30% of the total number of Shares under the options
granted to such grantee can be exercised from 7 October 2021; (i) 30% of the total number of Shares
under the options granted to such grantee can be exercised from the 7 October 2022; and (i) 40% of the
total number of Shares under the options granted to such grantee can be exercised from the 7 October
2023. The exercise price per Share in respect of any particular option granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be HK$0.85.

A total of 37 eligible participants were offered options to subscribe for an aggregate of 2,848,400 Shares
(representing approximately 0.21% of the total issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this annual
report) at an exercise price of HK$0.85 on 25 March 2021,

During FY2022, the Company allotted and issued 452,740 Shares in connection with the exercise of
options by certain eligible grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, with the weighted average
closing price of the Shares on the, dates immediately preceding the dates of exercise of 7 October 2021,
8 October 2021, 11 October 2021, 12 October 2021, 18 October 2021, 18 November 2021, 7 December
2021, 20 December 2021, 25 January 2022, 28 January 2022 and 23 February 2022 of HK$2.93 per
Share™ee),

Note: For the purpose of calculating such weighted average closing price, as the Shares were listed on 7 October 2021, no closing
price of Shares was applicable to the options exercised on 7 October 2021.
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The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in “Statutory and General Information BAAHBEIBRESINEZFERENRIBK
— D. Share Incentive Schemes — 2. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. =R M e fﬁ&m& ﬁﬁﬁﬁi - D. fo“iﬁk%b?r%ﬂ
— 2ERAMEBEERERERS] -
Details of the value of the options granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and RARBEE R ARAEERERENERD E’Jﬁﬁ
the accounting policy adopted for the options, are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial REEENFE IABRERMADEETHERF
statements. & BREREMBEmRMFE20 -
Details of the movement of share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during FY2022 RZZZZUBEE  BEEXAREEAER
are as follows: BETEIREMERESSHFBOT
Outstanding
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category and price per as at during during during during 31 March
name of participants Date of grant share (HK$) 1 April 2021 the year the year the year the year 2022
R=B=—F R=2==
BRITHEE mA—H =RA=+-—H
SmERAR®A B8 (Bx) e AR AT FRTE FRITHE FREH FREXK e AR AT B
Directors
==
Mr. Lau Tat Man 25 March 2021 0.85 286,000 — 85,800 — — 200,200
ERTAE ey e =
Ms. Chan Ping, Rita 25 March 2021 0.85 198,000 — 59,400 — — 138,600
PR 55 22 & —E-—%®=ZA=-+HA
Mr. Lee Yuk Hang 25 March 2021 0.85 22,000 — 6,600 — — 15,400
=3NS —E-—Ff=A=+HH
Employees 25 March 2021 0.85 2,342,400 — 300,940 — 335,000 1,706,460
3= —E—F=H=+HH
Total 2,848,400 — 452,740 — 335,000 2,060,660
mEt
Note: B E -
1) 335,000 share options lapsed as the employees cased to be employees of the Group. 1) 335,000 R EE EXN  RIEETHEAEEMK -
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86 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 25 March 2021, the Company adopted the post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to (i) motivate the eligible
participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain
or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with the eligible participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, offer to
grant an option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of our Company or any of our subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive directors) of our Company or any of our subsidiaries;
and

(i)  any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other persons who in the sole
opinion of the Board will contribute or have contributed to our Company or any of our subsidiaries.

Upon acceptance of the option on or before the relevant acceptance date, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to our Company by way of consideration for the grant.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes (including the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 134,003,200 Shares, representing approximately 9.99% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report. The total number of Shares issued
and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Annual Report 2021/22
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The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price must be at least the higher of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities; and

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted.

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the Listing
Date. As at the date of this annual report, the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme has a remaining life of
approximately 9 years and 5 months.

The principal terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Share Incentive Schemes — 3. Post-IPO Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus.

A total of 65 eligible participants were offered options to subscribe for an aggregate of 6,394,000 Shares
at an exercise price of HK$2.638 on 25 March 2022. These options are valid for a period of 10 years from
the date of grant and will be vested in three tranches: (i) 30% of the options will vest on 25 March 2023;
(i) 30% of the options will vest on 25 March 2024; and (i) the remaining 40% of the options will vest on
25 March 2025.
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EEERE
Details of the movement of share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the BHEe_Z-_—"HF#=-A=+—HILFE BEFX
year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows: NHABEERBREFERONBREZSFHEL
™~

Exercise price Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding
Category and per share during during during during as at
name of participants Date of grant (HKS) the year the year the year the year 31 March 2022

R-ZE—-—
BRITEE =A=+-—H

SHEEFNRKER & i B A (#&7T) FARH FRITHE FREH FARAIRK i RAITHE
Directors
=%
Mr. Lau Tat Man 25 March 2022 2.638 525,000 — — — 525,000
ERTAE —EZF=A=+HAH
Ms. Chan Ping, Rita 25 March 2022 2.638 315,000 — — — 315,000
PRS2z = —E- =R -+FEH
Mr. Lee Yuk Hang 25 March 2022 2.638 126,000 - - - 126,000
FHEXE —E-_—_#F#=A=+HH
Employees 25 March 2022 2.638 5,428,000 — — — 5,428,000
E8 —EZZF=HA=+HAH
Total 6,394,000 - - - 6,394,000
H
Note: P &E
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant of share options was HK$2.62 per share. AR RS R EZ R HEREB PR HEAESRR2.62/8TT -
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME R 17 5% B =t &
A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 25 March 2021. The R-ZTE-_—F=A=-+01H KA GHMNEMD ERITE
purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to (i) motivate the eligible participants to optimise their performance ([ B> 2€@5tEl|) - B {D B2 B 2 () BN & E 1%
efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and (i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain relationships with the 235 AREEF| S MmE(LERIBBCE  K(i)K 3| Mk
eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group. Those HBABKRLEES UEM R BFHFRIFEE > Mk H
eligible participants to participate in the Share Award Scheme include any senior management employee, #EF2HEEMNER DU BHAEBNRERRES
including without limitation any director, executive, officer and manager-grade employee, whether full time or part | - HE R E D KENFHEIM A T B FET o HEE
time, employed by a member of the Group from time to time; and any consultant employed by the Group, who [ERE @ BIFEETRAAEEK B QA TRERHE
the Board considers, in its absolute discretion as a grantee. The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and = > {TIIAE - SR E REERES (2BFRE)
effective for a term of 10 years from the adoption date. As at the date of this annual report, the Share Award & % =& 2 7 22 /3 8 72 A 89 7% 55 (8] P S A &Y 1 o] R
Scheme has a remaining life of approximately 8 years and 10 months. A o Bt 22E T & B BN B B AH0OF AR R AR -

HERNFRAH  RHDEEFENFLBARL A8F10

@A -
For the implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Tamjai International Employee Trust was established on ~ AE ) EE+E] - BEHFBEBRESEER T - —F
25 March 2021 with Trident Trust Company (HK) Limited acting as the trustee thereof (the “Trustee”). The =HA_+HHMKT - |EZ§15 F(BE)BRAREER
Trustee shall hold the awarded Shares on behalf of the grantees until they are vested in the grantees in  FEA ([ZFEAL) o FEABREEAFAZDRD - &
accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The Trustee shall then cause the awarded Shares to be  ZEZERENRMIBIEIR D EETEERIEE T EEAL
transferred to such grantees on the relevant vesting date subject to the confirmation by the Company. On 25 |F - STEABREABEEBEH LU G ERRNHEZTZS
March 2021, 2,024,000 Shares were allotted and issued to the Trustee for the purpose of the Share Award EEA - HELARFER - N T _—F=A_+Hh
Scheme, representing approximately 0.15% of the total number of issued Shares as at the date of this annual H * & X & 5t & 7 22 B 51 &) 7 = 55 A B 3 & 2% 17
report. 2,024,000/ & 7 - R AN F ¥ B B2 BT D B B4

0.15% -
A total of 5,024,000 Shares (the “Awarded Shares”), representing approximately 0.37% of the total number of W_T_-_—F=F_+FHEK-_Z-—F\ANH 5
issued Shares as at the date of this annual report, were granted to certain selected employees on 25 March  Rl[A1%& T #3iE (& B % H 4 $£5,024,000 % A% 17 ([ 58 B iR
2021 and 9 August 2021, respectively. 71 AERAFR BB E BT BEL0.37% °

The Awarded Shares vested and shall vest on the following dates: RERNDEEBIESNATEREE

(1)  30% of the total number of awarded Shares granted to the grantee will vest from 7 October 2021; (1) MEARARLOEERMDASEMN30%EE —E =
—F+ALtHERS

(2)  30% of the total number of awarded Shares granted to the grantee will vest from 7 October 2022; and (2)  AER AR S EJJH%J} BHHB0%FE =
“Ft+ALBHEBEE:

(3) 40% of the total number of awarded Shares granted to the grantee will vest from 7 October 2023. (3) MAEARARIMEFHRGBESN40%EE T =
=F+ALtHEREB -

The maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be granted to the eligible participants under the Share  RIEM {7 REFH &8I AT AL X T & B8 2 B E B AN L

Award Scheme is 134,003,200 Shares, representing approximately 9.99% of the total issued Shares of the [R A134,003,2000% f& 1y » Bl AR R Bl AN € 3R & H #i

Company as at the date of this annual report. B 21T I 17 48 2 40 4)9.99%

The principal terms of the Share Award Scheme are set out in “Statutory and General Information — D. Share A& {7 S22 )5+ 8] & = 2 5 3R B A% = A2 MY 8500 [ )2 58 ]2
Incentive Schemes — 1. Share Award Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. —MER — DIRHERETE — 1.0

ApERERAT < 20212255 80
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Details of the Awarded Shares outstanding and movements during the year ended 31 March 2022 are as #HZE_ZT - —"F=A=+—HILFE  HRITEIEE

follows: B REEBFEWT :

Outstanding Outstanding
Category and as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
name of participants Date of grant 1 April 2021 during the year during the year during the year 31 March 2022

R=ZB=Z—F R=%=Z=

mA—H =A=+—H
SHEHERRESR RH B e R 4T 5 FREH FRTE FRERK e R 4T
Directors
BF
Mr. Lau Tat Man 25 March 2021 and 9 August 2021 264,000 2,000,000 679,200 — 1,584,800
FERLE —E_-F=A-_+THABEXK
- )N\AANA
Ms. Chan Ping, Rita 25 March 2021 and 9 August 2021 132,000 1,000,000 339,600 — 792,400
PR¥ £+ —E_-F=A-_+THABEXK
- N\AANA
Mr. Lee Yuk Hang 25 March 2021 110,000 — 33,000 — 77,000
FEERE —E--Ff=A=-+HH
Senior management and 25 March 2021 1,518,000 — 442,200 105,600 970,200
other employees

SRERENRHEMES T_—F=RA=-+HHA
Total 2,024,000 3,000,000 1,494,000 105,600 3,424,400
#at
Note: Mzt -
(1) 105,600 awarded Shares lapsed as the employees cased to be employees of the Group. (1) 105,600 B M E XN BREETHAAEBES -
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in this Report of the Directors, no other
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DONATIONS

The Company made HK$311,000 charitable and other donations during the year under review (2021:
HK$817,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For FY2022, our customers were primarily retail customers from the general public. The Company considers that
it is not practicable to identify our five largest customers for the year due to the diverse nature of our customer
base. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers during FY2022 were 17.7%,
9.8%, 8.1%, 4.1% and 3.9%, respectively. None of the Directors, their respective close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders, which to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, has any interests in the share capital of any of the above five largest customers
or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report (i.e. 13 May 2022) were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lau Tat Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Ping, Rita

Mr. Lee Yuk Hang

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro (Note)
Mr. Sugiyama Takashi

Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi

Note: Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 10 June 2022, and on the same day Mr. Tomitani Takeshi
was appointed as a non-executive Director. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2022 for further information.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Loo Kwok Wing

Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung

In accordance with Article 111 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lau Tat Man, Mr. Lee Yuk Hang and Mr.
Sugiyama Takashi will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence for the period from the Listing Date up to
and including 31 March 2022 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors and the Company considers that Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Mr. Loo Kwok Wing and Mr. Yeung
Yiu Keung are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company are set out on pages 46 to 59
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other and subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other related
provisions in accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract

with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Annual Report 2021/22

BYFHTES:
FEALE
i L P

REERAUEE BERAEE FEERERE
WELEERREREERBFASRERENAERE
BT -

BRABUFATESHNE LM

ARFEREBIZBILIFMITESTRIE LHHRAFE3.131F
EHO EmAEE S -_—_F=A=+—H (8%
B MENFEBI MRAE  ARAARRTEALE
EFKEERGRELLEBBY -

EERSREEERRE
AATEERERERENBERERNAFRBI6E
59H -

EERBEY

EEFCHEARAFLRG H#E - ERELHAER
H=%F mhE-—HRs—FELTPR=EANER
WA HEARBASERMAR N EWRRRERT
KEEEE A RETHMBRRE -

BERNEERRBFARG LEENEFTDRBARAR
HALAIM B AR R ML AR BRI R —F AL T B AR
8 OEERERIN REE K -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
E=gRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS EERXR5S ZHAEGHNHER

Save for the agreements as set out under the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” contained in ~ BRAFR[FHERER H | — Tl S A EFk
this annual report, none of the Directors nor any entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, HEZEHMMNTMBTRERRDT) « APEIRA 7 EH E (]
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company, MEBARSKRRMBARNNREE T -~ F=A=+—
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at the end HIFFENFRNXFREAT O A FENTAEAR
of the year ended 31 March 2022. 5 TSNP I EEENEEE AER -

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES MEARES
The following is the list of directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during FY2022: RZZBZZUWBEE AKEWNBARNESTLEN
I

Name of Subsidiaries Place/Country of Incorporation and Operation Name of Directors EENE

Bt R X B] B B HMA Y REE S BR

Jointed-Heart Limited Hong Kong LAU Tat Man ER

FOSREFR A N TANAKA Kimihiro EIVN ]
CHAN Ping, Rita BR 5
CHOW Wing Hung J& oK

Vennic Limited Hong Kong LAU Tat Man ER

BB R A A N TANAKA Kimihiro EAVN ]
CHAN Ping, Rita BR 5
LAU Chi Kwan 2IRE

TJI Global Development Company Limited Hong Kong LAU Tat Man 2ER

BIFIRIRERABR AR BB CHAN Ping, Rita PR 5%

TJI Global Supply Chain Company Limited Hong Kong LAU Tat Man RER

BHRREEEERRAA B CHAN Ping, Rita BR 5

Tamlaboration Limited Hong Kong LAU Tat Man ER

BHFBAIBRAF] N TANAKA Kimihiro EAVN ]
CHAN Ping, Rita BR 5

AFERERAT < 202122 5% OQF
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EEERE
Name of Subsidiaries Place/Country of Incorporation and Operation Name of Directors EEHE
MEAR BB MR RS BR
Tung Tak Sublime Limited Hong Kong LAU Tat Man ER
FiEABRAT o TANAKA Kimihiro LN
CHAN Ping, Rita BR
EHFERCRI) BRAA The People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”) LAU Tat Man RER
PEARLME((HE])
Tam Jai (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore LAU Tat Man ER
#rnig CHAN Ping, Rita BeR 5
Charoa-Ungsuthorn Charoa
Parmod Kumar Verma
Tam Jai Japan Inc. (“TJ Japan’) Japan LAU Tat Man 2ER
KRBT EAK AR CHAN Ping, Rita BeR 5
Sugiyama Takashi AESd
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EERNHRIXEBNES
During FY2022, none of the Directors is considered to have interests in any business which competes or is likely R-ZE-Z_HBFE @ SIBRESHHE /N ERNEEZRF
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group. SR EEEEREFNERRER E R -
EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EENEREEETMH

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general meetings. The emoluments payable ZEEHBERKRRAGESR R EFTFIEE - BNE

to the Directors are determined by the Board based on the adopted remuneration policy and reviewed by the FWHMEEESSERLTQAAFMEZE RN RER

Remuneration Committee, with reference to the Directors’ qualifications and experience, responsibiliies MBI - W ZEEEERRLERH - FIRERE - 8

undertaken, contribution to the Group and the prevailing market level of remuneration for similar positions. REBMIERERA RO WIRITIISE MK FigE
=
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The emoluments of the members of senior management by band for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out SHREEBKENRHE T -_—F=—A=+—HILFE

below: RRRE DRI F T
2022
—E=-=
$1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007T 3
$2,000,001 — $2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,0007T 1

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out innote 7to &EBEFHE T -__—_F=A=+—BLFENENHF
the consolidated financial statements. B - FFIBERERE M WMRMEET -

ApERERAT < 20212255 Q5
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$230,000 (2021: HK$230,000). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered by appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

During FY2022, no forfeited contributions were available to reduce the existing or future level of contributions.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”, “Related Party Transactions”
and Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report, no contract of significance
was entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during FY2022 or subsisted at the end of the year and no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during FY2022 or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EERERTHRAERRARAEERGOE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES mRRE

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in R-ZE-_—F=F=+—H ARQRAEELESTHA
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the & R A Bl sk E T 1858 A B (T & B B5 M E K5
meaning of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in  FEXVEL) WA « HEKR D R EEETHEEREBEES N
the register referred therein, or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the HiE &0 5352158 58 A ZIF Pﬁ?ﬁ#ﬂﬂﬂﬂ_‘za$ﬁ}.ﬁé¢$—'—

Model Code, are set out below. TFRAERMA R R R RF R RABEIIAT -
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company REQAFARGERBREASTEIENHBRONVES

Number of Percentage of shareholding in

Shares/equity derivatives our Company as at

Name of Directors Nature of interest interested™ 31 March 2022

RERZHNRE R=—Z=-——%=B=+-—H

BEEps ERME RASTETAZRAM EEXAARNFERES L
Mr. Lau Tat Man Beneficial owner 765,000(L)
ERSLE BB A 1,584,800(L)?
725,200(L)®

3,075,000 0.23%
Ms. Chan Ping, Rita Beneficial owner 399,000(L)
PRSF 2L EnEAA 792,400(L)@
458,600(L)®

1,645,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Yuk Hang Beneficial owner 39,600(L)
FEELEE EmEAA 77,000(L)@
141,400(L)®

258,000 0.02%

AFERERAT < 20212258 QY
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EEERE
Notes: B &E
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. (1) FEHILIRTEZATRBROFOGTE -

@ These Shares are the Shares granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Award Scheme on 25 March 2021 and/or 9 August 2021.  (2) ZERDBARRAR_ZEZ—F=A=-+HBRF=F=—

Prior to vesting on the respective vesting dates, these Shares are held by Blessing Keen Investing Limited, a direct wholly-owned FNANANBREBRMDEEEELNRG - NEMSEE B HE
subsidiary of the Trustee, on trust for the grantees under the Share Award Scheme. B2 Al %258 M Blessing Keen Investing Limited (23 A B
BE2EMANMBAR) AEEREA ARG REN & T 8RR
AFFA o
(3)  These Shares are in the form of share options of our Company granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-  (3) #ZERMARATBRBEE N AREEABRETZI R ERARH
IPO Share Option Scheme. BLERBRESSIEDAERE -
Interests in associated corporation REBEEE RS
Name of associated corporation: Toridoll Holdings Corporation F55 = @ £ 78 : Toridoll Holdings Corporation

Number of Percentage of shareholding in
Shares/equity derivatives associated corporation as at

Name of Directors Nature of interest interested 31 March 2022
EEREBZNRG R-—B-—f=A=+-—H

EEHE EEME BASTETIEEE EHEBEEZENSERE DL

Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi Beneficial owner 26,000 0.00%

FTRRER S A EnlEE A

Mr. Sugiyama Takashi Beneficial owner 11,293 0.00%

ANES3 S EnlEE A

Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro Beneficial owner 13,356 0.00%

B iELE EnlEE A
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, so far as was known to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, the
persons or companies (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who/which had interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, to be entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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BEXHEEEN R-B-—G=A=+—8 &R
AEFRBHTRABBERAQF LRI EE
(% BB% RS 50 EXVED) AR  ARIR G 1A
B A RARD AR B4 R 85 50150521468
RS R SRR B AR 2 A R R A 1
(TR EAA -

%Eﬁi&ﬁﬁki%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂg
m

MR_E-_—FZA=+—H BEERARARSTH
ABFTA - LFALTHRARI (AR ESTRESITHRA
BERIN) RAR B AR (D F A IR IRE 5 & H
EROIEXVHBE2RIDEIEXETHBERELZALRRD
AR RS LSS0 E33615 8 T E M & o A&

SL A -
WmYORE

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

Shares held as at 31 March 2022

RBROREBRONFRER-ZF-__F=ZA=+—-BRERHD

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Number of Shares (L) Approximate percentage
FERRHER 514 B2 & B (L)W BHABE DL
Toridoll Holding Limited Beneficial owner@ 1,000,000,000 74.60%
RAZ IR BR A A EnEa AR
Toridoll Holdings Corporation Interest in controlled corporation®® 1,000,000,000 74.60%
Toridoll Holdings Corporation REZPEEBE R OO
Mr. Awata Takaya Interest in controlled corporation® 1,000,000,000 74.60%
FEREMEE REZEEBE R R
Mrs. Awata Toshimi Interest of spouse® 1,000,000,000 74.60%
FHMNELZL FliB RO

EFEBRERAT
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Notes:

1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

) Toridoll Holding Limited is wholly-owned by Toridoll Holdings Corporation, which was in turn owned as to approximately 31.54% by Mr.

Awata Takaya for the year ended 31 March 2022. By virtue of the SFO, each of Toridoll Holdings Corporation and Mr. Awata Takaya is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Toridoll Holing Limited.

) Mrs. Awata Toshimi is the spouse of Mr. Awata Takaya. By virtue of the SFO, Mrs. Awata Toshimi is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Mr. Awata Takaya is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other persons or companies (other than the
Directors and the chief executives) who/which had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company, which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or were required to be entered in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group for FY2022, which are
subject to the reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Business Consulting Services

On 1 April 2021, the Company entered into a business consulting service agreement (the “Business
Consulting Service Agreement”) with Toridoll HK, pursuant to which Toridoll HK has agreed to provide
business consulting services to the Company, which include () assistance in the development of the
strategies for the business of the Group, which will be in line with the overall business strategy of Toridoll
Japan; (i) provision of statistic information on market trends or competitive analysis and sharing insights to
each geographic region of the business of the Group; and (i) provision of expertise and knowledge sharing
on improving frontline store operations and providing advice on the development of guidelines for the
operations of the business of the Group (the “Business Consulting Services”). The Business Consulting
Service Agreement has a term commencing from the 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024, which may be
renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The Directors estimate that the maximum annual amount of service fees payable by the Group to Toridoll
HK in relation to the Business Consulting Services for the years ending 31 March 2022, 2023 and 2024
will not exceed HK$6 million, HK$6.5 million and HK$7 million, respectively. The annual service fee paid/
payable by the Group in relation to Business Consulting Services for FY2022 was HK$3,266,000.

Operations Support Services

On 11 June 2021, the Company entered into an operations support service agreement (the “Operations
Support Service Agreement”’) with Toridoll Japan, pursuant to which Toridoll Japan has agreed to provide
operations support services to our Company for our upcoming operations in Japan, which include (a) at the
pre-opening phase, (i) assistance in establishing supply chain management system including sourcing of
suppliers; (i) assistance in obtaining licences and complying with applicable laws and regulations; (iii)
assistance in site selection and tenancy matters of our restaurants; (iv) provision of advice on and
assistance in the coordination of design development and construction work for our restaurants; (v)
provision of advice on corporate social responsibility, marketing strategy and quality assurance; and (vi)
provision of supporting functions such as human resources, administrative, accounting and finance services;
and (b) at the post-opening phase, (i) provision of inventory control, quality inspection and store audit
services; (i) assistance in data collection and establishing and maintaining customer feedback system; (iii)
assistance in on-going site selection and coordination of maintenance work for our restaurants; (iv)
assistance in the marketing and promotional activities; and (v) provision of on-going supporting functions
such as human resources, administrative, IT maintenance, accounting and finance services (the
“Operations Support Services”). The Operations Support Service Agreement has a term commencing
from 11 June 2021 to 31 March 2024, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject
to compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws
and regulations.

The Directors estimate that the maximum annual amount of service fees payable by the Group to Toridoll
Japan in relation to the Operations Support Services for the three years ending 31 March 2022, 2023 and
2024 will not exceed HK$3 million, HK$7.5 million and HK$8.5 million, respectively. The annual service fee
paid/payable by the Group in relation to Operations Support Services for FY2022 is HK$1,996,000.
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Each of Toridoll HK and Toridoll Japan is a controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Business Consulting Service
Agreement and the Operations Support Service Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company since the Listing Date under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Business Consulting Service Agreement and the Operations Support Service Agreement
(collectively, the “Agreements”) are set out under the section headed “Connected Transactions” in the
Prospectus.

Confirmations from the independent non-executive Directors and the auditor

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Agreements, and confirmed the transactions conducted thereunder have been entered into: (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of the business of the Group; (i) on normal or better commercial terms; and (i) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

In accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged its auditor to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised), Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
made by the Group disclosed above for FY2022 confirming that nothing has come to its attention that causes it
to believe that the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(i)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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3. Procurement Services
On 29 March 2022, TJ Japan, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a procurement
services framework agreement (the “Procurement Services Framework agreement”) with Toridoll Japan,
pursuant to which Toridoll Japan shall provide TJ Japan with procurement services for ingredients food,
restaurant non-food products and restaurant consumables for a term commencing from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2023 (both days inclusive).

Under the Procurement Services Framework Agreement, TJ Japan shall reimburse Toridoll Japan for the
actual costs incurred by Tordioll Japan for the provision of the Procurement Services. The annual cap for
the fees to be paid by TJ Japan to Toridoll Japan pursuant to the Procurement Service Framework
Agreement for the year ending 31 March 2023 shall not exceed HK$20,000,000. As the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the Procurement Services Framework Agreement only
commenced on 1 April 2022, the Company will comply with the reporting and annual review requirements
in accordance with the Listing Rules in its subsequent annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements, some of which also constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration
of Directors constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are fully exempt from the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of senior management (other than Directors) of the
Company did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save for the transactions conducted under the Agreements, the
Directors confirmed that all other related party transactions set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements do not fall within the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” or
are fully exempted under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (as the case may be). The Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for FY2022.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract, concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company was entered into or existed during FY2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2022, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold interest in any
of the Company’s listed securities.

EVENT(S) AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No material events occurred after the end of FY2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s companies shall be entitled to be indemnified by the
relevant company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her in the
execution and discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant to the respective articles of
associations of the relevant companies. Such provisions were in force during the course of the financial year
ended 31 March 2022 and remained in force as of the date of this report. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought against
directors of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this
annual report.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Toridoll Japan, Toridoll HK, Mr. Awata Takaya, Mrs. Awata Toshimi and T&T Inc., being controlling
shareholders of the Company, has confirmed to the Company of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 16 September 2021 (the “Deed
of Non-competition”) since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2022. The Board and independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and the confirmations provided by each of the
controlling shareholders and are not aware of any circumstance which would affect the compliance and
enforcement of the terms under the Deed of Non-competition during FY2022. Accordingly, they are satisfied that
the Deed of Non-competition has been fully complied with.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 22 July 2022 to 27 July 2022 (both days inclusive), during which
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar (‘Hong Kong Share Registrar”’), Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 21 July 2022.

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 11 August 2022 to 15 August 2022 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong Share Registrar
at the address specified above not later than 4:30 p.m. on 10 August 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found in the Corporate Governance Report
contained on pages 60 to 77 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ExgwE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been audited by
KPMG whose term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the AGM. There has been no change in auditors

since the Listing Date.

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor of the Company for the subsequent year will be

proposed at the AGM.

By behalf of the Board
Mr. Lau Tat Man

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 13 May 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B B B AR S

KPMG

To the members of Tam Jai International Co. Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tam Jai International Co. Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 117 to 214, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % BT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not ﬂ'%éﬁf,ﬁ?éﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%&ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
Refer to note 10 and the accounting policies in note 1(g)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements

BRgESEE
RRESTSFHEERBRANERAE  RRYLHRE
MHEBREROBARAEENTH - GEFTHEAERME
TTRRIER » ZPIR
THELFHREHREBNER -

TEEAEEERYE KBERRENBERE
BHFEHBHREMF10K K 1(9)i) B E 5B &

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHEFOAERZSZE

The Group recorded significant balances of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment on the consolidated statement of financial position. There is a risk
that the value of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in certain
restaurants may not be recoverable in full through the future cash flows to be
generated from operations of those restaurants or from disposal of the related
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment.

2EBER m/\ﬁﬂkﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@ééﬁﬁfwﬁ WM REBNEKRS
?%E%ﬁﬁﬁ%é?&%% HeR R REEER L &Lﬂ%ﬁ%é%ﬁ@%éi
F R SRR 2 07 2K iﬁ.‘ﬂj’iﬁfﬁﬁ’ﬂiﬁﬁﬁééF&%% 1%%5%& S 2 P o

At the end of each reporting period, right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment are allocated to each individual restaurant which is considered as a
cash-generating unit (“CGU”). Management reviews the performance of individual
restaurants to identify if any restaurant displays negative performance indicators
which could indicate impairment.

REREHRR  EHAREEME BERR 1%%& ERER MZFEREE
RELSRTELEN EEERNSERNRSE UETRELATMNERZRY

AIBERAABEN B EXERERE -

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment included the following:

BARTRHEEREEENEDE BB kBN EEREMATHEZF B

— understanding and evaluating the design and implementation of key internal
controls over the impairment assessment;

—  TEREFHEEREGENEERMEBNRAMNER

—  evaluating management’s identification of CGUs and allocation of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment to each CGU with reference to the
prevailing accounting standards;

— Z2ERTGHEN %%H%“i%%Tfﬁéiziﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂéﬁ%ﬁlﬂx&%?1%%@&%
BUNERAEEENDE B LREND

— challenging management’s identification of impairment indicators with

reference to the prevailing accounting standards;

— 2ZWRTEHE HREEBURERRHNERN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % BT R

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHEFUNAEEZEE

Where indicators of impairment of a restaurant are identified, management
performs an impairment assessment of each restaurant by comparing its carrying
value with its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The value in use of the right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment in those restaurants is determined by management
on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis based on a discounted cash flow forecast.
HBEREBHRARENR  EEEQHEEBETREN G  FERLRARE
BERAKEEE  BIRAFEREZEENAREAEETOREE - ZFEENE
RAEEERDE HERZRENCHAEE N HEEERBMRBSRBANER
REERETFE -

We identified potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter because the discounted cash flow forecast used
to assess the value in use is based on a number of assumptions, including
estimations of future revenue, food cost inflation, staff cost inflation and the
discount rate applied, which are subject to a significant degree of judgement and
could be subject to management bias.

B EREEERDE BERRENELRE#RNSEREZEE  ARA
RAFEEABENERRBESRBANDENRZERR  BEERKKLA - RmER
FiRBIRA EREAEANTAZINMGES  ZERIXBEFEELRAEEN
HE - BRI EBENRETE -

— assessing the methodology adopted by management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

— Z2ERTeHENNERFTHEEENEREIIRIR S NI RRTERAMN 5%

— evaluating the key assumptions adopted by management in its preparation of
the discounted cash flow forecasts, including future revenue, food cost
inflation and staff cost inflation by referring to industry and other available
third party information, recent financial performance of the restaurant
operations and management’s budgets and plans;

— FHEEREERRUBERESABARKANEEZRRE -
HirANE=7EF  EREBOPVBEREURERENTRR
FHERREVA - Ran AR B3R R B TR Bk

BEBBSEITER
ita

— assessing the discount rate used in the cash flow forecasts by benchmarking
against other comparable listed catering groups in Hong Kong and taking
into consideration company specific risk premiums;

— RBEFBHMALITREEEETEELE > WERQFNEBRER R
B U EREREFAPERANFTIRE

EFBEBRAERLIE
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BYRBERE

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHEF O AEEZEE

—  comparing the key assumptions included in the discounted cash flow forecasts
prepared by management in the prior year with the current year’s
performance to assess the accuracy of the prior year’'s forecasts, making
enquiries of management as to the reasons for any significant variations
identified and whether these had been considered in the current year’s
discounted cash flow forecasts and considering if there was any indication of
management bias;

— BEEEEL—FEGENMRBSREANFESNERRZERNFEETNE
BETHE A E—FERAERNE  RNERBEERAEMEHREXN

EERAREMEREBRENTR

—  obtaining management’s sensitivity analyses of the discount rate, future
revenue, food cost inflation and staff cost inflation and considering the
resulting impact on the impairment assessment and whether there is any
indication of management bias; and

— EREREBHTRE  RRRA Rl ABREETIRANERENDGRE
S EEREYHBENENEE THAREEESTETARENTR &

— assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment with reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

— Z2EROTGAELNERLTEEVBRRTBEHAEREEERYE - #5
KR B RE R b 2 BB -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIYRBEES
INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MEMBEHRRREZEMBREUIINE R

AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the informaton BEZUEHMEEEE - HMEEBETEHANFERAL
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  Z#Mz 8 @ B NEIELRA BB HRE M FIZERRE -

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not FfIEGAPMBERENE R L TREHMELS - BAIIR
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. TEHZEHEHMEERRAMAFANERER °

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other #A&RMPIYHGAFERERNDES  BRANSEREER
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the {8 fEIBERP  ZEEMEEEEHEES PR
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially KKK PIERABERTHENBERFEEAIEELE
misstated. PUFFEERERFANE R ©

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other ERHEMDHITHIIE WRRFRAEEMERTFLS

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. RiERR - ZRMIFERERFTE -TEHE - B8R
BEMRE -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

1 1 2 Tam Jai International Co. Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIYRBEES
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED REMPMBT RSB RRRIENSE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a I BEIZ  RHGAMEHRRBERE N FEHREK

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that FFai$5sR M E A E X SERRMEE A IERE - WHA

includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong BEHMERMNZEAIRE - HMISRBEE(Q AIE

Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept fiI) S 405§HIRTE @ EMEEKBIME o KL LA - K

liability to any other person for the contents of this report. MERETATAEEMALZ BRI AR ENA
A EHAEMEMATEBEREIEREEEZET-

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in AIERERS/KFHRE  BTERBRBEBET

accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from  YEB|)#EITHIET - X —F KRR F AR B a3

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 8 o $E:R[R il o] A ERGF ek $E 7R 3/ #E - MR A ETEH T

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. BB SOEA IR A BE R B4R 6 W IS MK (L A& KRB
IR T EH AR TE - R B B0 58 AR PR Al AT AR 1
BKo

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional ERIE(EBETER ) ETEFRBIRT  RFERT
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: BEHE  REFETERZRRERE - &M

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due o BT (EH AP ERMERLG AP ERE

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence FHRERBERFRAMWRR - 5t RATEFEF
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material ARSI E LR - WRERTZMNEE HNETR
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, B ERBEMERNER -BHRNEGFA P k&
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. oBE BERER - EREL - SUEERRIE

Bz b BRI IR R M B BA EAHR
PR At 1 L B = X R BE 3 IR R $5 AR T E B ) B K #
AR BRI R LR o
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B % BT R

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

1 1 4 Tam Jai International Co. Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % BT R
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B EERE

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong. HEARB Y ZSMBENETBEEERARHEA
KPMG EEHETMEBEKT

Certified Public Accountants HEESF AT

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BRI

10 Chater Road EITE TR

Central, Hong Kong RKFRENE

13 May 2022 —E-ZFRAT=H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
L EE |

2022 2021
—_E_ —E-—F
Notes $’°000 $000
B 5T Fr Tt
Revenue Uy 2= 3 2,275,298 1,794,693
Cost of food and beverages consumed BT F & o K 8RR AR (518,267) (411,464)
Other net income H A WA H 5 4 57,732 167,794
Staff costs 8 TR 5(b) (722,808) (559,442)
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment BEEYE  HESREETE (92,212) (66,482)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets, rental and related expenses FREEERE HekiEERAX (418,382) (359,907)
Consumables and packaging M ke (62,983) (48,818)
Utilities expenses KERZ (53,000) (36,135)
Handling charges FEEBH (58,286) (55,468)
Advertising and promotion s KR (46,639) (21,682)
Cleaning expenses BRAX (16,919) (14,147)
Repairs and maintenance BERRE (15,232) (12,067)
Listing expenses EHRAX (17,261) (7,231)
Other expenses HEfb X (51,103) (34,904)
Finance costs & AR 5(a) (14,871) (14,489)
Profit before taxation Bk B A 5% A 5 245,067 320,251
Income tax expense Fristif 6 (42,107) (32,459)
Profit for the year FEEF 202,960 287,792
Earnings per share (cents) SREFR (4L) 9
— Basic — HXK 17.5 28.8
— Diluted — B8 17.4 28.8

The notes on pages 124 to 214 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity S124ZE214EHMTERZEVBHREN—& D - &
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 19(b). AR BIRE S AR SR AR B S B SR BT £ 19(b) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREEREMEERSE X

for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B2 T - —F=H=+—HIFFEETIT)

2022 2021
—=E-= —EZ—F
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Profit for the year FEBR 202,960 287,792
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHME2EKE
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: HgrgesmoBEREBEEMNIER ¢
— Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of — REABBINCB ARV BREREENIENZ5
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong (with nil tax effect) (BB E) 674 987
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders of FEARFEZRREGZERZHEE
the Company for the year 203,634 288,779
The notes on pages 124 to 214 form part of these financial statements. FI24E214E MM TR ZEMBHREN—F D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRER

at 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

_R=F— —F = A=+ —HUE TSR

2022 2021
—_E_ —E-—F
Notes $’°000 $000
B 5 T Tt
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y - R REE 10 208,446 170,556
Right-of-use assets FREEE 10 700,819 563,846
Deposits and prepayments e REMNKIE 12 129,723 106,324
Deferred tax assets EEMIBE E 16(b) 16,751 10,837
1,055,739 851,563

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 11 16,046 13,606
Trade and other receivables B 5 K B b e W ERIE 12 57,249 26,314
Deposits and prepayments e REMNKIE 12 69,140 40,236
Current tax recoverable AT Y =] B HA R 18 16(a) 3,923 2,300
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHES 13(a) 1,366,650 470,963
1,513,008 553,419

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables and accruals B NHEMENRIBEREGTER 14 199,177 170,165
Deposits received BizE 14 200 375
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 319,696 289,465
Current tax payable J& 1<t BN B A 18 16(a) 26,594 49,494
Provisions BiE 17 26,663 16,571
572,330 526,070
Net current assets REBEEFE 940,678 27,349
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBARE 1,996,417 878,912
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBMRRE
2022 2021
—_E_ —E-—F
Notes $’°000 $’000
B 5T Fr Tt
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Lease liabilities HE&E 15 388,412 291,934
Provisions g 17 53,848 41,010
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAG 16(b) 790 494
443,050 333,438
Net assets EEFRE 1,553,367 545,474
Capital and reserves EXREE 19
Share capital &N 1,115,972 10
Reserves i 437,395 545,464
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company ZAAFEFERRELAER 1,553,367 545,474
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 13 May 2022 HEFER T _FHAT=-AERKERE
Lau Tat Man 2ER
Directors 5%
Chan Ping, Rita B 35
The notes on pages 124 to 214 form part of these financial statements. FI24ZE 214 BB Z S M HmEN—F D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

S A 3L
mERZRBERX

for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F-——F ==+ —HIFEAETIT)

Shares held for

EQUITY

Share-based

Share  share award  compensation Other Merger Exchange Retained
capital scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
S 7 2R - Wkdn
FERAN %%%Z 5 y )
B B FE R Hith X R A REBF B
(note 19(c)) (notg 20) (note 19(h)) (notg 19(e) (note 19(f) (notg 19(9)
(H3E19()) (Hsk20)  (FIsE19m)  (BH&E196) (Faxrom)  (BE19(g)
Notes $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
it T T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2020 R-Z-ZFNA-HHN
& 10 - - 75,020 (6,193) (275) 307,989 376,551
Changes in equity for 2021: “EC-FHEREE:
Profit for the year FRRF _ _ _ _ _ _ 287,792 287,792
Other comprehensive income Eth2EK s _ _ _ _ _ 987 _ 987
Total comprehensive income FHENERE - - - - - 087 087,792 288,779
Issue of shares under share award ~ FtAR{D 2B =T 81 81T R D
scheme 20 - - - - - - - -
Dividends approved and paid in F—FEH AR
respect of the previous year e 19(b) - - - - - - (120,000) (120,000)
Equity settled share-based R EE AR D
transactions BEBHR S 20 - - 144 - - - - 144
Balance at 31 March 2021 R=-B=--£=A
=t-BH&ER 10 - 144 75,020 (6,193) 712 475,781 545,474
EFERERAR < 20212258 12



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEEDEHR
Shares held
for share  Share-based
award compensation Other Merger Exchange Retained
Share capital scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AROER DY)
AEBEN AEBZ
(L€ i47) FMREE HittfE EhtEE EHGRE REEF B
(note 19(c)) (note 20) (note 19(h)) (note 19(e)) (note 19(f)) (note 19(g))
(B =E19(c)) (HzF20)  (FF&E19(h)  (Rf=E19(e)) (Ki&E19(f)  (FIEE19(g))
Notes $'000 $/000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $/000
(k3 T T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2021 R-E--FNA—-HH
Fe3-7 10 = 144 75,020 (6,193) 712 475,781 545,474
Changes in equity for 2022: “ECICENEREE:
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - 202,960 202,960
Other comprehensive income Atz ERE - - - - - 674 - 674
Total comprehensive income el etk - - - - - 674 202,960 203,634
Issue of shares under share award A% {7 2 EDt 213 1T M (0
scheme 20 =* =* - - - - - -
Issue of shares under share option ~ BtEERRHE T 81247/ (D
scheme 20 385 = = = = = - 385
Dividends approved and paid in F—FEHAERTIH
respect of the previous year ) 19(b) - - - - - - (280,000) (280,000)
Equity settled share-based NEREERURNBE
transactions BHR S 20 - - 4,381 - - - 4,015 8,396
Issue of shares upon global offering, 72 RE & H 1T -
net of issuing costs BREFTA R 19(c) 1,115,577 - - (40,099) - - - 1,075,478
Balance at 31 March 2022 R-ZB--%=AH
=t+-AMEe 1,115,972 = 4,525 34,921 (6,193) 1,386 402,756 1,553,367

* The amount is less than $1,000.

The notes on pages 124 to 214 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2 A 3 =
mEBEERER
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FE__—F=A=+—HIFFE L ETIT)

2022 2021
—E—= T
Notes $’°000 $ 000
B 5T Fr Tt

Operating activities BESEE
Cash generated from operations EIBATG fﬁi 13(b) 685,460 716,298
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERBEBNEH (72,182) (8,982)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETBHRBRLFE 613,278 707,316

Investing activities REEE
Interest received B F B 1,667 1,316
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  RBRRSENNR (131,999) (121,856)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE - HERBRENERIE 175 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHARLSFE (130,157) (120,540)

Financing activities R EE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERENERT D 13(c) (337,560) (277,979)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EARERS S HBD 13(c) (14,871) (14,489)

Proceeds from issue of shares upon global offering, REIRFEE BT AEHIB

net of issuing costs paid ?DF?EH%TTBZﬁ 19(c) 1,075,478 —
Proceeds from issue of shares under share option scheme FLEE AT B BT ARD FTIS FB 19(c) 385 —
Decrease in amount due to immediate and ultimate holding company BN EEZ LR % B 2OE R 13(c) - (12,493)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company BN GEERERE 19(b) (280,000) (120,000)
Listing expenses paid EfEMRAX (22,167) (2,325)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities BETEFRE (TR R FHE 421,265 (427,286)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBeESEYENFEE 904,386 159,490
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year REINEERBREEEY 460,851 301,361
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year RERNBEERBEEEEY 13(a) 1,365,237 460,851

The notes on pages 124 to 214 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7% R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSM #6585 - BRI E TS T)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

1 24 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Annual Report 2021/22
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basic of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”). The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

1 26 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

— Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

— Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, /nterest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 16 such that as a lessee it was not
required to assess whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic were lease modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met. One of these conditions
requires the reduction in lease payments affect only payments originally due on or before a specified
time limit. The 2021 amendment extends this time limit from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has adopted the 2021 amendment in this financial year. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2021.

Annual Report 2021/22
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, /nterest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications, and
(i) discontinuing hedge accounting when an interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The amendments
do not have an impact on these financial statements as the Group does not have contracts that are
indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject to the IBOR reform.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and
cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

1 28 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(g)(ii)). A controlled structured entity that is directly held by the
Company is considered as the branch/agent of the Company and the assets and liabilities thereof are
accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company in the Company’s statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FESHBX(E)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W WEKkzE

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and M - HBERRBEEBERNAREZATE

impairment losses (see note 1(g)(ii)). MO EEES R (R 1)) °

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their Y - R REEEBE T EREMET

estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as A AFEIA - MR ARE ET ISR EE (10

follows: B)  NEBEFBEIRE

— Leasehold improvements Remaining term of the tenancy lease — HEWMEERE A T 65 F HB

— Furniture and fixtures 20% — R B E 2 20%

— Machinery and equipment 20% — WS REE 20%

— Computer equipment 20% — BINEE 20%

— Motor vehicles 25% — AE 25%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. BEMAEAFTHERNG®ER(WMB)HEF
=6 o

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment WESLEYE  HERREBEEMELERN

are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the Wk EiE AN EMSRIEFREEE KT

item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. BzEERE  WHRHRERLEBBREERER
R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly,
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

— the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

1 30 Tam Jai International Co. Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FESFEEXE)
() Leased assets (continued) (n HEEEE)

—  the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the — AFEEAEEFBEEENRARZ - EAKE
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset GRHENSEEFAIARERAENZ
is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is ZREERRRER  ~EERERSE
predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset if either: BEERGHWEN EERBAT - M

FREEEAIARERBNIRER
BEETE - BIARKEENL ME—RHET
BEXTEEERGOER

—  the Group has the right to operate the asset; or — AEBEBEREEERE XK
—  the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will — AEBHEEMNRSABELEET
be used. BEEAARXRFERER -
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains lease and non-lease components, the REBEEHERIEHEEAK IS KA LFLEK
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their HESHAE2K  AEERBABELE
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the T& BEYNREIEESHEAKIT S
Group has elected to separate non-lease components and accounts for the lease and non-lease AT - R AEE AEME AN i REFHE
components separately. E AEEEERSIFEEEXNSD - UK

ﬂﬁﬂi;f&#ﬁ,\,ﬂﬁk*ﬁ D385 B

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, REERKBBE  ANEERATHAEEER

except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value HEaE WHEBAA12(EA ARG HE

assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides ENBEEBEEEERIN - EAEEREEEE

whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those EFVHE AEESTREIEELAEES

leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease Hﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁéﬁzﬁ{t HZENTENMEWEER

term. BHOHENFTRERANRE ZRSGEEERR
X e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FESFEERE)
() Leased assets (continued) (n HEEEE)
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease EARHEHER  HEBGEVRDAEBRAZA
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if XNz HENFZRERR  FREENRE
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the BN RS (AT ZNE) EREMIEE
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 1ﬁi'7 MEFRF[LE - —BME AEEEH

ERRMEERITIE -

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: SAIAEEEHECHENRBREUATEE:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; — BEEMR BREZEEMNK:
—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or —  HURREBEHSFE 2 AT#HEENK
the rate as at the commencement date; AR BB 2 BB X2
— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and — REFNSKEEEREHENZEFE &
—  the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease — AEEEEASEHTECEBERERE
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an TZ?‘T@{E CRARESBEEEHITR
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably REEE AREERERBHECHEE
certain not to terminate early. HTA PARIRRBIARIEHE 2 S50 - BRI

AEBEGESTETSRAIKL -

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is R % %ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁizﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an ERXHEBERFBEE - THUAR—IB
index or a rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to EHS L XA E#HENE T’E%Efﬂfﬁ
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred. TEEI'JJ‘EW HitREEn et HRmNaE
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Leased assets (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically adjusted by impairment losses (see note
1(g)(i)), if any, and certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted for separately from the right-of-use
assets and any difference between the initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made and is included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 765 5)

1

£87 - BRI ETTSR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

1 34 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Leased assets (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or a rate, or if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease modification”)
that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16, Leases. In
such cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and recognised the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

In the consolidated and company-level statements of financial position, the current portion of long-
term lease liabilities is determined as the principal portion of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)
(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables and
deposits).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other receivables and
deposits are discounted using the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event occurs when the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held). The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SR AR MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 765 5}

1

£87 - BRI ETTSR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(9)

(i)

1 38 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the
Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in
credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)
(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(o)(ii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have

an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR M T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 765 5}

1

£87 - BRI ETTSR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(9)

(i)

(i)

1 40 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investments in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-generating
units if otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SR AR MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(9)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iiij) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see note 1(g)(ii)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 765 5)

1

£87 - BRI ETTSR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

@)

(k)

1 44 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest method including an allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(9)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(g)(i).

Trade and other payables and contract liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note 1(0)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 1(i)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(l Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share awards and share options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the valuation model taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the share awards and share options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share awards and share options, the total estimated fair value of the share awards and share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the share
awards and share options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SR AR MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

()

(i)

1 46 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share awards and share options that is expected to
vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share awards and share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-based compensation reserve until the
share awards are vested (when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital for the
shares issued) in the case of share awards or until either the share options are exercised (when
it is included in the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the share
options expire (when it is released directly to retained profits) in the case of share options.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FTESHBEE(Z)
() Employee benefits (continued) N EEEFNE)
(iii)  Provision for long service payments (i) REBRBLEE

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods, and is discounted to determine the present value
and reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.

Service cost on the net defined benefit liability is recognised in profit or loss as “staff costs”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee services in the current period.

Remeasurement arising from long service payments, if material, is recognised in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately in retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax

credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

FTESFEE(E)
(m) FAEH (&)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(m) Income tax (continued)

Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary differences or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(o) Revenue and other income
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of goods or the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) Revenue and other income (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Sale of food and beverages

The Group recognises revenue from the operation of restaurants which provide catering
services. Revenue from the provision of catering services is recognised at a point in time when
the services are rendered.

Loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme where customers accumulate reward points from
qualified purchases. The reward points earned through qualified purchases entitle the customers
to discount future purchases and are considered as a separate performance obligation arising
from transactions with customers. The Group estimates the value of the future redemption
obligation based on the estimated value of the products or services for which the reward points
are expected to be redeemed based on the historical redemption pattern, including an estimate
of the lapse of reward points that will not be redeemed. Subsequently, the contract liability is
recognised as revenue at the point in time when the customers redeem the reward points in
future purchases, or when the Group is legally released from its obligation when the reward
points expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 765 5}

1

£87 - BRI ETTSR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(o)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

1 52 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Sale of food and beverages (continued)

Coupons

The Group receives consideration when customers purchase coupons, estimates the value of the
future redemption obligation based on the estimated value of the products or services for which
the coupons are expected to be redeemed, and recognises the estimated fair value in the
statement of financial position as a contract liability. Subsequently, the contract liability is
recognised as revenue at the point in time when the customers redeem the coupons in future
purchases, or when the Group is legally released from its obligation when the coupons expire.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective interest method using the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 1(g)(i).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(q)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the Group initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SR AR MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 765 5}

£87 - BRI ETTSR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

0)

(i)

(iv)

1 54 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

()

Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies: (continued)

(viij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial period and significant sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed below:

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to assess
whether there is any indication that right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment is estimated. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the
conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable amounts,
which would affect profit or loss in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 3 WaEkoHEHR
The principal activities of the Group are the operation of restaurants. The restaurants trade in the name of AEENEIERHRKLER BREUNIEFIR
“TamJai” and “SamGor”. [=FINEEREE -
The Group manages its business as a single unit and, accordingly, the operation of restaurants is the only AEBNUNSE-BMEEEEL Bt KE2E
reporting segment and virtually all of the revenue and operating profits is derived from this business EE—MHREDE - MET A = RLEE R
segment. The financial statements are already presented in a manner consistent with the way in which BREMEBRDE - Hﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁéﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ$%
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of EsaTHEREREEMAETERD B R
resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, no separate business segment information is HMERR—BOAXEN - Bt - ﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬂ'ﬂ
disclosed. B EHER -
Revenue represents the sales value of food and beverages and excludes value added tax or other sales WaHERmAAHNEHEBEARTBEEBENK
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. HEMEERBACHMBREREZ SN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3 WaksHER(E)
(a) Geographic information (a) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue RIS () A S B R B INDE P H U (i)
from external customers and (i) the Group’s right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment REEMFREEERYE KB NEE
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on the location at ([FEFERBEE]) HHMEBLEER - B
which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of the specified B IR B DIRIB IR RS XM E i
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of right-of-use assets BT FEHENDEE(MATAEEE
and property, plant and equipment. RE M RERE WBUEIERE
ENERUE -
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENSFEFE Bk BEFRBDEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E_-= T —F —E_— —EF -
$°000 $'000 $’000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Ft
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FT1E) 2,221,773 1,783,762 767,831 697,703
Mainland China AR A 27,776 — 48,769 8,020
Singapore s 25,698 10,931 33,495 28,679
Japan SN 51 - 59,170 —
53,525 10,931 141,434 36,699
2,275,298 1,794,693 909,265 734,402
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3 WmkoIER(E)

(b) Information about major customers b) BEREXEEZFMNER
There was no revenue from an individual customer contributing over 10% of total revenue of the P = —— T —F=A=+—
Group during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. HIEFE BEREE—TPAOKEEERSE

B s BB 10% °

OTHER NET INCOME 4 HWARHE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Bank interest income IRITH BUA 1,667 1,316
Government subsidies (Note) BT 4 B (B 3E) 54,768 154,585
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-1918 T & &R 750 11,715
Gain on early termination of leases RATAX EHE W 31 140
Loss on disposal of owned property, plant and equipment, net HEBEYE  HERREEE  F8 (701) 977)
Others Hit 1,217 1,015
57,732 167,794
Note: These mainly represented subsidies provided by governments of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and Singapore to M EXEEAABNTHRERTINEBRER T &
the Group for the purpose of easing the impact caused by COVID-19. There were no unfulfiled conditions attaching to these COVID-1975 3R By 2 & i A AN SR B IR 804 B - 2 Z U
government subsidies. FAL T KRBT ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR Bt B 2 Al

BRBiADE A E k(G A) THI&IA

2022 2021
—E_-— T4
$’000 $'000
T Tt
(@) Finance costs B & R AN

Interest on lease liabilities (note 13(c)) HEBEME (HMiE13(c) 14,871 14,489

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments (note 7)) BIRK(BEESHM (M)
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fae LENEMER 682,300 534,943
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans AEH-FRIRET B A H R 32,112 24,355
Share-based payments ARR 1D B E R S+ 8,396 144
722,808 559,442
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRBIANER (22)
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—4F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Other items Hih1E H
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and equipment — BBEWE  HBEREZE 92,212 66,482
— right-of-use assets — FREEE 354,610 309,112
446,822 375,594
Variable lease payments, net of COVID-19-related rent concessions, 1K COVID-19/8BIf & BRI E M AT A E 3
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities Tt AHEBENGE
— variable lease payments — AJEHEERNK 7,462 3,860
— COVID-19-related rent concessions — COVID-19/8#8 1 & &R (7,283) (3,860)
179 —
Auditors’ remuneration % SR 5 B
— Audit services — ZEAR 2,446 930
— Tax services — MBRS 287 261
— Other services — HRS 280 12
3,013 1,203
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KEBEEEHEMRBRX 4,572 3,702
Expense relating to short-term leases EHHEERBERX 481 506
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment reversed, net Y - R REREREEERRFRE - (1,126)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets reversed, net FREEEREBBRLFE - (522)
Cost of inventories (note 11) BFERA (MFE11) 518,267 411,464
EFEBRERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

6

REBRBERANFAE

REBRBERTHBIEARE

2022 2021
—_E_ —E-—F
$°000 $'000
T T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BB — FBFEH
Provision for the year F G 50,961 33,675
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years BEFE (BEREB),/BETR (3,302) 689
47,659 34,364
Deferred tax EEBE
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (note 16(b)) EERERERZR (H3E16(b) (5,552) (1,905)
Income tax expense BB x 42,107 32,459
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 March 2022 is calculated at 16.5% HE T FZA=Z+—HIFENEHE

(2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits, except for one qualifying entity (the “Qualifying
Entity”) of the Group that is under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

For the Qualifying Entity, the first $2 million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this
entity was calculated at the same basis in 2021. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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NS BB TR AT RRTE M 16.5% (=
T-—F:165%) 8 HEAKE -HAE
REB(AERER]RANEHMMAF T

HRAEKER g _a8TERREFM
& /8.25% + 82 T FE R B s A1 Bl 42 16.5%
B ZEBERN B —FNEBNEHE
EIVRERNEETE - THFE RIS MR
HH R BB MR K EEIZ16.5% M5 —
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6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents: (continued)
Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation
ruling in the relevant jurisdictions. No provision for tax outside Hong Kong has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not have any assessable profits generated by
these subsidiaries for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

REBRBERTPHAEHR (F)

(a)

(b)

FEBRERTHBRIEE: (&)
FERIMNB RN RN IZ AR ADERRR
TREEREGK ARAKEREE=F
TCERIFE A=+ HLFEY
BERZEWMBEARELENEMERTEN -
A BN R B B IS IR EHR B B A MR IR B
g o

BERAXEZERARRITENG T ENZ
B B9 AR

2022 2021

e —E - —4F

$’000 $’000

Fr Tt

Profit before taxation B % A s 245,067 320,251
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable %7 B8 7174 # & 5@ F #03% M R st E B B AT

to profits in the jurisdictions concerned i A E I 35,493 52,271

Tax effect of non-taxable income BAGFHRANHBEZE (9,062) (26,156)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses BRI 2 7,098 3,437

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RERRRE AT EE BN 7,397 2,166

Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised RERNEREZHENWEEE 4,641 623

(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years BAFE (GBREEB) BETE (3,302) 689

Statutory tax concession EERIE R R (50) (50)

Others HAth (108) (521)

Actual tax expense ERBBRAXZ 42,107 32,459

EFERERAT @ 20212258 103
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Bt 35 SR AR MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

7

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

EEHM

RIBEEBCABED)E383(1)IEM(AR (HKEE
EMmER) RODE2MBEBENEZTHMAOT -

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme payments
fees in kind bonuses contributions (Note iii) Total
ABR 12
e 2UR REBNZHA
EEZHe EWERN BIETEAL BRIKFTEIMER (Bt & iii) ot
$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000 $’000
T T Fr T T Fr
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZT-_—%F
—A=+—HIFE
Directors )
— Mr. Lau Tat Man — 2ERESE — 2,990 1,519 138 17 4,664
— Mr. Kobayashi Hiroyuki — \REZ LA — — — _ _ _
— Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro — BHRRAEEE — — — — — —
- 2,990 1,519 138 17 4,664
Year ended 31 March 2022 HEz—ZT—-—F
—A=+—HLFE
Executive directors HITES
— Mr. Lau Tat Man — BERLAE = 3,538 2,086 138 3,533 9,295
— Ms. Chan Ping, Rita — Bz = 1,800 803 36 1,800 4,439
— Mr. Lee Yuk Hang — FEEXRE 131 582 154 31 134 1,032
Non-executive directors ERITES
— Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro — HPRRELEE — — — — — —
— Mr. Sugiyama Takashi — L ELEA - - - - - -
— Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi — ¥Rk A - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B IEHITE S
— Mr. Lee Kwok Ming — ZFERAEE 88 - - - - 88
— Mr. Loo Kwok Wing — EEKRE 88 — — — — 88
— Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung — BRBEE 88 - - - - 88
395 5,920 3,043 205 5,467 15,030
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7

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(0

(i

(i)

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 there was no amount paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of
the five highest paid individuals as set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, there was no arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to waive
any emolument during the years.

Total directors’ emoluments are included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)).

These represent the estimated value of share awards and share options granted to the directors under the Company’s share
award and share option schemes. The value of these share awards and share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payments as set out in note 1(l)(i). The details of these share awards and share options,
including the principal terms and number of awards and options granted, are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

Ms. Chan Ping, Rita, Mr. Lee Yuk Hang, Mr. Sugiyama Takashi and Mr. Shinkuma Satoshi were appointed as directors of the
Company and Mr. Tanaka Kimihiro was re-designated as a non-executive director on 8 April 2021. Mr. Kobayashi Hiroyuki
resigned on 31 July 2020.

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Mr. Loo Kwok Wing and Mr. Yeung Yiu Keung were appointed as independent non-executive directors of
the Company on 14 September 2021.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

EEHM(E

Wi

0] REBEE_ZS__FR-_T-_—F=-A=+—HLEFE "
AN 52 (B 3 4 1) 2 Bk SO RE8 BT (T (R o B B s o B
AT S S FRIB VR A DA SR AN A AR £ B B e B2 D
HVEABIAE - N FRLEEEREXLRBRE
B 2 HE -

(ii) EEHMREAATE A (HEE5(Db))

@iy  ERBEAQGBRMERLBRETERTESHRGE
B R BRENGEEE ZERDERRERENEE
RIBM 1) T HEANEEAOARMD BERN OSSR
BURsTE - ZERNEBHRBERENFE  BEDEE
B R ERENEZHERREE - REBIREM 204 -

(v RZE-—FEANB B¥xt FHELE £U
ZLAERHBRRAELERZEIRARTEZLRAT AR
EEFERFATER - IMEZARER T _TF+
R=+—R#1E-

MRZZEZ_—FAATEA  FEALE  EBERTER
HGRBEEREZERNARBULIFNITES -
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5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 BEHMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2021: one) are directors whose emoluments are TEEaTFMALTEF MEB(ZTE=—F:—%8)
disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2021: four) individuals REE HEMEERWZ7 HBp=% (2T =
are as follows: —F B ATHFHMBENT -

2022 2021

—=E-= —E-—%F

$°000 $'000

Tt Tt

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEMEH 3,843 5,006
Discretionary bonuses B 15 EAL 1,674 1,294
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 72 112
Share-based payments ARR D B ETRH AT 491 26
6,080 6,438

The emoluments of the three (2021: four) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following

=R (CE—F  OR)RSHMATHHNE

bands: BT :
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,001 7t 2 1,500,0007T = 2
$1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1,500,001 7t £2,000,0007T 1 1
$2,000,001 — $2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,0007C 2 1
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (A BREXRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity FA - BRERZMNDIBREBEARF L BER
shareholders of the Company of $202,960,000 (2021: $287,792,000) and the weighted average of % R {5 % 7 £202,960, 000712(— = —
1,162,750,000 ordinary shares (2021: 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year. The % :287,792,0007T) K B 1T 7JI] ¥ 19
number of ordinary shares in issue has taken into account of the share subdivision of one existing 1,162,750,000 % & @ % (_ — 4
share into 100,000 shares pursuant to the sole shareholder’s resolution passed on 25 March 2021 1,000,000,0000% & i@ A% ) 5T & ° E?"ﬁ%ﬁ
and the issue of new shares upon global offering and under the Company’s share award and share BREBEEFAEBEE—RER-_T-_—F=
option schemes, and after deducting shares held by a trust under the share award scheme as set out AT hBRBRRBERSE —RRERGH
in note 20 to the financial statements. #r 75100,000 A% A% 17 B AR 17 7% 40 LA &2 2 Bk 3%

ERRIFEAR R B BB BT 813 1T
FT R - 30 B HNRR B S R M RE20 P L AR D
EREET & TEREATR AR ©

Weighted average number of ordinary shares TNFEF 19 E B R E
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
’000 ’000
F & T A%
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year FYBEITE B 1,000,000 1,000,000
Effect of shares issued upon global offering PREEROBEITRONEE 161,538 —
Effect of shares issued under the Company’s share award scheme BIBEARRRRGD ’i@%ﬂ FrEIEBITRMONZE 1,028 —
Effect of share options exercised BT ERENTE 184 —
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end of the year & 7 Ji#& F 15 & @ A% £x 1,162,750 1,000,000
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 9 BREFE)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREEERR
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity EREEREANTIBREARAAG EBER “?JE
shareholders of the Company of $202,960,000 (2021: $287,792,000) and the weighted average 5% F £202,960,0000 (= & = —
number of ordinary shares of 1,166,658,000 shares (2021: 1,000,066,000 shares), calculated as 287,792,0007m) & m#EFHYE ?E
follows: B £01,166,658,000f (=& = — F :

1,000,066,000/%) st & 0T :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) MEFITEBRE (5
2022 2021
—Eg=-= —E - —F
’000 ’000
T T A&
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end of the AEERERRFGCERFERINE T TR
year used in calculating basic earnings per share 1,162,750 1,000,000
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under the Company’s REARBRDERZRIEETETRRNOZE
share award scheme 2,676 39
Effect of outstanding share options RITHERENTE 1,232 27
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at the end FRMETIEBRE (EE)
of the year 1,166,658 1,000,066
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BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZS50 155 -

BRI E T FR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 10 V¥ BBERRERGEHEESE

Proper%, Q?% ;Eng %E(%ipment

Right-of- Leasehold Furniture Machinery Computer Motor
use assets  improvements and fixtures and equipnlent equipngent vehicles Sub-totgl Totgl
EREEE £ GRARETZRE # B il e @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tr Tr T T T
Cost: B
At 1 April 2020 RZE-TENA—H 984,520 229,890 60,128 47,983 7,637 3,706 349,344 1,333,864
Additions 372,090 87,504 3,633 12,413 17,566 740 121,856 493,946
Disposals/write-offs (274,392) (15,273) (3,790) (1,805) (6,057) - (26,925) (301,317)
Transfers - 24,229 (37,939) 1,950 11,760 - - -
Exchange adjustment 651 133 2 23 17 - 175 826
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
1,082,869 326,483 22,034 60,564 30,923 4,446 444,450 1,527,319
Additions NE 497,934 102,120 5,231 11,423 13,225 = 131,999 629,933
Disposals/write-offs WE /i (270,617) (4,159) (1,757) (906) (239) (319) (7,380) (277,997)
Exchange adjustment ek (3,052) (484) 7 (6) 15 - (468) (3,520)
At 31 March 2022 RZZEZZ$=R=+—H 1,307,134 423,960 25,515 71,075 43,924 4127 568,601 1,875,735
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses: 23t ERFAERFSE
At 1 April 2020 R-ZZE-ZTFNA—H 482,904 153,690 45,994 30,491 1,276 3,044 234,495 717,399
Charge for the year ERZH 309,112 49,539 5,127 7,892 3,653 271 66,482 375,594
Write-back on disposals/write-offs HE /MR RE (272,452) (15,260) (3,637) (1,411) (5,640) - (25,948) (298,400)
Impairment loss (reversed)/made mEEE (BE)/ GHE (522) (1,121) 69 (40) (34) - (1,126) (1,648)
Transfers 25 - 19,570 (32,002) 2,872 9,560 - - -
Exchange adjustment B 5 A% (19) (10) - 1 - - 9) (28)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZB-—#%=ZA=1+—-HK
S =] 519,023 206,408 15,551 39,805 8,815 3,315 273,894 792,917
Charge for the year FANT 354,610 75,083 2,548 7,593 6,616 372 92,212 446,822
Write-back on disposals/write-offs WE /MR EE (266,810) (3,935) (1,459) (628) (163) (319) (6,504) (273,314)
Exchange adjustment L (508) 462 87 2 2 - 553 45
At 31 March 2022 RZZ-ZZ#=A=1+—H 606,315 278,018 16,727 46,772 15,270 3,368 360,155 966,470
Net book value: SR FHE
At 31 March 2022 RZZZZ$=ZR=+-H 700,819 145,942 8,788 24,303 28,654 759 208,446 909,265
At 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—$=ZR=+—H 563,846 120,075 6,483 20,759 22,108 1,131 170,556 734,402
ApERERAT < 20212258 1060



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, management identified restaurants which were under-
performed and estimated the recoverable amounts of the right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment of these restaurants.

Based on management’s assessment, no impairment was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022.
For the year ended 31 March 2021, impairment losses of $718,000 and $255,000 were recognised on
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment of certain restaurants respectively. The estimated
recoverable amounts of these restaurants based on their value in use determined using a discount rate of
14% net of relevant lease liabilities amounted to $641,000 as at 31 March 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, management re-assessed the recoverable amounts of the right-of-
use assets and property, plant and equipment of certain restaurants that were subject to impairment losses
in prior years as there had been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of such restaurants. Based on these estimates, impairment losses on the right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment of $1,240,000 and $1,381,000 were reversed respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the net reversal of impairment losses of $522,000 and $1,126,000 on
the carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment were recognised in other
expenses respectively.
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10 WX BBIRREREAREE (&)

BE_T-_—Fh-FT-_—F-fF=1+—HIL#F
B - EEECRARARENER  LHAZEF
ERERAEEERDE HERREHITRE S
B e

BEEEENE SERBEE_TS-_=_F=A
=+t HLEFERRRE BEZE-_T=-—F=A
=+—HIEFE EBREAEEERETERED
W - e RS B ERBEET B 718,000 &
0550007C c R—E-—E=A=+—H ZEE
BERIEE L 14%80 30 R E FrFEREEMN G A
We+E(NkEBEERE) £641,0007T °

HE-_Z-_—F=-A=1+—HIFE EEE=S
St ETEENEAREERDE HERRK
HRBTFEFRAEBER) NI KREE2E B
RAREEZEEENA KRB ENMGETLEERA
Mg - ERNZEME  BECHAREERYE -
25 & 3% 18 B9 R 1B /B 811,240,000t & 1,381,000
T o

HE T -_—F=-A=+—HILFE FHEZ
ERYE  #eSRREREEREEIE#RFE
522,0007T 5 1,126,000 5 B A E A0 5 X AHERR o



10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continueq)

(a)

Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

10 ¥% HBERREREAEEE (F)
(a) HEAEEE
AR ERRINEREEEREFED T

W
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E - —F
$°000 $000
F Tt
Properties leased for own use, carried at depreciated cost (Note) BAEEWE LI EKARSIER (K1) 700,819 563,846

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were $497,934,000 (2021: $372,090,000). The
amount was primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements and lease modifications.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes
13(d) and 21(b), respectively.

Note: The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its restaurants and central kitchens through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to ten years. Lease payments are usually adjusted upon renewal to
reflect market rentals. There are certain leases that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments
that are based on sales generated from the restaurants and minimum annual lease payment terms that are fixed. These
payment terms are common in restaurants in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland China where the Group operates.

FA - FRBEERED RIA497,934,0007T
(ZZ——%:372,090,0007T) ° BT E
HREHMEEMRENNEENMEEERNK
R EEHRAEEA -

HERe Rt REMAEaENESHE S
FEIE D BIE KT FE13(d) & 21(b) ©

e AEERREEBERSERYRESEERER
TREFEHEN - HENTBER RS2+
F-HENFTBEGNEHIEHRE  URRTS
HEKF ETHERSHABLRIDEBERE
REBFEENHEERNAEBEENT  ULE
ERMREFENTGER - ZSMREREAKR
KEMEWEE  PEAM A MENERERS
BEEA -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

11 INVENTORIES 11 FE
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position represent food and beverages. FREMBRAKRANTFERERmEKE -
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in the consolidated BRAEAIRFAGEEBRERANTEREIN
statement of profit or loss is as follows: m
2022 2021
—E_-— B —F
$°000 $'000
T T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEGFERME 518,267 411,464
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 12 ESZRHMEBERFEREZEERBNRE
2022 2021
—E—= —E-—

$°000 $°000
T Tt
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B S REWEIE - MR EEEE 15,014 15,109
Other receivables Hoth JE W SR IR 42,235 11,205
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b e I8 57,249 26,314
Deposits e 152,217 127,169
Prepayments TET B 46,646 19,391
256,112 172,874

Represented by: AVE. 3
Non-current portion EMENE 129,723 106,324
Current portion mENE 126,389 66,550
256,112 172,874

The amount of the Group’s deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
after more than one year are rental deposits and prepayments for owned property, plant and equipment of
$129,723,000 (2021: $106,324,000). All of the other trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

AEBBEHER —FRKRBXERAEFAINES
NI FTE - B5129,723, 000t ER S RER
ME BELITHENENRB(ZEZ—F:
106,324,0007T) ° FTBEME 5 R HAbfEUGRIA -
Ze RFEMFEERBER —FRKE S #ER AR

S

EFBEBRAERLIE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)
Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date

and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

12

W5 REMBRKARESREMRE

(&
BR S 5 #T

RBERR - BZRUFIBEREZEF A LMK

BEBRHROREDTIOT

2022 2021

—=E_-= —EZ—F

$°000 $'000

ST Tz

Less than 30 days DHB0K 14,633 15,001
31 to 60 days 31£60K 379 66
61 to 90 days 61290k 2 40
91 to 120 days 91 E120K = 2
15,014 15,109

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on cash and smart card settlement, except for
well-established corporate debtors for which the credit term is generally 30 days. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables and deposits are set out in note 21(a).

The loss allowance of trade receivables as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 was insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 13 BEeERBITESRREMBEESREER
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise: (a) RERMVITHEBERE !
2022 2021
—=E_-= —EZ—F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Cast at bank and on hand in the consolidated statement of REFBRARANRITERFERS
financial position 1,366,650 470,963
Less: pledged deposits B BERER (1,413) (10,112)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement AR ESHREXRNNR L NIRSEEYD 1,365,237 460,851

Included in cash at bank are bank deposits of $1,413,000 (2021: $10,112,000) pledged to a bank to
secure facilities granted to the Group.

RITREBEEEFE FRITNETER B
1,413,0007T (ZZ = —% :10,112,0007T ) #E
AREBREREEMIET -

EFERERAR @ 20212258 175



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations:

13 W& KRBT

(&

EHRkEMBESREER

(b) BRBAGFREERBSRENHIR

2022 2021
—E=-= B —F
Notes $°000 $°000
B 5 T T
Operating activities ReEER
Profit before taxation B 52 B A 245,067 320,251
Adjustments for: PR
Depreciation e 5(c) 446,822 375,594
Bank interest income ERIT A BUA 4 (1,667) (1,316)
COVID-19-related rent concessions received EHﬁZCOVID 1918 & B (8,033) (15,575)
Finance costs B & P A 5(a) 14,871 14,489
Gain on early termination of leases IRAIR I EHEE W S 4 (31) (140)
Loss on disposal of owned property, plant and equipment, net HEBBME KSR EKEBETFE 4 701 977
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment reversed, net  #1% - #22 K 5% & R (B B 18 B B F 58 5(c) = (1,126
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets reversed, net FRREERBEBBRLFE 5(c) - (522)
Share-based payments ARR D BERE A 5(b) 8,396 144
Net foreign exchange loss b X 518 %5 1,290 744
707,416 693,520
Changes in working capital: LEEEF
Increase in inventories FE (2,440) (643)
Increase in trade and other receivables é%&ﬁ{ﬁfﬂ& R IAHE N (30,935) (11,426)
Increase in deposits and prepayments Hz%&i‘ﬁﬁ Iﬁi‘ n (59,548) (12,714)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits e ErEE / (3 n) 8,699 6,512)
Increase in trade and other payables and accruals and ff%&ﬁﬂﬂﬂgﬁ RIEREFER K
deposits received B Uiz & 158 0 50,241 60,015
Increase in provision for unused annual leave KIEA Efﬁiﬁéﬁi n 17(a) 4,478 559
Increase/(decrease) in provision for long service payments R EIRR TS (S SR g o, CRl ) 17(b) 7,825 (1,730)
Utilisation of provision for reinstatement costs B F1E R AR 17(c) (276) (4,771)
Cash generated from operations EEmESES 685,460 716,298

1 76 Tam Jai International Co. Limited Annual Report 2021/22



13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

13 BE KBTS

(4

TERBERAMRES

(c) FREBMEITBHNEEHR
TRFANAEERRBETHNAGEE

REER

and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows BREeMIFReEE - /J?E"mﬁﬁ/ﬁiﬂﬁ’\]%
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash BEREREENEIARAKBEREB TR AEE
flows from financing activities. REHREeRERAPERRNBREETH RS
//n,iﬂj‘],@\ﬁél °
Amount due to
immediate
holding Lease
company liabilities Total
& HET&T
NGIEN IE HEBRE s
§'000 $'000 $000
T Tt T
(note 14) (note 15)
(H5E14) (Mi3E15)
At 1 April 2020 E@Zg:gfﬁ MA—H 12,493 513,005 525,498
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRERT :
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERSHERNETD - (277,979) (277,979)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEES T E LD - (14,489 (14,489)
Decrease in amount due to immediate holding company fﬁﬁ&% % A B 5K IE R A (12,493) — (12,493)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSRESLHEE (12,493) (292,468) (304,961)
Other changes: Hit 25 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases F &I #HEE MEEBEKTE LD
and lease modifications during the year HEHEE - 363,436 363,436
Early termination of leases IR IEHE \ - (2,080) (2,080)
COVID-19-related rent concessions received B UzCOoVID- 19$H AL ER - (15,575) (15,575)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) F B (M E5(a)) - 14,489 14,489
Exchange adjustment ME 3, 58 B - 592 592
Total other changes Hih B EEss - 360,862 360,862
At 31 March 2021 R-BE-_—%=HA=+—H — 581,399 581,399
BRERERAR w 202t25% 1777/



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (continued)

18 RERRTERRAMRESREEN

(&

(c) METBFELEEHER(E)

Amount due
to immediate
and ultimate

holding Lease
company liabilities Total
ERfEER
BAER
AERIE HESE Mt
$°000 $°000 $°000
T T Fr
(note 14) (note 15)
(FfzE14) (Fff5E15)
At 1 April 2021 R-E-_—FWMA—H 5 581,399 581,399
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREFT :
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERENERST S - (337,560) (337,560)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEReNFBIXD - (14,871) (14,871)
Total changes from financing cash flows BMERESNELHARE - (352,431) (352,431)
Other changes: Hth 5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases TR HAE LA EEHMMELED
and lease modifications during the year HEABEEMN - 478,895 478,895
Early termination of leases RATKIEAE - (3,838) (3,838)
COVID-19-related rent concessions received B UCOVID-19+8 1 & B R - (8,033) (8,033)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FEF X (M E5(a)) - 14,871 14,871
Exchange adjustment bE i B - (2,755) (2,755)
Total other changes HE B RzE - 479,140 479,140
At 31 March 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F=ZHA=+-—H — 708,108 708,108
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 13 RERBITERREMBESREER
(continued) (4&
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d HERSRHARE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for lease rentals paid comprise the rEHeRERANENHENSNSERRE
following: AT
2022 2021
—=E_-= —EZ—F
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Within operating cash flows TAKEReRE 5,232 4,208
Within financing cash flows FARBERERE 352,431 292,468
357,663 296,676

EEERARAR < 20212248 170



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

All of the trade and other payables and accruals and deposits received are expected to be settled or

14 ESZREMENSREREFERRENW

B

BB REMENKEAREFERREREZS

recognised as income or are repayable on demand. FEEHER —FRENIERBRN G BIREKE
\zﬁ o

2022 2021
—E_-— T4
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Trade payables B 5 FRIA 37,394 44,595
Other payables and accruals HiENZIEREFER 161,561 124,543
Contract liabilities AHEE 222 1,027
Trade and other payables and accruals B REMENFERETER 199,177 170,165
Deposits received Bz e 200 375
199,377 170,540

Included in the amount of the Group’s other payables and accruals are amounts due to immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company of $528,000 (2021: $234,000) and $1,641,000 (2021: $Nil), which
are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

(continued)

Included in the amount of the Group’s trade and other payables and accruals are contract liabilities of
$222,000 (2021: $1,027,000). The Group operates a loyalty programme where customers accumulate
reward points for purchases made which entitle them to discount on future purchases. The respective
revenue is recognised when the reward points are redeemed or when the reward points expire. Reward
points earned as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 expire by 31 August 2022 and 2021 respectively. In
addition, the Group receives consideration when customers purchase coupons from restaurants at the time
of purchase. The respective revenue is recognised when the coupons are redeemed for future sales by
customers from restaurants or when the coupons expire.

14

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

ESRHMENE
we (&)
REBEZREMENRIBEREGERASES A
BIEE # B E222,0007T (ZF = —4 : 1,027,000
T0) c AEEKE—THEEE ERAUMEER
BEEES RABEBRUZATNN - BEAK
R REBDHBANREBSFBRER - N
T oFRZE—F=ZA=+—HREWHEE

RIERETEARER

BODRR T —FR T _—FN\A=1—
BEH - s AEERBEEBEEENESS

REBE ZRHKDRAKE BFRRENERRER
I A e RS E R o (B A T HR R R o

Ageing analysis BRiR 2 AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is REMERR BEZEMNFIBEREBEEERBHOEREK
as follows: DITWT -
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E - —F
$’000 $000
T T
Less than 30 days D30k 36,569 37,626
31 to 60 days 31E60X 762 6,949
61 to 90 days 61 290X 63 20
37,394 44,595
EFEBRERAE

02122 %% 1 81



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

15 LEASE LIABILITIES 15 HESE
At 31 March 2022, lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RZEZF=RA=+—H EEENHEAE
LUNNE
2022 2021
—=2=-= —E-—

$’000 $’000

Fr Tt

Within 1 year —F R 319,696 289,465

After 1 year but within 2 years —FEREMRFR 191,324 193,668

After 2 years but within 5 years MEZERFAN 142,295 98,266

After 5 years HFI% 54,793 —

388,412 291,934

708,108 581,399
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

16 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 16 #EMBRRKRFPOMESB

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents: (@) #HZEMBMRRRPOENEFIERE .

2022 2021
—=E_-= —EZ—F
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year FREBNENE B 50,961 33,675
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EHR SR (30,887) (7,969)
20,074 25,706
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to prior years BEFENTNESHBEER 2,597 21,488
22,671 47,194

Represented by: RE&:
Current tax recoverable Al Y B B EAFR 18 (3,923) (2,300)
Current tax payable FET B EARE 1R 26,594 49,494
22,671 47,194

ERERARARE < 20212248 183



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

16 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 16 #ZREWMBRRAKXRPHUFAES (&)

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHEB(EE) AE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of RERERE M BRAR AR ERIELERIE (B
financial position and the movements during the year are as follows: E)/BFEAKID RESHIMT
Depreciation in
excess of the
related
depreciation Unused tax
allowances losses Total
wERLEE AKRAEH
wERBE BIEEIE st
$’000 $'000 $’000
Tt Tt Tt
Deferred tax arising from: FREUTEENELERE
At 1 April 2020 R-E-TEmMA—AR (8,438) — (8,438)
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE (1,905) — (1,905)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZE-_—F=ZA=+—HK
—E-—FWA—H (10,343) = (10,343)
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE (1,542) (4,010) (5,552)
Exchange adjustment bE 5 38 & 2 (68) (66)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=H=+—H (11,883) (4,078) (15,961)
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16 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

16 ZEMBRRKRFHFED (&)

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) ERRARELEHEBE(EE) AE: (&)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and BT AOERBIMITHORERNETEERE
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction and the same taxable entity. The EIEFTS T EEAE R A B 75 el A R AR R AY
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of ERMERARR  REHEEEHAET
financial position: A - EITHEENEHEERSHOTIESE

IR E T BRRAERR -

2022 2021

—E-_F —_F_—
$’000 $’000
T Tt
Deferred tax assets BEBIBEE (16,751) (10,837)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 790 494
(15,961) (10,343)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (c) FABERELEHEEE:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(m), the Group has not recognised deferred BEM 1M FTE AR - NEE B AR

tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of $37,074,000 (2021: $12,314,000) and other
deductible temporary differences of $3,939,000 (2021: $679,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity.

Included in the unrecognised cumulative tax losses is an amount of $9,059,000 (2021: $3,428,000)
which can be carried forward for up to five years from the year in which the loss originated and an
amount of $10,701,000 (2021: $Nil) which can be carried forward for up to ten years from the year in
which the loss originated. The remaining balance of $17,314,000 (2021: $8,886,000) does not expire
under current tax legislation.

2t E 837,074,000 (ZE = — 4 -
12,314,000) R E M Al MR B R EZE
3,939,0007T (== = —4 : 679,0007T) R
BREFIEEE  AARNEBB@EHE AR T
Ao ge B BB AREHERRERTEF

RIER R FHFIEE 1B 2 15 £ %89,059,0007T
(ZZ——% :3,428,0007T) ' BB EELE
FERAEERLZAHAT  UReHE
10,701,000 (ZE=Z—5  : ZTx) - i@ E
BELAFTFERFEERZS TF -8B 8
17,314,0007T (=T =—% : 8,886,0007T) 1R

EFBEBRAERLIE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

17 PROVISIONS

17 BB
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
$’000 $'000
F Tt
Provision for unused annual leave RERAFBEE 13,959 9,481
Provision for long service payments RHEARAS S 16,054 8,229
Provision for reinstatement costs 18 IR P AN 50,498 39,871
80,511 57,581
Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” W ETATRBAGEINESE (26,663) (16,571)
53,848 41,010
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17 PROVISIONS (continued)

(@) Provision for unused annual leave

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

17 #B1E& (&)
(a) FEAEBEE

2022 2021

—_E_ —E-—F

$’000 $'000

T Tz

At the beginning of the year REW] 9,481 8,922
Provision made ERTREE 13,959 9,481
Utilisation A (9,481) (8,922)
At the end of the year RER 13,959 9,481

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for employee annual leave entitlements as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period, where there is a contractual obligation
or past practice has created a constructive obligation. The amount can be carried forward for next
year but will be lapsed after more than one year. All of the amount is expected to be utilised within
one year.

BEEFREMNNEEERBRER - WHBAH
BEESBEEMNELHERME  BISEBEER
THRAEEERHERSMELNREE FHRE
MEEEBEFHEE - 2B EEE T
—FE BEB-FRERK - MELER
ARE—FREA -

ArERERAT < 20212259 187



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

17 PROVISIONS (continued)
(b) Provision for long service payments

17 8B (&)
(b) EHBBEARBE

2022 2021

—_E_ —E-—F

$°000 $'000

T T

At the beginning of the year REW] 8,229 9,959
Provision made/(reversed) BEatR (B E) #E 9,054 (1,359)
Utilisation A (1,229) (371)
At the end of the year RER 16,054 8,229

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obligated to make lump sum payments
on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to employees who have completed at least five
years of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of services, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement schemes
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to
fund the above. All of the amount is expected to be utilised after more than one year.
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17 PROVISIONS (continued)

(c) Provision for reinstatement costs

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

17 #B1E& (&)
(c) BEERAERE

2022 2021

—_E_ —E-—F

$°000 $'000

T Tt

At the beginning of the year REW] 39,871 35,970
Additions NE 11,794 8,654
Provision reversed O (O] B 45 (762) —
Utilisation )z (276) (4,771)
Exchange adjustment PE X (129) 18
At the end of the year REFR 50,498 39,871

Under the terms of tenancy agreements signed with landlords, the Group shall remove and reinstate
the leased premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy agreements. Provision is
therefore made for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred. As at 31
March 2022, the amount expected to be utilised within one year is $12,704,000 (2021: $7,090,000).

BERZEFEVNHERZER  ~&EBE
RIEBHEEREE SR REREES
Fi  ERBAEEAE  BEREEED
TBEE R AN REMETELEE R
——HFZA=1+—H8 EHBER—FRHH
B4 % A12,704,000(ZF = —F
7,090,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 RMIBARMNKRE
The following list contains particulars of subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2022. The class of TRINBAREEMBRARINR T __F=A="
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. —BRFB -BREBEYAEIN - RO EN AT

Particulars of issued

Place of incorporation/ and paid up share Proportion of ownership
establishment and capital/registered interest held by the
Name of company business capital Company Principal activities
ERITRBERE ARAFEEN
AR MR, RR R it B M EARFE WAL FTEXEK
Jointed-Heart Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Operation of restaurants
RLRBRAR QA B 10,0007 7T KREEE
Vennic Limited Hong Kong HK$41,600,402 100% Operation of restaurants
HIEH R QA B 41,600,402 7T KREEE
Tung Tak Sublime Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% Operation of central
REABRRA A 187 kitchen, management
of logistics and
warehousing
KREhREE - EBY
m N B
Tamlaboration Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Provision of
BB IERAR BB 18T administrative and
management support
services
RETHREEXE
AR %5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18 RMBLARINEKRE (&)
Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation/ and paid up share Proportion of ownership
establishment and capital/registered interest held by the
Name of company business capital Company Principal activities
ERTREZERE ARAMEFERN
IR SRR ¥ B = & A GF WAL FEXER
Tam Jai (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD1,750,000 100% Operation of restaurants
Tam Jai (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. b 1,750,000 %7 Hn 3 #& KEEEE
Tam Jai Catering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB40,000,000 100% Operation of restaurants
BIFER ORI AR A F] (i FED A 40,000,000 A R #& KEERE
Tam Jai Japan Inc. (Note i) Japan JPY1,000 100% Operation of restaurants
Tam Jai Japan Inc. (M &ii) =[N 1,000 B KBS
TJI Global Development Company Limited (Note iii) Hong Kong HK$1 100% Dormant
TJI Global Development Company Limited (B #Eiii) A 187 mER
TJI Global Supply Chain Company Limited (Note ii) Hong Kong HK$1 100% Dormant
TJI Global Supply Chain Company Limited (fif5¥ii) &5 187 mER
Notes: BT -
() Tam Jai Catering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise registered under the laws of the PRC. The English 0] BEER R BR AT ARIEFBEEZMAINETE
translation of this entity is for identification only. The official name of the entity established in the PRC is in Chinese. On 4 March Bh¥ ZERNEXELEBEEMER - RRBEKL
2022, the Company contributed additional capital of RMB29,000,000 (equivalent to $35,670,000) to Tam Jai Catering (Shenzhen) WERAPXERERER -R-_T-__F=AWA -
Co., Ltd.. N2 7 %8 50 F E 29,000,000 A R ¥ (F8 & #385,670,000

T EBHFERFINBERAA -

(ii) Tam Jai Japan Inc. was incorporated in Japan on 27 July 2021. (ii) Tam Jai Japan Inc. R =T = —F -t A+t HBERANE
liigpAvaRs

(ii) TJI Global Development Company Limited and TJI Global Supply Chain Company Limited were incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 (iif) TJI Global Development Company Limited )2 Tl Global

March 2022. Supply Chain Company Limited i =T === A=+

BEBBEMARL -

ErERERAR < 20212258 19



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 765 5}

£87 - BRI ETTSR)

19 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

1 92 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Movements in components of equity (a) *Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi%ﬁ’ﬁ%@}
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s REBEGRE = SHEKE D O EIY) R EAR
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the RARYRENGEEREHRAN - FELRR
changes in the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the Al = B BB E 2 R ER ) B HA R 2 F A 2
year are set out below: BBy EHAT
The Company b /AT |
Shares held
for share  Share-based
Share award compensation Other Merger Retained
capital scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R REGE b SER
RE  BENRS FMEE Hftr i bt E REEF k)
(note 19(c)) (note 20) (note 19(h))  (note 19(e); (note 19(f);
(FHEE19(c)) (MEE20)  (REsk19(h)  (BEEE19(e) (K EE19(f)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2020 R-B-BEMA-AHLEE 10 - - 75,020 (78) 163,912 038,864
Changes in equity for 2021: “EC-FESNEE.
Profit and total comprehensive income for | &2 B A%
the year \ - - - - - 162,250 152,250
Issue of shares under share award scheme Btk 17 8Bt 13447 R 1) = = - - - - -
Dividends approved and paid in respect of F—FEHNEHER RS
the previous year - - - - - (120,000 (120,000
Equity settled share-based transactions NEGEEMUROAERNR S - - 144 - - - 144
Balance at 31 March 2021 and R-E--£=ZA=+-HEK
1 April 2021 —E--EMA-ANEH 10 — 144 75,020 (78) 196,162 271,258
Changes in equity for 2022: “E_EERNED
Profit and total comprehensive income for &% & 2 R 2E
the year = = = = = 374,595 374,595
Issue of shares under share award scheme AR {7 S E)Et &1 %17 AR 17 —* —* - = = = =
Issue of shares under share option TR R BTG
schemes 385 = = = = = 385
Dividends approved and paid in respect of |+ —%FEHI B #tfE K 5O B
the previous year = = = = = (280,000) (280,000)
Equity settled share-based transactions NREEEEMURNBERE TS = - 4,381 - - 4,015 8,396
Issue of shares upon global offering, net of RERBERITRA - MB T
issuing costs X AR 1,115,577 - - (40,099) - - 1,075,478
Balance at 31 March 2022 RIBEZZEZA=+-AWEs 1,115,972 = 4,525 34,921 (78) 294,772 1,450,112

* The amount is less than $1,000.

Annual Report 2021/22

*

2 # A 1,0007T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BrFEZ SN 1585 » BRI ETLFT)

19 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 19 EX - HERRE (&)
(b) Dividends (b) BRE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year: (i) BFRENENELAAEZRRIIIKE -
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$’000 $’000
Fr Tt
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period of R BiRK 18 2 89 R EAAR B & M 11.410
11.4 cents per share (2021: Nil) T E) 152,413 —
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not been recognised as a WEBREEZHARBREN B SR
liability at the end of the reporting period. WAERBEE -
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the previous (i) FRE—BHBEFELREANHER S
financial year, approved and paid during the year: WAL GERZRRIKE -
2022 2021
—E-= B —F
$’000 $’000
Fr T
Interim dividends in respect of the previous financial year of E—UBRE R EREER281
28 cents per share (2021: 12 cents per share) T —F  gk12(L) 280,000 120,000

ErERARARE < 20212245 103



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

19 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Issued share capital

19 EXR - HFEERE (&)

() BEITHRA

No. of shares Amount
BB E |
$'000
Tt
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ERITRBZEER

At 1 April 2020 N—E-ZFPA—H 10,000 10
Share subdivision (Note i) A& 10 ¥ 48 (B 5Ei) 999,990,000 —
Shares issued under share award scheme (Note ii) AR 10 B2 B R 81 BT AR 1 (B i) 2,024,000 —

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 WN_E-_—F=A=1+—8BxXK
—T_—FmMHA—H 1,002,024,000 10
Shares issued under share award scheme (Note ii) BLR% 10 B2 B E B B 1T AR D (FfY =Eii) 3,000,000 -
Shares issued under share option schemes (Note iii) B8 AR RE AT B B 1T AR 0 (B &) 452,740 385
Shares issued upon global offering (Note iv) REDREEEEITRM (M 3Tiv) 335,008,000 1,115,577
At 31 March 2022 R-—E-—=H=+—8 1,340,484,740 1,115,972
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19 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Issued share capital (continued)
Notes:

(i) By way of the sole shareholder’s resolution passed on 25 March 2021, a total number of 10,000 issued ordinary shares
of the Company with an aggregate value of $10,000 were subdivided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares. The other rights
and terms of the shares remain unchanged upon completion of the share subdivision.

(ii) On 25 March 2021 and 9 August 2021, 2,024,000 and 3,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to a trust set
up by the Company for a share award scheme detailed in note 20 at a subscription price of $20.24 and $30.00
respectively.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2022, share options were exercised to subscribe 452,740 ordinary shares (2021: Nil) of
the Company at a consideration of $385,000 (2021: $Nil) credited to share capital in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(|)(i) under the share option schemes detailed in note 20.

(iv) On 7 October 2021, 335,008,000 ordinary shares of the Company were newly issued at an offer price of $3.33 per share
by way of global offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The total gross proceeds from the new shares issued were approximately
$1,115,577,000. Issuing costs of approximately $40,099,000, mainly including underwriting fees, commissions and other
related expenses which are incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, were treated as a
deduction against other reserve.

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

19 EXR - HEERRE (&)

(c) BEITRAX(E)
B sE -

(i) BEE-RER_ZT-_—F=A-1+HABAN
SREEZE - AAF4AE10,0007TA $£10,0000% 2 B
17 & A% ¥ A1,000,000,000 8% T BA% A0 HY
HAER RAEFT ARG IFHE TR BRI TE -

(ii) RZE_—F=A=-+RAR=ZZ=_—FNAAN
B » 2,024,0000% ¥ 3,000,000 8% & 38 f% 7 Bl 4% R
f8{820.24 7T ) 30.00 T AL 8 K 2817 T AR B AR
D HEEDRT 8 (FEE R E20) R ME5T -

(i) BHEZT-—F=-A=1+—HLFE BRERE
MRAERTE (FFB R WaE20) T EERE IR E
385,0007C (ZE = —4F : TJr) ;R 452, 740 A
AEIEBR(ZZT=—F ) - ERBEMEE1()G)
e gt BRRERERA -

vy R-ZE-—FTA+tA BEBRHEESESR
%% £ {&3.33 7T 31 % 77335,008,000 % 74~ 2 &) & 38
BeRE  RARRDREBHERIMERA
AIERET - FBITROOMBHRIELELYD
1,115,577,0007T ° & 17 X 7N 4940,099,0007T (+
ZEECHE Ao HEMBBAMAY - BIETH
&A% B 52 JE ik B 382 2 AR AN ) 1R A L A 17 45 A9 $0 R
BRIE o

RIBFBCAFEHI)E1351E - KA AR L
B EEE -

EBERSAEABREDIAREIROKE &
BERERBEBONARTNAGELEZA R
BRERE -RUARBINBRTEE  TIELTERK
FHEBFHA -

ArERERAT < 20212258 1095



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 3R B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

19 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

1 96 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders.

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of equity. Trading balances that arise as a
result of trading transactions with other group companies are not regarded by the Group as capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure. Adjustments are made to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Group, to the extent that
these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Group or the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The results of the directors’ review of the Group’s capital structure
are used as a basis for the determination of the level of dividends, if any, that are declared.

There has been no change in the Group’s capital management practices as compared to prior years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements
in the current or prior years.

Annual Report 2021/22
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19 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Other reserve
The other reserve comprises the following:

—  the share capital amount arising from the amalgamations among the Company and various entities
under common control pursuant to section 681 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance; and

— issuing costs, mainly including underwriting fees, commissions and other related expenses which
are incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid by the Company and
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under common control of the shareholders by then
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(p).

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve comprises the grant date fair value of unexercised share
awards and share options granted to employees of the Company that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note 1(/)(ii).
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19 EXR - HEERRE (&)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

HAitb &
Hi@EHEREN &R

—  ARFERZHEXHRZEGERZERE
FECRBMED)) E 681 HRETTHE OFAT
EEMBRASRE &

—  BIRA - IBOEOKE AeRE
fARBIR - DBETHARED L M
R -

BOtHEE

EHEEEEE-_ZT - \F=ZA=1t—HL
FEARNRRE BRI R A RZEH
MERBHBRATNKRAZENESE -

BE 7 8
ENEEEEREBIEEMBRRAELE
HIFT A IE 5 Z 8 o RBRIEM E1(0) T E
VEETBUR R o

DR BERHHGEE

IR BERZ S EERIERITER M
BERETFARREENBRERNETFTENA
REBE - THRBEBEHEE1()G0) T AR D B =g
B X TR & 5T BURHER ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5t 5 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 20 URBDAEROZN

Share award scheme % 14 2 B ot &l

On 25 March 2021, a share award scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by the KRB —F=A-+HB  XAREM—BERK
Company. The Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing DERBEE (B AFABERIRMDEZ/ETE]) -
from 25 March 2021. Pursuant to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme, the Group has set up a BAAHBEIRGO REAEH S -_—F=A
trust (the “Share Award Scheme Trust”) for the purpose of administering the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme ZT+HRBRASB  MO0OFABRRER - BIBFFX
and holding the granted share awards before they are vested. The Company has the power to direct the NABERRNEBETEMNRA - REBD KL
relevant activities of the Share Award Scheme Trust and it has the ability to use its power over the Share (IR ERFEEE]) UWEBERARE
Award Scheme Trust to affect its exposure to returns. Therefore, the Share Award Scheme Trust is ERRODEEFERFEERNROER BEE
considered as a controlled structured entity of the Group. EBBARI - ARAIAEEERRNEBEIES

HY A8 B8R B M B RE D B B in R ET B RETT (L
NAFEREE R - Fit - iy R ET S EERE
EARBNIIEEEER

o

On 25 March 2021 and 9 August 2021, a total of 2,024,000 and 3,000,000 share awards (the “Awarded RZE_—F=ZA-_+HEERZFE-_—FNAN
Shares”) were respectively granted to certain selected employees (including but not limited to directors, H RAAGRBERARAZEENRNZBEGE -
executives, officers and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any members of the Group) at mEmE TETES (BEETRRAREEEMAK
no consideration under the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme. BENFINES - 1THAER B EREMES

THwEB B 5K T4E £2,024,0008 &
3,000,000R% f% 15 22 & ([ #ERHAX D 1) »
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 16585 - B RILE TSI T)

20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 20 URGDBEBRNZAM (2
Share award scheme (continued) B R Bt & (2)
30% of the total number of the Awarded Shares granted to the grantee will vest from the date on which AR AR T )RR AR 2 B H30% K B R &
dealings in the shares first commence on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”); 30% of the RAEREEBXMEEEA( MBS ES
total number of the Awarded Shares granted to the grantee will vest from the date immediately after the B ARABEETHREIRNABRN0%EHEE
1st anniversary of the Listing Date; and 40% of the total number of the Awarded Shares granted to the BEEMHB—BAFENBBEEE  EARRAE
grantee will vest from the date immediately after the 2nd anniversary of the Listing Date. The selected TR EER MO BB N40%EhERE ETHEEW
employees must also remain a director or an employee of the Company or its subsidiaries as at the vesting BEEmBHERE ECEEREBEHHUA
date. TMAREERRBKEMBRARNESHIES °
Movements in the number of Awarded Shares granted but not yet vested are as follows: ERTERABBNREKRMHDEBZEHOT :
2022 2021
—_E_ —E-—F
At the beginning of the year REH 2,024,000 —
Share awards granted during the year REARAETHIRRHD ZE) 3,000,000 2,024,000
Share awards lapsed during the year RE R KR BE AR 1D (105,600) —
Share awards vested during the year RERNEBENIR G EE (1,494,000) —
At the end of the year RER 3,424,400 2,024,000
During the year ended 31 March 2022, a total of 105,600 Awarded Shares were lapsed (2021: Nil) and a HE2 2 - F#=ZA=+—HItFE &FH
total of 1,494,000 Awarded Shares were vested (2021: Nil). 105,600 X BN (D KM (T = —4F - &) - HAF
1,494,000/ RENR D KRB (ZZE_—F - &) -
The aggregate fair value of 3,000,000 (2021: 2,024,000) Awarded Shares at the date of grant amounted to 3,000,000/% (=& = —4 : 2,024,000% ) ZZEI A% 7
approximately $7,875,000 (2021: $3,445,000). REFTHENAABERTEY H7,8750005T (=

T - —4F : 3,445,0007T) °
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(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 20 U AERNIN(Z

Share award scheme (continued)
The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of the
Awarded Shares was $6,771,000 (2021: $82,000).

Share option schemes

Share options were granted to certain selected employees (including but not limited to directors,
executives, officers and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any members of the Group)
under the Company’s share option schemes, namely “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” and “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”. The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme offer the
grantees options to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise price of $0.85 and
$2.638 respectively.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
On 25 March 2021, a total of 2,848,400 options were granted to certain qualified participants of the Group
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

According to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, subject to the following vesting dates, any
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may be exercisable at any time prior to the
expiry of 10 years from the acceptance date of the grant: (i) 30% of the total number of share options
granted to such grantee can be exercised from the Listing Date; (i) 30% of the total number of share
options granted to such grantee can be exercised from the date immediately after the 1st anniversary of
the Listing Date: and (i) 40% of the total number of share options granted to such grantee can be
exercised from the date immediately after the 2nd anniversary of the Listing Date.
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20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share option schemes (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, a total of 794,280 (2021: Nil), 335,000 (2021: Nil) and 452,740
(2021: Nil) share options granted to certain employees of the Company were vested, lapsed and exercised
respectively during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 25 March 2022, a total of 3,000,000 options were granted to certain qualified participants of the Group
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. These options are valid for a period of 10 years from the date
of grant and will be vested in three tranches: () 30% of the options will vest on 25 March 2023; (i) 30%
of the options will vest on 25 March 2024; and (i) the remaining 40% of the options will vest on
25 March 2025.

In accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, subject to the above vesting dates,
an option may be exercised at any time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Company’s board of directors in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted more
than 10 years after the Listing Date. Subject to earlier termination by our Company in a general meeting or
by the board of directors the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Listing Date.

No share options were vested, lapsed or exercised during the year ended 31 March 2022 under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of the share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was $1,625,000
(2021: $62,000).
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URGOEBERNIZS (&

B8 (&)

BEAXABRENBRENE ()
BEBXAAHZEERBRES 222
F=ZA=+—HILFE 5H#7942800 (=T =
—F &) 335,000 (=ZFE=—F :E)K
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HIBREEDFIRE « KAKITE -

BEANHREABRENE

RZZE-_—_F=A-+HH BEBXLAHREE
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(BRIEZSSM#658 » BRI E TS T)

20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share option schemes (continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options are as follows:

20 URGBAEBRNOIS (&

BRESE (2

(a) FEREIKTRIFAFLT -

Exercise price Number of

per share options Vesting period Expiry date

BRITEE BREZE BFEH J&wm B
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
BANHBEANERETS
Options granted to directors:
MEBFRTHBEE :
— on 25 March 2021 $0.857C 85,800 From 25 March 2021 to 7 October 2021 30 April 2031
- RZZE=Z—f=A=+AA ZE—FZAZ+RAEZZ=—F+AtE ZET=—FWmA=+H
— on 25 March 2021 $0.857C 85,800 From 25 March 2021 to 7 October 2022 30 April 2031
- RZE=Z—F=A=+AA —E-—FZA-+RAE-T-_—Ft+AtH —ZT=—FWA=1+H
— on 25 March 2021 $0.857C 114,400 From 25 March 2021 to 7 October 2023 30 April 2031
- RZEZ—§=A=+HA —E-—Ff=ZA=-+RAE=T=-=F+AtH Z—E=—FWA=1+H
Options granted to employees:
{E B TRERE :
— on 25 March 2021 $0.857C 768,720  From 25 March 2021 to 7 October 2021 30 April 2031
- RZEZ—F=A=+HA ZE-—FZAZTHRAEZF-_—F+AtR ZZET=-FWMA=+H
— on 25 March 2021 $0.857C 768,720  From 25 March 2021 to 7 October 2022 30 April 2031
- RZEZ—F5=A=+HhAH “EC-H-AZTHABREZZT_F+TALH ZE=-FWA=+H
— on 25 March 2021 $0.857C 1,024,960 From 25 March 2021 to 7 October 2023 30 April 2031
- RZZE=Z—f=A=+AA —EZ—F=ZAZ+RAEZT==F+AtH Z—ZE=—FWA=1+H
Total number of share options granted ERTHBRELY 2,848,400
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 20 URGABEBRNZM ()
Share option schemes (continued) BRESE(Z)
(a) The terms and conditions of the share options are as follows: (continued) (a) BERENKSREHIT (&)
Exercise price Number of
per share options Vesting period Expiry date
BRITHEE BREYE REH & % B

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

BERALHBRERBRESS

Options granted to directors:

RMEEETRRE :

— on 25 March 2022 $2.6387C 289,800 From 25 March 2022 to 25 March 2023 1 April 2032

- RZE-__F#=ZA=-+HH B _E=Zf-+HBEZB-_=H=ZH=+HH =—ZEBE=-HNA—H
— on 25 March 2022 $2.6387C 289,800 From 25 March 2022 to 25 March 2024 1 April 2032

- RZE--F=A=+HH —ECE=ZAC+HEHE-E-_ME=A-+EA —E=-£WA-H
— on 25 March 2022 $2.6387C 386,400 From 25 March 2022 to 25 March 2025 1 April 2032

- R-FE-_—_F=A=-+ARA ZE--f¥=A-+ABFE-B-HEE=F=-+HA —B=-£WHF-H
Options granted to employees:

[ {E B TRERRE :

— on 25 March 2022 $2.638 T 1,628,400 From 25 March 2022 to 25 March 2023 1 April 2032

- RZFE-ZF=A=-+hA “E--fZA-+HAE-E-=Z4=A-+HB -—BZ-FMA-H
— on 25 March 2022 $2.638 7T 1,628,400 From 25 March 2022 to 25 March 2024 1 April 2032

- RZZE-ZF=AZ-+HH ZECZHEZAC+RAEZB-MNE=A=+HA ZE=-FHNA-H
— on 25 March 2022 $2.6387C 2,171,200 From 25 March 2022 to 25 March 2025 1 April 2032

- RZE-__#=ZA=-+HH B _E=Zf-+HBE-BE-_HFE=HA=+HH =—ZE=-HNA—H
Total number of share options granted B FERELH 6,394,000
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20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share option schemes (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

20 URGBAEBRNOIS (&

BRERTE ()
(b) EREBERINEFITEELT -

2022 2021
—E=-= -

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options

hntE 15 niE¥H
TEE BREHE I8 EREEE
’000 000
TR T B%
Outstanding at the beginning of the year P )8 RATIE $0.850 7T 2,848 N/A “FiE F —
Granted during the year RERRT $2.638 7T 6,394 $0.8507T 2,848
Lapsed during the year NGRS $0.850 7T (335) - —
Exercised during the year RERTTE $0.850 7T (453) — —
Outstanding at the end of the year RERBKRITE $2.2027% 8,454 $0.8507T 2,848
Exercisable at the end of the year RERA T $0.850 7T 315 N/A 7~ FA —

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the share options exercised during the

year was $2.944 (2021: $Nil).

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2022 had a weighted average exercise price of $2.202
(2021: $0.850) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 9.78 years (2021: 10 years).
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20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of the share options granted was determined at the date of grant using the binomial
model with the following inputs and based on the respective vesting period of the share options:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZSSM 1685 - B RILE TR )

20 Ut AREBOIS (&
R B ()
(c) BREARBERER
BT ERREN AL EEDET B EEA
IR - LTI A S AR A S A

MBBET -

Options granted at
25 March 2022

Options granted at
25 March 2021

R=-ZZ2EZZ RZE——F
=A=+FHH =A=-+HH
BFHERE BT RS IR

Fair value at measurement date

Share price
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Option life

Expected dividend vyield
Expected exercise multiple

Risk-free interest rate

Rt EBMNAREE

BB
1TIE(E
LY IS
B S

BB B e R
BEHITEER

ERR X

$0.598 to $0.696

$0.907 to $0.934

0.598 7T £0.696 T 0.9077c20.9347T
$2.557T N/A T~iE A

$2.638 7T $0.857T

34.65% 45.08%

10 years 10 years

106 104

3.4% 3.5%

2.2 to 2.8 2210 2.8
2.2%28 222238

1.42% 1.43%

ERA-RELR G BREN DA EE - &

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate. The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of comparable
companies’ share prices based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value estimate of the share options.

EBRBRBEAABERMANEHELRRIIE
REZNHEME - BRI XRTEBEM
AL ARIRENELRB & - ER AR
MR FREE - BHLBRRNE
B ERBREAABENMGRE -
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

206 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables and
rental deposits. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions which the Group considers to
represent low credit risk.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk
and does not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the financial
statements.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group has established a credit risk management policy under
which individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations take into account the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 days
from the billing date. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Annual Report 2021/22
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

No credit evaluations are performed for retail customers that transact in cash, Octopus or via major
credit cards. The Group’s trade receivables in connection with sales settled through delivery service
platforms are with high credit rating and no past default history. Given that these assets are short-
term in nature and the probability of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit rating issuers, the
expected credit loss rates were insignificant and close to zero for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021, and accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised in respect of trade receivables.

Rental deposits are paid to landlords of restaurants. The credit quality of the landlords is assessed
based on their financial position and/or past experience of the Group in dealing with the respective
landlords. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from refundable rental deposits is considered to
be low, taking into account the landlords’ credit rating and the remaining lease term and the period
covered by the rental deposits. The directors are of the opinion that the expected credit loss rates for
rental deposits were insignificant and close to zero for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,
and accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised thereon.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables and deposits are set out in note 12.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2022

208 Tam Jai International Co. Limited

BREAREEREMIAQNAEBE(E)

(b)

REBESRR
AEBNBREEHERERDESH K
NHEREAET RANRSFHEE  UWneHEE
HEEHORBESR R -

FREFALEEMA EREEMAOT
WA - KEA DA TIRA DRI
BB S RE (RIEAAHFIEK (4 5FH)
5 B R PO TRAT I B M85 A
S AR ER AR HT B -

—E- =

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

EHNRFTREAEGREE

More than More than

one year two years

Within one but less but less
year or on than two than five More than Carrying
demand years years five years Total amount

—FRH HiB—F HEBWE
RER BL2RWME EBLREF HEBHF BEtr BREE
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
T T T T T T
Trade and other payables and accruals E5 R EMERFIBENETEF 198,955 - - - 198,955 198,955
Deposits received 200 = = = 200 200
Lease liabilities 332,138 197,775 149,113 56,923 735,949 708,108
531,293 197,775 149,113 56,923 935,104 907,263
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 21 BIEREEREMIAEAAEBEE)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) "BELER(E)
2021 —E—_%

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRRTRBERLE
More than ~ More than
one year  two years

Within one but less but less
year or on than two than five ~ More than Carrying
demand years years five years Total amount
—FAzk BRA—F HBAWMTF
REX BLARME BLRAFE HBBREF KT BREAE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 K EMENZIELETER 169,138 - - - 169,138 169,138
Deposits received BEWiEE 375 - - - 375 375
Lease liabilities HEBE 299,719 197,991 100,199 — 597,909 581,399
469,232 197,991 100,199 — 767,422 750,912
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=EEk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is not significant since the Group does not hold any ARAEBVESETANALBEREKKIR
financial instrument of which the fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in ERETEMBSMNEETMEHNE/ T
market interest rates. B BAKEMEHNNRERILENEK -
(d) Fair value measurement (d AAEEFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost i = ——— —E—F=A=+—8"
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. rEENeREERBEREERKASE

AR REAAREETEEAER -
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22 COMMITMENTS

Authorised and contracted capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2022 not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

22 AEiE
RZZ-__F=A=+—H KXEFAUBHRRK
FEHEMREECRERITONEARENT

2022 2021

—_=E__ —E-—F

$’°000 $°000

o Tt

Contracted for B a4 8,429 9,469

23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23 EXBEBAIRS
Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group BRVERREMTOMEENR S REHIN &
entered into the following related party transactions: SBEFIVUTHEBE LIRS

(a) Transactions with key management personnel (a) EHXEEBAENXRS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, which is included in staff costs (see note REEFZEEBAENFHM (GTAB IR -
5(b)), represents amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and senior RS0 EX M TFARRES (WHFETAT
management of the Group. BR)RAEEGREEENSE -
The emoluments of the senior management were as follows:

SREEBNHMOT

2022 2021

=== —E - —F

$°000 $'000

ST Tz

Salaries and other emoluments o N H b 7 i 4,758 3,918
Discretionary bonuses E"] TBIELL 1,889 973
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI K 144 137
Share-based payments LARR 1D B BT A A 688 12
7,479 5,040
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23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 EABEARE (&)

Transactions with key management personnel (continued) (a) EHFXrEEBABNRS ()
The remuneration of directors and senior management is determined having regard to the EEZNEABTEABNHEHNIIBEERNAL
performance of individuals and market trends. WERRETSBEET -
Transactions with other related parties (b) EHEHMBEABLINRS
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$’000 $’000
Fr T
Management fee to immediate holding company TR TFTEEERARINEIESE 3,266 3,375
Management fee to ultimate holding company YA FREERARINEESE 1,996 -
Licensing fee from immediate holding company REBEBRERARNTE 40 —
Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions (c) EFEBEXRZN LTRANERM

The related party transactions in respect of the management fee to immediate and ultimate holding
company above are in relation to the business consulting service agreement and the operations
support service agreement entered into by the Company, dated 1 April 2021 and 11 June 2021
respectively, which constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Report of the Directors.

The related party transactions in respect of the licensing fee from immediate holding company above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however,
they are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

S RAEERGERERARINERSE
M AR SERNRR DR T ——F
A—BRZE-—FX A+ —HIUWNED
BARSHEREESEREHEEH B
B ETRABHAZEMRENBERER
5o FHABEUMAERBEENREDHL
BEEeRE(HFHEBRERS | —H-

FAERRE BRER A B EET R B R R
RSB ETRAE VAT IR ENRE
MEXS AM ARZERHERSE
14A76(1) G EMRIERE - FLEH# %8
SFETMRAEI4ATEREE K

EFBEBRAERLIE
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24 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 24 DE BRI EK
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
Notes $°000 $’000
B 5 Fr Fx
Non-current assets ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries R B ARHERE 18 139,716 104,046
Property, plant and equipment M - B RERE 37,592 28,008
Right-of-use assets FREEE \ 98,916 57,679
Loan to a subsidiary m—fEKEB AR ER 23,788 —
Deposits and prepayments e RN FIE 12,143 4,936
312,155 194,669

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 9,303 7,167
Trade and other receivables 85 RE MR RIE 197 74
Deposits and prepayments %e RIENZE 9,422 3,679
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR ENGIE ] 102,635 —
Cash and bank balances R& RIRTTA & 1,215,505 341,867
1,337,062 352,787

Current liabilities REBARE
Trade and other payables and accruals B NHEMEMNRERETER 46,894 39,909
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG ] 19,132 137,972
Lease liabilities HMEBME 18,661 15,673
Current tax payable JE < BN B A 18 22,603 31,874
Provisions B 1,871 2,200
109,161 227,628
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,227,901 125,159
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAEE 1,540,056 319,828
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24 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) 24 PNRIMBEMRRE(E)
2022 2021
—=E—-= —E-—F
Notes $°000 $’000
B 5 T Tt
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 79,477 38,974
Provisions B 9,892 9,283
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 575 313
89,944 48,570
Net assets EEFE 1,450,112 271,258
Capital and reserves ﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ 19(a)
Share capital fi& 7R 1,115,972 10
Reserves 1.:% = 334,140 271,248
Total equity attributable to equity AATERBRRELEES
shareholders of the Company 1,450,112 271,258
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 13 May 2022. HEFER_T__FRAT=-HHEREET
i
Lau Tat Man FER
Directors EE
Chan Ping, Rita PR 55
25 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 25 EERBARERA

RZE_Z_F=A=+—H EBFZRARLFEED
BEEGRQAARMNZERERAR AR —BE
BEBEIMAIOLABRAT - MAEEHRK
£l 77 A& Toridoll Holdings Corporation * E 7 B 7
MK - HRDERREFRZF P LT  Toridoll
Holdings Corporationf® 2 B SRz A HEARE

Fﬁj o
2021/226% D13

At 31 March 2022, the directors consider the immediate parent of the Group to be Toridoll Holding
Limited, which is a private limited company incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate controlling party
of the Group to be Toridoll Holdings Corporation, which is incorporated in Japan with its shares listed on
Tokyo Stock Exchange. Toridoll Holdings Corporation produces financial statements available for public use.
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26 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 26 BE-_E-_—_=A=+—HLEEEE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR B ARERNIERT ~ HEARZRRE
ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 AgEER N E
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, HEZSUWBHRETNERE B8 AEE
and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 B ZIREBEI AR —TBH LR — (BEBYBRSE
March 2022 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments include BRNEI7HR — [REREX] - BAERT RERIR
the following which may be relevant to the Group. BHE_T-_—_F=-A=+—BLEFEHERER

AU EETHHRRTPER - ZFE2HEHETHA
REEAKEEHMER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT B Z&BRBN

SETHBEEXK

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment — Proceeds before (BEGFERDE16HEMBE] — [ #EX 1 January 2022

intended use ®E — ERE RS A2 5 RUE ] —FT-F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — Cost of fulfilling a contract (BBGHERDEITHRNER] —[BFBEMEH — 1 January 2022

JB1TE KB AN —E--F—HF—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle (BAEMBHMEEADNFELRE (ZE—N\FE 1 January 2022

—ZT_TFEH) —T__%—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (RBGTELDE1RNES] —TaEI>HEARD 1 January 2023

HIERE —T_=%—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of (BELFE)FE1FR R(EBUERE L] 1 January 2023

accounting policies ERNE2RAER] —[HREGFTEHE —T-=%—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates (BAGERDESHTNEE] — g5 HETHE 1 January 2023

% —T-=%—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising (BAGHERE12%MES] —[HELBE— 1 January 2023

from a single transaction REGMEERBEHEBORETNIE] —FE-=%—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these developments is AEBERZEEHRY T EABRANEREE
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is ETHE 25 R AEENERERM LM

unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position. FEEAREE ML EEE R R T AT 8

BER¥E-
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FOUR-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEEUNBHE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-C- B —%F —EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHxT FET FHE T FET
Results E¥5
Revenue U = 2,275,298 1,794,693 1,691,179 1,556,173
Profit before taxation B 756 B g ) 245,067 320,251 229,003 237,236
Profit for the year FE i A 202,960 287,792 190,896 197,709
Profit margin b 8.9% 16.0% 11.3% 12.7%
Adjustments for: AT
Government subsidies DX 4 B (54,768) (154,585) (2,000) —
Listing expenses EFHRAX 17,261 7,231 — —
Adjusted profit for the year FEKLAR G T 165,453 140,438 188,896 197,709
Adjusted profit margin 4R =X 7.3% 7.8% 11.2% 12.7%
At 31 March
R=A=+—8”
2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —E-—F —EEF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EEREBE
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,055,739 851,563 716,801 594,979
Current assets MBEE 1,513,008 553,419 375,171 364,421
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 443,050 333,438 313,324 266,043
Current liabilities mEAE 572,330 526,070 402,097 337,427
Capital and reserves BEARK G 1,553,367 545,474 376,551 355,930
EFERERAT @ 202122458 215



FOUR-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEREMBEHRE

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019
—E—-= —E-—%F —E-ETF —E-NF
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
AL AL Al Al
Per share data BREE

Basic earnings EARZEF 17.5 28.8 19.1 19.8
Diluted earnings BE AR 17.4 28.8 19.1 19.8

Key financial ratios FEHRKLEER
Current ratio MENLL & 2.6 1.1 0.9 1.1
Quick ratio REPLL X 2.6 1.0 0.9 1.1
Return on assets & EE O X 10.2% 23.1% 18.6% 23.1%
Return on equity -y CIE R 19.3% 62.4% 52.1% 76.9%
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